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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of Macrolink Capital
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the review of operating results for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and outlook of the Group.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$764,114,000, representing a significant increase
of 57.12% over that of HK$486,321,000 of 2021. The consolidated
loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$4,526,000 for the year under review, representing a decrease
of 86.10% over that of HK$32,552,000 of 2021. Basic and diluted
loss per share attributable to owners of the Company was 0.38
Hong Kong cents (2021: 2.70 Hong Kong cents). As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s total assets and net assets reached approximately
HK$273,485,000 and approximately HK$71,913,000 respectively.
The increase in revenue during the year under review was mainly
attributable to the expansion in business scale of the trading of mineral
products business. Notwithstanding that for the year under review,
the Group recorded fair value loss on investment properties and other
operating expenses, net in the amount of approximately HK$5,078,000
(2021: HK$2,322,000) and approximately HK$4,500,000 (2021: other
operating income, net of HK$10,316,000), respectively, the Group
can be able to record a significant decrease in the loss attributable
to owners of the Company. This was mainly attributable to, for the
current year under review, (1) the Group did not record any impairment
loss on other intangible assets (2021: HK$ 6,190,000); and (2) thanks
to the recognition of the net foreign exchange gains of approximately
HK$6,325,000 (2021: net foreign exchange loss of approximately
HK$22,225,000), the Group‘s administrative expenses decreased to
approximately HK$29,002,000 from approximately HK$55,662,000
while the Group‘s other income, gains and losses, net increased from
approximately HK$4,308,000 to approximately HK$15,140,000.

DIVIDENDS

According to the Company’s dividend policy and in order to reserve
sufficient funds for the Group’s future development and operation, the
Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
(2021: nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENTES

OUTLOOK

Since early 2020, the pandemic outbreak has spread across the
PRC and other countries and it has affected the business of the
Group to some extent. In the face of the economic recession and
uncertainties, and given the progressive economic recovery arising from
the crackdown of the COVID-19, we will closely monitor how China’s
macroeconomy and policies and changes in the global economy,
political landscapes, market environment and competition will affect
the Company, and continue to optimise its operations to maintain the
sustainable long-term growth of the Group.

On the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to
cautiously and comprehensively identify investment and business
development opportunities for efficient and stable business
development. The Group will also actively seek opportunities and make
effective use of the resources at our disposal and viable business
opportunities for development and optimisation of its asset allocation.
The Group will continue to expand the scale of the property investment
business segment and property management services business
segment and introduce more profitable businesses in due course with
an aim to improving its profitability, increasing shareholder returns, and
laying a solid foundation for its future development.

Looking into the future, the management of the Group believes that,
leveraging on the experience and resources of the Group’s controlling
shareholders and adhering to the principle of investing in value, the
Group will strive to consolidate and develop its existing businesses,
while cautiously and carefully focusing on and develop the Group’s
investments and business development opportunities at home and
abroad, consistently exercising cost and risk control, strengthening
its financial position, and striving to reduce the adverse impact of
COVID-19 and the downturn in global economy on its business
operations. Leveraging on the experience and support of the Group’s
controlling shareholders, the management is committed to grasping
and creating business opportunities with a view to bringing long-term
and substantial returns to shareholders and the Group.

Trading in the Company’s shares has been suspended with effect
from 9:00 a.m. on 15 February 2022 and shall remain suspended until
further notice. The Company is taking appropriate steps to resolve the
issue(s) causing its trading suspension and will strive to resume trading
in the Company’s shares as soon as possible.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
valued shareholders for their unwavering trust in the Group over
the years, to our business partners and clients for their long-term
support, and to the entire management team and all staff for their
efforts and dedication. We will continue to intensify our efforts to
strengthen and develop our existing businesses while remaining open
to explore new investment opportunities so as to achieve long-term
strategic transformation and will strive to create the best returns for our
shareholders.

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Year”),
the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) recorded
revenue of approximately HK$764,114,000, representing a significant
increase of 57.12% over HK$486,321,000 of last year. The increase
in revenue was mainly attributable to the expansion in business
scale of the trading of mineral products business relating to nickel
cathodes with increased trading volume and amount during the
Reporting Year. The Group’s gross profit during the Reporting Year
was approximately HK$21,108,000 (2021: HK$20,011,000), thanks to
the contribution from the trading of mineral products business segment
and the property management services business segment. During
the Reporting Year, as (1) the administrative expenses decreased to
approximately HK$29,002,000 from approximately HK$55,662,000;
and (2) the Group’s other income, gains and losses, net increased
from approximately HK$4,308,000 to approximately HK$15,140,000,
which were mainly attributable to the recognition of the net foreign
exchange gain of approximately HK$6,325,000 (2021: net foreign
exchange loss of approximately HK$22,225,000), and gain on waiver
of rent from lessor in an amount of approximately HK$8,124,000
(2021: gain on Covid-19-related rent concession from lessor of
approximately HK$1,207,000) by the Group during the Reporting
Year, the Group was able to record operating loss for the Reporting
Year from continuing operations of approximately HK$2,332,000,
compared to operating loss from continuing operations in an amount
of approximately HK$29,539,000 of last year. The Group recognised
a loss of approximately HK$4,526,000 for the Reporting Year (2021:
HK$36,015,000). Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations attributable to shareholders of the Company
was HK cents 0.38 (2021: HK cents 2.70).

OPERATION REVIEW
Trading of mineral products business

During the Reporting Year, the trading of mineral products business
segment principally operates in two main aspects: (1) Overseas Nickel
Trading-sourcing mineral concentrates (branded electrolytic nickel
cathodes) from Russia and exporting them to the trading intermediates
and end customers in the PRC and (2) Onshore Nickel Trading-sourcing
nickel concentrates and nickel products in the PRC and selling them to
the end customers in the PRC.

During the Reporting Year, with regard to the Overseas Nickel Trading,
with limited availability of product supply, the Group was only able to
trade an aggregate volume of approximately more than 1,233 tons
(2021: more than 1,733 tons) of nickel, with revenue of approximately
HK$254,331,000 (2021: HK$248,599,000) being recognised by the
Group. Given the ongoing strong market demand for nickel product,
which led to the remarkable increase in the average selling price,
this product stream continued to enable the Group to strengthen its
revenue base in this business segment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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NMEEFEEAN - ARBREBEEDERKEBS) - Bt During the Reporting Year, as a result of the strong domestic demand
BERERBEES BHRAEEDLLIWMEBEEANRFE  for nickel product, as regards the Onshore Nickel Trading, the Group
R Rt AEESOESETERANTISEE  strived to keep on sourcing of nickel products in the domestic market
BFEM THEFPEHZKREEFL - RWEFE  of the PRC and to sell to end customers in the PRC thanks to a strong
A REBEBLBEE S LH#iB3,6200E (—E ——  customer base the Group has been capturing. The Group has been
o FBB1 47OME) Y ERE MR AEEERUW AL  able to trade an aggregate volume of more than 3,620 tonnes of
490,364,000/ jr (—Z & — — 4 : 218,479,000/  nickel products during the year under review (2021: more than 1,479
JT) ° tonnes), with a revenue of approximately HK$490,364,000 (2021:
HK$218,479,000) being recognised by the Group.

BiEFMEBER RNREEERN BERZE S5 % Based on the foregoing, during the Reporting Year, the business of

815 o 50 % 491,208,000 L (ZF = —F - trading of mineral products recorded a segment profit of approximately
1,618,000/& JT) HK$1,208,000 (2021: HK$1,618,000).
wHERE Securities investments

EEE/\E/%&EP Bl EA5miBIEE A NKEE - B As the securities markets in Hong Kong and the PRC have been

CBEIREEBRBEREER c RIPEEER - vulnerable to a high level of uncertainty and volatility, there emerged
ZK%@jZ?ﬂE\%*éTE?Q;é%Hé\{’EtHTE{EJEKEEAZ - M#  limited opportunities for securities investment. During the Reporting
BERWER—ZRNELHBRBELEBHS EMART  Year, the Group did not make substantial alteration to its investment
25,820,000/ - R—ZZE-_—_F+_-_HA=+— portfolio and continued to invest in 5,820,000 shares of a Hong Kong
A AEEGRUAFEISEESEHE AIBEN  listed company engaged in financial services. As at 31 December 2022,
ARG E - EEERRBEATLEESR ;‘%’r%ﬁ Z’] the Group recognised relevant net fair value loss on equity investments
914,000/ L (= E = —4 :1,954,000/87C) * H8 at FVTPL - held for trading of approximately HK$914,000 (2021:
HwERZERE ZHBEREUAL1,726,000# HK$1,954,000), the negative impact of which has been eliminated
TT(ZZF = —4 : 1,335,000 70) M B2 EK - with a dividend income related to the investment of approximately

HK$1,726,000 (2021: HK$1,335,000).

HRBERER Coal mining business

REBEWESIEEBEEBENEERE - A5ty The Group owns mining rights pertaining to coal mines in Peru. As
ANESE Y HQER R ERAEERA - Btk H—ZF  the estimated revenue is unable to support its operating costs and
—NE=Z A BREFEEEIMEDERERE  the production costs, the production of the two developed coal mines
GRE (= A B o B AR - MR EICOVID-19@ ik under the coal mining business have been suspended since March
FERE([BBEE]) 2I-Fee ﬁfalkfé 2019. Meanwhile, Peru was adversely affected under the COVID-19
—E-EF-FRRELHSEANEMNE TREl - £ coronavirus outbreak (the “Pandemic Outbreak”) and the relevant
BERE__FEE - AM BEZZE-_ZTF=H government has imposed certain restrictions throughout the country
B AEEEMENEREESTIEARTE WA  since March 2020 and has been lifted in 2022. However, the Group’s
MIELEERBR S THRE - coal mines operations in Peru have been greatly disrupted since March

2020 and came across certain difficulties for resumption of operations.

RBEFERN  ZESHPBEBWAZTHEIL(ZZE  During the Reporting Year, this business segment recorded revenue
—F BB IL)  DELRF A B4,121,0008 7t of nil (2021: nil) and a segment profit of approximately HK$4,121,000
:;:—¢ E53822,797,000/87C) - HFTE Ty (2021: loss of HK$22,797,000), which was mainly attributable to the
RERESWE AR AREB W ES EMmEmFEES:  recognition of foreign exchange gain and no impairment loss on other
5 Eﬂx)ﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁ@ (ZZ = —4 :6,190,000%7T) » intangible assets (2021: HK$6,190,000) being recorded by the Group.
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M MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

wl

Thanks to the gradual coming over of the Pandemic Outbreak and the
rise of the coal price arising from the global energy crisis, subsequent
to the end of the Reporting Year, the Group is considering the
resumption of the production for two coal mines under development
and commencement of the production for another two coal mines
owned by the Group in Peru. Hence, the Group has been undertaking
preliminary assessment, including (1) the fulfilment of all the legal
and environmental regulations for obtaining/renewing the required
production permits and licenses; (2) the carrying out of feasibility study
and (3) the finalization of the feasible production plans.

Property investment and development

During the Reporting Year, the segment of property investment and
development recorded a segment loss of approximately HK$5,284,000
(2021: HK$1,012,000).

Investment properties in Beijing

During the Reporting Year, the rental income from property leasing
in Beijing, the PRC was approximately HK$4,464,000 (2021:
HK$4,398,000). These investment properties in Beijing recorded net
fair value loss of approximately HK$5,078,000 (2021: HK$2,322,000)
in respect of the revaluation, which mainly accounted for the loss in
this business segment. Notwithstanding these, the Group expects
these investment properties in Beijing currently held on hand will
keep generating a stable rental income stream and capture potential
appreciation in future.

Property management services

On 8 February 2021 and 14 July 2021, the Group entered into
agreements with Macrolink Development and Investment Limited
(“Macrolink Development and Investment”) and Macrolink Holding Co.,
Ltd., respectively, to provide property operation and management,
solicitation of business and tenants and other related services
in relation to certain owned and entrusted properties. During
the Reporting Year, the Group achieved to recognise a property
management services income of approximately HK$14,143,000 (2021:
HK$14,317,000). During the Reporting Year, the Group has entered
into a termination agreement with Macrolink Holding Co., Ltd. to early
terminate the property entrusted management contract entered into on
14 July 2021 with effect from 30 September 2022.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R-TE-—F+ARHE - AEEFHAERE - B On 5 July 2021, the Group entered into a lease agreement, pursuant
g AEERERSEMNIERTEAE - BEEA  to which the Group agreed to lease properties comprising 395 guest
Eia4a 1£26,058.90F 5K « HET395MIEBEARE  rooms and certain ancillary facilities (i.e. kitchens, warehouse and
THREXRE(EE BELERE) 2% ([%% restaurant) located in Fengtai District, Beijing with a total usable
W) - BEMHAEB _T-_—F+HABRE- property area of 26,058.90 square meters (the “Properties”) for a
E=—F+_A=+—HIF -HEZEWEEAAX term commencing from 5 July 2021 and ending on 31 December
EENRANEALAE WELARFENEZLK 2032, The leasing of the Properties is intended for use by the Group
BISHEA - BATEZIEEE - Bt A&EEME  as short-term or long-term rental serviced apartments with ancillary
FEBEMRBESEER - 1IN AREMMEEZE  business premises such as catering and convenience stores. Due to
EMARDZEYE Bt R—E=-=—F+=H the on-going pandemic situation in the PRC, the Group is unable to
=+H NEEFTZEIEHE - LURATKRIEFAER  commence its relevant operation. Furthermore, as the Properties have
SMFISEH  AEERZEHEADREASMZE  to be demolished due to urban development needs, on 30 December
498,124,000 7L LA K 42 [FFH E HYE5181,231,0008 2022, the termination agreement was entered into to early terminate
JT °© the remaining lease term of the lease agreement, with approximately
HK$8,124,000 gain on waiver of rent from lessor and HK$1,231,000
loss on termination of lease being recognised by the Group.

ERLA ATt - REBEZEK D ISR ET L  Based on the above, the Group was able to recognise a profit of
16,651,000 7% (ZF = —4F : 13,041,000 7T) =  approximately HK$16,651,000 (2021: HK$13,041,000) in this business

segment.
R OUTLOOK
E_Z_ZTFYIUR  BIEBBREPTELEHEMEZK  Since early 2020, the Pandemic Outbreak has spread across the
Et - E—FREIFZETAEE ¥ - @Y  PRC and other countries and it has affected the business of the

FERRATHEEM - BEMNCOVID-19%F 24  Group to some extent. In the face of the economic recession and

EESER RPBeRYREPRRELEEE  uncertainties, and given the progressive economic recovery arising from

FERHBRLE  BUAK B TISIBIEMETEMME  the crackdown of the COVID-19, we will closely monitor how China’s

LE AT R E  SEMRIBEZE AR macroeconomy and policies and changes in the global economy,

EEMAEFEERAEERE - political landscapes, market environment and competition will affect
the Company, and continue to optimise its operations to maintain the
sustainable long-term growth of the Group.

NEBESTEERATHRMFIRT @ #HEZERKESH  On the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to
MeRERESTEREe  BHEERHENSMAM  cautiously and comprehensively identify investment and business
BEH - -mersskie  WERFBEEZIEE development opportunities for efficient and stable business
BRI TR SRER > B(LEEMB - 5B  development. The Group will also actively seek opportunities and make
e ET RS RIS X I LA effective use of the resources at our disposal and viable business
MESIERBEL DB Z2RE > 3| AT ARBTIMER  opportunities for development and optimisation of its asset allocation.
ER o LMRETREA S ik ER R - AARKH  The Group will continue to expand the scale of the property investment
BRETHREAER- business segment and property management services business
segment and introduce more profitable businesses in due course with
an aim to improving its profitability, increasing shareholder returns, and
laying a solid foundation for its future development.
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BEXRK NEBEEEHEE  BEANEELERAR  Looking into the future, the management of the Group believes that,
HHRBRLER  URFEFAEBMEKZENIES - leveraging on the experience and resources of the Group’s controlling
AEBBYNZEEREREDAER > RFEEIWE  shareholders and adhering to the principle of investing in value, the
HEENBEEAEBERRNMGINRE REMR  Group will strive to consolidate and develop its existing businesses,
hE#e  EERERRIES - RSN while cautiously and carefully focusing on and develop the Group’s
HARIEKCOVID-19F B I B TR FTE A ¥ %5 investments and business development opportunities at home and
KBTS TR E - REAEBEERKERL  abroad, consistently exercising cost and risk control, strengthening
BLhTE O BEEBATICERAIERK - AEN its financial position, and striving to reduce the adverse impact of
AREEERRRMABALHR - COVID-19 and the downturn in global economy on its business
operations. Leveraging on the experience and support of the Group’s
controlling shareholders, the management is committed to grasping
and creating business opportunities with a view to bringing long-term
and substantial returns to shareholders and the Group.

ARNRIRHEE T -_—_F_A+AHBLFAE Trading in the Company’s shares has been suspended with effect

FTHREEESR  TEEEEEEERTEMAL - from 9:00 a.m. on 15 February 2022 and shall remain suspended until

AAREAERIBGESIE A RS B EFEEAM  further notice. The Company is taking appropriate steps to resolve the

BB NBRRERARTRNDESE - issue(s) causing its trading suspension and will strive to resume trading
in the Company’s shares as soon as possible.

REBESTRITEER LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

NRZBE-_—F+-A=+—H NEEZHEEZFL As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total equity amounted to
BE71,913,0008 L (ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H: approximately HK$71,913,000 (31 December 2021: HK$82,915,000),
82,915,000 7)) & -_ZE=-—4+=H=+—H representing a decrease of 13.27% compared with that as at 31
T1827% c R E - —_F+_-_HF=+—H 74~ December 2021. The Group’s current ratio as at 31 December 2022
EE R X AR097(ZE-_—F+-_A=+— was 0.97 (31 December 2021: 0.69). The Group’s gearing ratio,
H:069) - AEEBR-_ZE-__F+-HA=+—H expressed as a ratio of total interest-bearing other borrowings to total
CEEARBLE (BHEAMESREMEEE LK) assets as at 31 December 2022, was 0.05 (31 December 2021: 0.07).
R0.05(ZE-—F+-HA=+—H:007) °

REBEEYEETEGHEER - W =2 =-= The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As
F+-_A=+—0 AEBAEEBEEMEZE  at 31 December 2022, the Group had secured other loan and
K H 4 B o Bl 58,000,000/ 7t (ZZ ——  unsecured other loan amounting to HK$8,000,000 (31 December

F+=-A=+—H :22,000,000/&7) %5,597,000 2021: HK$22,000,000) and HK$5,597,000 (31 December 2021:
BT(ZE-—F+=-HA=+—0H :6,115,000/8 HK$6,115,000), respectively. The secured other loan is denominated
o) c BEBHMERTIAB TEHERIZRTSF8.5E  in HKS, interest-bearing at 8.5% per annum and after extension in
R CR-E-=F—ALRE - BEAEELKLE January 2023, the repayment date has been extended to January
BE_Z_NFE— A - BEFHEMERIUAAREE  2024. The unsecured other loan is denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
(TARE D ERIRESEISE L  WARESR interest-bearing at 9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

BiE o

R-Z-_—F+-_fF=+—H KEFBTEMNUBH As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
ToEx((ET])  ARBEEWEBZRB([XZM]) totaled approximately HK$98,285,000 (31 December 2021:
AECEENESEEMS H4/4598,285,000/ 7  HKS$113,943,000), which were mainly denominated in HK$, United
2 —F+ZA=+—H:113,943,000/& ) ° States dollars (“US$”), RMB and Peruvian Soles (“Soles”).
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had aggregate banking and
other facilities of approximately HK$8,000,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$22,000,000) and had no unutilised banking and other facilities (31
December 2021: nil) available for drawdown.

The Group recorded net loss of approximately HK$4,526,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and it had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$4,936,000 as at 31 December 2022. These
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may
cast doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure:

(a) Continuing implementing comprehensive policies to monitor
cash flows through cutting costs and capital expenditure;

Exploring the possibility and speeding up the process of
disposing assets of the Group to enhance its liquidity position;

Soliciting for further financing arrangements which include
funding from related companies of the Group; and

Obtained an amount owing to the immediate holding
company to which the Group was indebted in an amount of
HK$100,000,000 as at 31 December 2022. The immediate
holding company has undertaken not to request for repayment
of the indebted amount for twelve months from the date of this
announcement.

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking into account of the
above measures covering a period of fifteen months from the end of
the reporting period prepared by the management, the directors of the
Company consider the Group would be able to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due or will
be falling due in coming twelve months. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements has been prepared on a going concern basis.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Reporting Year, there have been no change in the
issued share capital of the Company. As at 31 December 2022, the
Company’s number of issued ordinary shares was 1,206,249,251.

GROUP STRUCTURE

Apart from (i) the incorporation of a wholly-owned subsidiary in the
United States; and (ii) four wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
being deregistered, there has been no change in the structure of the
Group during the Reporting Year.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (31 December 2021: nil).

On 5 March 2021, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
Macrolink Asia Industrial Investment Limited (the “Vendor”), pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to purchase, and the
Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interests of
Macrolink Development and Investment at a total consideration of
HK$186,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).

Deposit of HK$50,000,000 has been paid to the Vendor pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, with the first instalment of
HK$33,000,000 and the second instalment of HK$103,000,000 to
be paid upon completion of the Acquisition and mortgage release
of the certain properties of Macrolink Development and Investment,
respectively.

On 26 October 2022, the Company and the Vendor entered into
the termination agreement to the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
and the Vendor refunded the deposit paid by the Company (i.e.
HK$50,000,000) during the Reporting Year.

TREASURY POLICIES AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RISK

The Group continued to adopt a conservative approach with respect
to treasure and funding policies, with a focus on risk management and
transactions that are directly related to the underlying business of the
Group. During the period under review, the business activities of the
Group were mainly denominated in HK$, US$, RMB and Soles. The
Group has not adopted any currency hedging policy and entered into
any currency derivative products. However, the management of the
Group will continue to monitor the foreign currency exchange exposure
and will consider adopting certain hedging measures against currency
risk when necessary.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s investment properties
with carrying amount of approximately HK$36,432,000 (31 December
2021: HK$40,366,000) have been pledged to a lender to secure loan
facilities.
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STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 26 employees in total as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: 30) mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and Peru. The
number of workers employed by the Group varies from time to time
depending on the industry need and they are remunerated under the
employment terms which are based on industry practice. The Group
implemented its remuneration policy and discretionary bonus based on
the performance of the Group and its employees. The Group provides
benefits such as social and medical insurance and pensions to ensure
its competitiveness.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

Details of the outstanding litigations and arbitrations are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fu Kwan, aged 65, has been the executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Fu is currently
the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macrolink
Holding Co., Ltd (“Macrolink”). Mr. Fu is a senior economist and has
over 30 years of experience in corporate management and business
strategy planning. Mr. Fu served as a Commissioner of Public
Security in Liling City, Hunan Province, China, the Deputy Secretary
of the Commune Party Committee, the Secretary of the Township
Party Committee, the Deputy Director of the Economic and Trade
Commission of Liling City, a director of the Municipal Foreign Trade
Bureau, the deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import
and Export Group, and the deputy leader of Social and Education
Work Team of the Provincial Party Committee in Liuyang City, etc.
Also, Mr. Fu was appointed as the executive director and a member
of Standing Committee of the China Federation of Industry and
Commerce (2E T8 ), and a director of Political Affairs Committee
of China Federation of Industry and Commerce (& B T g2 B %
KZE&), a member of Advisory Committee of China Federation
of Industry and Commerce (2B Tt £ HZ E€) and the vice
president of the 10th China Federation of Industry and Commerce
(2B T8 ). Mr. Fu worked as the vice chairman of the 11th
China Civil Chamber of Commerce (FBIRE @ €), a member of
the 11th, 12th and 13th National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”), and is currently the
co-president of the Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce and a
member of Hong Kong Election Committee. Mr. Fu was appointed as
the vice chairman of the board of directors of Central South University
and Beijing Foreign Studies University. He has been honored as
“the National Outstanding Socialist Builder”, “the China’s Top Ten
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”, “China’s Economic Figures of the Year”,
“the Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Private Enterprise in 40 years of
reform and opening up of China” and “the New China’s Top Hundred
Outstanding Hunan Figures in 70 years” G B+ AF B Z B A Y
). Mr. Fu is formerly a director of Hunan Hualian China Industry Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and currently
a director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and an executive
director of Dongyue Group Limited, a company listed on Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Mr. Zhang Jian, aged 49, has been the executive Director of the
Company and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang joined Macrolink in 2002. Mr. Zhang is
currently the senior vice president of Macrolink and the chief controller
of the integrated management department of Macrolink. Mr. Zhang has
more than 20 years of experience in investment banking, corporate
operation and business management. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a master’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the general
manager of the Company and also acts as directors of two subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. Zhang is currently an executive director of Dongyue Group Limited
and New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange), a director of Keda Clean Energy
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), a
director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co. Ltd. and Hunan
Hualian China Industry Co., Ltd (companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange).

Ms. Liu Jing, aged 46, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Ms. Liu is currently the senior vice
president of Macrolink, the president of the investment department
of Macrolink, the chairman and the general manager of Changshi
Investment Co., Ltd., and the general manager of Macrolink
International Investment Co., Ltd. Ms. Liu joined Macrolink in
1998. Since then, Ms. Liu has worked in winery, real estate and
gas companies under Macrolink. Ms. Liu also served as the chief
financial director of overseas finance department of Macrolink.
Ms. Liu is currently an executive director of Shandong Organosilicone
Materials Co., Ltd. (a company listed on ChiNext of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange). In 1998, Ms. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting from Xiangtan University in Hunan province. Ms. Liu is also
a certified accountant in the PRC and acts as a director of a subsidiary
of the Company.
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Mr. Chan Yeuk, aged 64, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Chan is an economist and the
current director of Macrolink and Macrolink International Investment
Co., Ltd. Mr. Chan started working in 1976 and worked as a worker
and a project budgetary staff. In 1987, Mr. Chan obtained a degree
from the Business Administration Department of Beijing Institute of
Chemical Technology. After graduation, Mr. Chan worked in a company
under San Xiang Group in Guam, the United States of America serving
as the deputy manager, and later served as the deputy director and
the director of sales department of Hunan branch of China Investment
Bank. Mr. Chan joined Macrolink in 1993, and served as the chairman
of the Supervisory Board, the vice president, and the executive director
of Macrolink.

Mr. Zhou Jianren, aged 64, has been an executive Director of the
Company since July 2014. Mr. Zhou has more than 30 years of
experience in international trading. Mr. Zhou also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Liu Yaojia, aged 38, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 15 September 2022. Ms. Liu has over 10 years of
experience in financial management, corporate finance and investment.
Ms. Liu joined Macrolink in 2006 and commenced to be stationed
in Hong Kong in 2008. Ms. Liu is formerly senior manager of the
Company, deputy general manager and financial controller of Macrolink
International Investment Co., Ltd., and currently the deputy general
manager of the Company. Being a certified accountant in the PRC,
Ms. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance from Hunan Normal
University and a master’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§



ESEREREEBAERE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTAS

BYFHITES

MEREE - BHF675R R-FTTUFNLARRIE
ARABIUFATEER/ARAEREZEREEE
FARFHEEGMERZBEERAZKE - Mt
ERERELEBHGFFETMA®  RESHQ
REFEAE  BEEGANAE  BEBHES
BREANGHEILE BN AN
g BENBESEB REMBBE - MELRS
REESEBRARABZBIIFRITES - ZAF
REZPIGEM EM - BT —TFMA -+ /\HEE
E-FT-N\FRALRIL MEESREBEBRZER
BRAR (FELEERERAR) 2B IFATT
B ZOmRBRMERLET - MELERR R
R (BE) BMEBMARIBZANA - Mk
EREERBEREFRNDABRAR ZAFMBER
MERGFENEBACRE - MELEBRPREE
Y BEEECESNRERRLER - MELAS
BEREERNBAREERXELEM -

BIIREE 61 B-E-—F+ABRHEERA
RIZBNERTEENAEREZES FTHEES
MREZEERBEZKE - BAEEREREHE
REMPEELERE T ABEMI0TER - HEE
BAEPSEREERAR  BHBENRTREEER
AR -HFEE(SHE ZREEBFERARESK -
BERECTE+—EERE+T_ERHBE2EZES
HEARBETEMEBEHEER - BLE
NERZEAZEIABE T —_ERTZESZ
B BMEIRE (R ELEAERE - EN
FEleRREMNE IoE (e B+ Eal=x
B BRAERBET—EBHERZESADELR
REZECLE  RRAREFIEE +AREDA
Al [omEaEEFTEFETeTESER
BE]CTPRESPER]  [HREAGLLE] -
R-ZE_ZF BAEEFISHEESLER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, aged 67, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since September 2004 and
is the chairman of the audit committee; and a member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Securities Institute, Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
Australia ® New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants, Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and Certified Tax Adviser. Mr. Lam is currently
an independent non-executive director of Grand T G Gold Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of OCI International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Dragonite International Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
28 April 2010 to 7 May 2018. Mr. Lam currently is a partner of
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited and was head of department in
Southwest Securities International Securities Limited and also the
proprietor of Albert Lam & Co. CPA. Mr. Lam was also the director and
currently is the shareholder and Consultant of Jonten Hopkins & Aoba
Group. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in Arts (Economics) from the
University of Manchester, the United Kingdom.

Mr. Fung Chuen Kin, aged 61, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since July 2021 and is a
member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Fung has over 30 years of experience in
property development and investment and corporate management.
Mr. Fung is currently the chairman of China Jinying Investment Co.,
Ltd., Hainan Olympic Garden Co., Ltd. and China Jinying (Hainan)
Safety and Security Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Fung was a member of 11th
and 12th National Committee of CPPCC, and Standing Committees
of CPPCC (Hainan Province) and CPPCC (Sanya City). Mr. Fung
was appointed as a member of the 12th Executive Committee of
China Federation of Industry and Commerce, and vice-chairpersons
of the 7th and 8th Hainan Federation of Industry and Commerce
(General Chamber) and 11th Guizhou Federation of Industry and
Commerce (General Chamber). Currently serving as a member of
the Population, Resources and Environment Sub-Committee of the
13th National Committee of CPPCC, Mr. Fung has been honored
as “the Hainan’s Top Ten Outstanding Figures”, “the Hainan’s
Outstanding Socialist Builder with Chinese Characteristics”, “China’s
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”, and “the World’s Outstanding Chinese”.
In 2020, Mr. Fung was named as “the Top Ten Hainan Outstanding
Entrepreneurs”.
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Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, aged 65, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since March 2013 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of
the audit committee and nomination committee. Mr. Cheung holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Bachelor Degree in Law from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung also holds two Masters Degrees
respectively in Public Administration and in Laws from the University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung has worked in various government
departments for 12 years, and has over 20 years in the practice of
company law and civil litigation matters. Currently Mr. Cheung is the
senior partner of Messrs. Kelvin Cheung & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.
Mr. Cheung and his law firm have been the legal advisors of a number
of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, asset fund management
firms and non-profit making organizations and charities in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Kwok Choi, aged 51, has been the company secretary
and the financial controller of the Company since September 2018.
Mr. Ng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
majoring in accounting. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in
finance, accounting and listed company secretarial matters. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ng had worked in an international accounting
firm in Hong Kong, and was responsible for accounting, finance and
company secretarial matters for various listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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|
The board (the “Board”) of directors of Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the “Reporting Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, trading
of mineral concentrates and securities investment. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise of property
investment and development, property management services, trading
of mineral products, coal mining and others, details of which are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Year,
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section from pages 6 to 13 of
this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a good standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
employees, and contributes to the community to meet the corporate
and business objectives of the Group. The Group also implemented
energy saving practices in offices where applicable.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from time
to time and will consider taking more effective and efficient measures
and practices in the operations. The environmental policies and
performance of the Group are discussed in more detail in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this Annual
Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group, such as the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
from time to time. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

The Company has received a letter from the Stock Exchange notifying
the Company of its decision that the Company has failed to maintain
a sufficient level of operations and assets of sufficient value to support
its operations under Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules to warrant the
continued listing of its shares, and that the trading of the Company’s
shares will be suspended under Rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rules (the
“Decision”).

On 23 August 2021, the Company lodged a request for the Decision
to be reviewed by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange,
which decided to uphold the Decision on 18 November 2021 (the
“LC Decision”). On 26 November 2021, the Company submitted a
written request for the LC Decision to be referred to the Listing Review
Committee of the Stock Exchange for review under Chapter 2B of the
Listing Rules.

On 21 January 2022, the Listing Review Committee conducted a
review hearing to review the LC Decision. On 14 February 2022,
the Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange notifying
the Company that the Listing Review Committee, having carefully
considered all the facts and evidence, and all submissions presented
by the Company and the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Division”), decided to uphold the LC Decision to suspend
trading in the Shares under Rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rules on the
ground that the Company had failed to comply with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules.

On 23 February 2022, the Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange setting out the following resumption guidance for resumption

of trading in Shares (the “Resumption Guidance”):

e to demonstrate the Company’s compliance with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules.
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The Company must remedy the issues causing its trading suspension
and fully comply with the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange’s
satisfaction before trading in Shares is allowed to resume. The

Company has the primary responsibility to devise its action plan for

resumption. The Stock Exchange may modify or supplement the
Resumption Guidance if the Company’s situation changes.

Under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange may
cancel the listing of any securities that have been suspended from

trading for a continuous period of 18 months.
Company, the 18-month period expires on 14 August 2023.

In the case of the
If the

Company fails to remedy the issue(s) causing its trading suspension,
fulfill the Resumption Guidance and fully comply with the Listing Rules
to the Stock Exchange’s satisfaction and resume trading in Shares
by 14 August 2023, the Listing Division will recommend the Listing
Committee to proceed with the cancellation of the Company’s listing.
Under Rules 6.01 and 6.10 of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange
also has the right to impose a shorter specific remedial period, where

appropriate.

Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been suspended with
effect from 9:00 a.m. on 15 February 2022 and shall remain suspended
until further notice. The Company is taking appropriate steps to resolve
the issue(s) causing its trading suspension and will strive to resume
trading in the Company’s shares as soon as possible.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group intends to reward and recognise performing employees by

providing a competitive remuneration package and to promote career
development and provide opportunities within the Group for career
advancement. The Group encourages employees participation of

external seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates

on areas of industrial,

legal, compliance, financial accounting and

tax knowledge. The Group also encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills which includes seminars, updates on regulatory
requirements and development and corporate governance practices.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good and long-term
relationships with our customers and suppliers to ensure efficient
delivery of products and services and smooth procurement process

respectively.

The Group recognises the importance to protect the interests of

shareholders and the importance of having communication with
them from time to time through annual general meetings, corporate

communications,

announcements.

interim and annual reports as well as results
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TERRERAEEM PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

RBEFE SRR e EAREREKKLSL  During the Reporting Year, the Board identified the principal risks which
FTETEZTERREENRE N THBAZMEE  are likely to affect the Group’s business operations including volatility
W PETELEITEREE (TEBRFRAFERS  and uncertainty in market conditions, changing in industry standards,
M ERB RS ESER - FXRE - IREBE  industry competition and financial risks in the ordinary course of
Bl - EERBEKEERR - AEBRPHNMIFEYE  business, such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk, equity price risk, credit
AREE AR EBEB LY BEEEKRTFFE 2% risk and currency risk. It is essential that the Group is able to respond
LN LREE - in a timely manner to such changes which may adversely affect the
Group’s businesses and financial results.

EEeRRBARRAEEREAETENEAKREIE The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
ERARAREANER AN REZESKEES  management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate the risks
WERET EFSHEB OAKREE 2BE T~  present in our businesses and operations as efficiently and effectively
WMT S ELCEIPT o — SR HNRFERE79  as possible. The Board delegates some of its responsibility of risk
B hEESARE—RBEEBENAILEE] —F - management to various operational departments. Further reviews are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report — Risk
Management and Internal Control” on page 79 of the Annual Report.

XERRE RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
REFBREFEZHEBEH N ARNFRFLBE L F89 The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in the
BrirEBmE - consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 88 and 89 of this

Annual Report.

EEefEZERHEE_TE-__F+-_A=+—H The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year

FEERNEMBEE(ZZE-_—F: &) - ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

ME--BMERNZE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REBZYE BMERBEHENRREFEEN &) Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
BENRE M ERERMI 14 - Group during the Reporting Year are set out in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BREYME INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

NEEZIREMEFBEHNGES B BERMET15  Details of investment properties of the Group are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

B DONATION

RNMEFE  KREBIWEELZEERZ(ZZE-— No charitable donation was made by the Group for the Reporting Year
F M) o (2021: Nil).

BE#EE OTHER BORROWINGS

REBEMBEE Y SHBHNGAMBREMN27 o Detalls of the other borrowings of the Group are set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, revenue generated from the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate accounted for 74.25% of the total
revenue for the year and revenue generated from the largest customer
included therein accounted for 20.17%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 75.96% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 34.11%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the
Reporting Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

There has been no change in the issued share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Year are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance with the provision
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to nil
(as at 31 December 2021: nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of the
Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during
the Reporting Year.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 212 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Reporting Year and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Jian

Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022)
Ms. Liu Jing

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Ms. Liu Yaojia (appointed on 15 September 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Fung Chuen Kin
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 86(2) and 87(1), Ms. Liu
Jing, Mr. Zhou Jianren, Ms. Liu Yaojia and Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors of the Company are set out on pages
14 to 18 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensations). Details of directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transaction” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 26 to 28 of this Annual
Report and notes 21 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
no director of the Company or any entity connected with the director of
the Company had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its holding companies and
subsidiaries was a party during the year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-law 166, every director, officer and
auditors shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out
of assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained
by him as a director, auditors or officer of the Company about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.
The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group during
the Reporting Year and up to the date of this Annual Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Year, save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing Connected Transaction” on
pages 26 to 28 of this Annual Report, the related party transactions
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements did not
either fall within the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction”, or treated as de minimis transactions under
Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBREARXRAERAF

-/



N

BEXS

MN-ZT-—F=FRHA AAFEFEHRITMNELE
weEsRAR (EFDAvEKEEE RS (B
Bzl Bl ARRERGRERE  mEA
BRGREHENEREREEER AR ([FEH
BEKNE]) 22 IE - #R(EH186,000,0007
T([REEE]) - FEBREREETENENE
TENARYMEEREL  UHENBDEARTT
ERELEYE 2+ =EYEHMNAPEILR -

RIEBLHRAUNFEVIAE  ARBEN RFEBREES
RAR(ARBZERER) cEEEEHBAR
WETRARBZBENL -

FVEERRCTEREMNARAKRE N ERBARE
BNAKREZ Lf#EE - WBE AR HEATE
ERZRBBERBE  BAEYNEEREREDE
ZIRRDETE o

BRIEE EWE - 2 & 19312 $£50,000,0007% 7T F
&5 0 8 HiF 133,000,000 7T A & — HAFIE
103,000,000/% 7T 1% & 7 Bl 5 U i 25 18 52 AK B LA 2
EBRERNEZETYELRBEERESIN - &
B IESE  E—PHFBHN AR BHD A
—E - FE=FfRAR-E-_—F+=-A=+H
ZRER -

RZBZ_F+HA-+ARA ARrBEESTHES
BRI M AR L ek - T B EREAR AP
%% (850,000,000 7T) °

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EARXAERAA

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 5 March 2021, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
Macrolink Asia Industrial Investment Limited (the “Vendor”), pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendor
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interests of Macrolink
Development and Investment Limited (“Macrolink Development
and Investment”) at a total consideration of HK$186,000,000 (the
“Acquisition”). Macrolink Development and Investment is principally
engaged in property leasing and property management and operations,
and owns six properties and is entrusted with management of seven
properties. All of the thirteen properties are based in Beijing, the PRC.

As the Vendor is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Macrolink Group
Limited (being the controlling shareholder of the Company), the Vendor
is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The primary purpose of the entering into of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement is to enable the Group to expand its core business in
property development and investment segment through significant
increase in the Group’s land reserves and entry into rapidly growing
districts of Beijing, the PRC in one single transaction.

Deposit of HK$50,000,000 has been paid to the Vendor pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, with the first instalment of
HK$33,000,000 and the second instalment of HK$103,000,000 to
be paid upon completion of the Acquisition and mortgage release
of the certain properties of Macrolink Development and Investment,
respectively. Further details of the Acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 5 March 2021 and 30
December 2021.

On 26 October 2022, the Company and the Vendor entered into
the termination agreement to the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
and the Vendor refunded the deposit paid by the Company (i.e.
HK$50,000,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(1)

(2)

Provision of Property Operation and Management
Services to Macrolink Development and Investment

On 8 February 2021, Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading
Development”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement (the “Property Operation
and Management Agreement”) with Macrolink Development and
Investment to provide property operation and management,
solicitation of business and tenants and other related services
in relation to the thirteen owned and entrusted properties. The
term of the Property Operation and Management Agreement
is three years (i.e. from 8 February 2021 to 7 February 2024),
which would terminate immediately and automatically upon
completion of the Acquisition. The total services fees for the
Property Operation and Management Agreement shall not exceed
RMB12,000,000 per annum.

As Macrolink Development and Investment is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Macrolink Group Limited (being the
controlling shareholder of the Company), Macrolink Development
and Investment is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the entering into of the Property Operation and
Management Agreement is to expand the Group’s source of
income, thereby generating stable income and realizing more
benefits for the Group. Other details of the Property Operation
and Management Agreement are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 8 February 2021.

The annual cap and the actual usage for the provision of property
operation and management services to Macrolink Development
and Investment for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to RMB12,000,000 and RMB12,000,000, respectively.

Provision of Property Entrusted Management
Services to Macrolink Holding Co., Ltd.

On 14 July 2021, Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading
Development entered into a property entrusted management
agreement (the “Property Entrusted Management Agreement”)
with Macrolink Holding Co., Ltd. (“Macrolink”), pursuant to which
Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading Development agreed
to provide Macrolink with property operation and management,
solicitation of business and other related services in relation to
certain entrusted properties for a period of three years from 15
July 2021 to 14 July 2024. The rental income received in relation
to the entrusted properties is shared by Shenzhen Macrolink
Industrial & Trading Development and Macrolink in the ratio of 4:6,
with Macrolink receiving 60% of the rental income and Shenzhen
Macrolink Industrial & Trading Development receiving 40% of the
rental income.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the Reporting Year, Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial &
Trading Development has entered into a termination agreement
with Macrolink to early terminate the property entrusted
management contract entered into on 14 July 2021 with effect
from 30 September 2022.

As Macrolink is an associate of Mr. Fu Kwan, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, Macrolink is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the entering into of the Property Entrusted
Management Agreement is to expand the Group’s source of
income, thereby generating stable income and realizing more
benefits for the Group. Other details of the Property Entrusted
Management Agreement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 July 2021.

The annual cap and the actual usage for the provision of
property entrusted management services to Macrolink for the
year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB9,600,000 and
approximately RMB999,000, respectively.

The continuing connected transactions as detailed in (1) to (2) above
have been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The independent non-executive directors of the Company
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the continuing
connected transaction entered into by the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors of the Company have issued an
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the Group in this
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§



EERFTETHAERES &S

RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H AQFEEKF
ETHRABRARREEMAEEE (EERE
FREEEN ([FHRBAEGG]) BXVELD) 2 &M
([ ]) - HERD RESTHHEEREFSF LY
EIEGI 352 AR B EAR R RRTF 2 E L MR
BEMBAK ST E E BT ABEZHEITES
R HHIZAEST R ([ZAESFRI]) 788 /A QD 5) B
Rz HERRRBRIT -

HR-ALQFEBKRHEECIOCET Z2EER

EEERE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS/!

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

LONG POSITION - ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.10
EACH OF THE COMPANY

HARDABEET

BARBEA

Rl s

Approximate

Percentage

of the

PN £ ZEER R Company’s

EEHE Personal Corporate Total issued share

Name of directors interest interest interests capital®

HE R4 4,500,000 870,145,473 874,645,473 72.51%
Mr. Fu Kwan (Htat1)
(Note 1)

PR B %% 4 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%

Mr. Chan Yeuk

BtiE1 : #870,145, 473D IR FEBEEMBR A AFE -
NEBMEBRBERARNEAEVEEREBRAREEGLD
42.05% - BERAEMABUEERERR AR B ETR
RZT70%Ez » Bt - IRIBEEFSH RBAEKRD - BELLE
18 A 1A870,145, 473D R A #e s ©

Witz : WZ_EZZF+-A=+—H0 ADRAZEETRAR
1,206,249,251[% B {7 °

B EXHEEEN R —F+_A=+—
B BARREZEREBITHRABNA  HEIM
HMWARRESREZTHAEBRARARET
B EAE (E& RFEHF M EGA EXVER) 2 &
m AR EREFEBEREES RBEKIE
3521 FEERAE AR BIRTF 2 B se it SR IR AR 2E <F Al
BBAMARNRHB AT 2 ERIAR -
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Note 1: These 870,145,473 Shares are held by Macrolink Group Limited which is owned
as to approximately 42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited. Mr. Fu
Kwan owns 70% of the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment Company
Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Fu Kwan is deemed to be interested in the 870,145,473
Shares by virtue of the SFO.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of the Company is
1,206,249,251 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, so far as is
known to the directors and chief executives of the Company, no
other directors and chief executives of the Company had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register as required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (LONG POSITION)

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests or short positions of the
persons (other than directors or chief executives of the Company) in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

LR NN
BRITRAMN
BMABEDL
Approximate
Percentage of

FERMEE the Company’s
BREEEB BORESZHE Number of issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital
MR B AR AR (4i2) BEERHA 870,145,473 r2:14%
Macrolink Group Limited (Note) Directly beneficially owned
BUEBEREGRDR (ML) REAE R 870,145,473 72.14%

Truly Industry Investment
Company Limited (Note)

HiaF : #870,145 473D BT EBEEBR A AFEHE -
EBHEERERARNAEVEEREBRARESLD
42.05% c BESXERBELEEREAR AT D HITR
KZT0% s - At - B HFRBAEHKOIME - HEH
EEERAR - BEUEBEREERARILBELERR
B ER S E B R A B T B 2870,145,473M i 9
B -

B EXFIREEIN RE-_—_F+_A=+—
B BARFNESIHESTHRABUIN  WEH
HMATREARBROD EEEROEEREZS X
B E B EXVERE2 R E3D B A B X RIEEFHF
N AR E 60 55336 IR A X TE A A B AR 17 < B 5L it
ZHERIORE o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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E:

Interest in a controlled corporation

Note:  These 870,145,473 Shares are held by Macrolink Group Limited which is owned

as to approximately 42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited.
Mr. Fu Kwan owns 70% of the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment
Company Limited. Therefore, each of Macrolink Group Limited, Truly Industry
Investment Company Limited and Mr. Fu Kwan is deemed or taken to be interested
in the 870,145,473 Shares which are owned by Macrolink Group Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, there was no other
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

At no time during the Reporting Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children under
age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31
December 2022, the following director of the Company was considered
to have interests in the following businesses which competed or were
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the

Group.

Each of Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Ms. Liu Jing and Mr. Chan Yeuk
(collectively the “Relevant Directors”) is either the beneficial owner or
the director and/or senior management of a number of companies
(the “Companies”) in which either Macrolink Holding Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries or the Relevant Directors have beneficial interests. The
businesses engaged by the Companies include property investment

and development,

property management, securities investment and

trading of mineral concentrates.

The above-mentioned businesses are operated and managed by the
Companies with independent management and administration. In
addition, the Board is independent of the boards of the Companies
carrying on the competing businesses. Accordingly, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of the competing
businesses mentioned above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, as at the date of

this Annual Report,

at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the

Company was held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and/or
comparable market statistics. As an incentive for the employees,
bonuses and cash awards may also be given to employees based on
individual performance evaluation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

The Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on pages
67 to 81 of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose
term of office will expire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has
been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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ABOUT THE REPORT

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (“Macrolink” or the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”, or “We”) is
pleased to publish our annual environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) report (the “Report”). The Report summarises the Group’s
ESG management approaches, practices and performance during
the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”),
unless otherwise specified.

The scope of the Report focuses on the Group’s property management
services in the People of Republic of China (“PRC”), and trading of
mineral products business which is principally operated in trading of
mineral concentrates, electrolytic cobalt, nickel beads and nickel beans.
The coal mining business in Peru was continually suspended during the
Reporting Period due to COVID-19 pandemic and the uncertainty of
economic situation and hence there is no disclosure of environmental
performance under this business segment in the Report.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), as well as adhering to the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide. Except for provisions
that the Group considers are inapplicable to our operations, for which
explanations are illustrated in the corresponding section. The ESG
Report has been reviewed and approved by the board of directors of
the Group (the “Board”) on 30 March 2023.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has compiled the ESG Report in accordance with the
following reporting principles.

Materiality

o The Group identified material ESG topics through stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. The details are
explained in the section of “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative

o The Group disclosed the information of the standards,
methodologies and source of conversion factors used for the
reporting of emissions and energy consumption. Please refer to
the relevant section in the ESG Report for details.

Balance

° The ESG Report presented the Group’s environmental and
social performance on an impartial basis to provide an objective
reporting disclosure for readers.

Consistency

o The methodology adopted for disclosing key environmental
and social performance indicators is consistent with that of the
previous Reporting Period.

OUR ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

A well-established ESG governance structure could strengthen the
Group’s ESG management and therefore performances by ensuring the
corresponding principles are fully incorporated throughout the Group’s
business value chain.

Leading the Group towards sustainable development, the Board is
actively engaged in sustainability-related strategy formulation. The
Board oversees the overall ESG strategies, management approaches
and relevant ESG matter across the Group’s various business
segments. Hence, the Group proactively participates in ESG risk
management, identification of material ESG issues, action planning
and related initiatives. It is also the Board’s responsibility to review the
progress and achievement of respective ESG objectives and targets,
and approve the ESG report as submitted by the ESG Taskforce Team.

The internal ESG Taskforce Team advises all ESG-related matters and
guides the implementation of the Group’s ESG initiatives from various
perspectives. The ESG Taskforce Team assists in formulating ESG
strategies, and identifying and analysing ESG risks and opportunities
that may have potential impacts on the Group in risk management. The
ESG Taskforce Team is also responsible for formulating initiatives with
action plans and details that align with the determined ESG strategies.
The ESG Taskforce Team shall also collect relevant ESG management
details and performance data for regular review and compilation of
ESG reports. Progress of relevant ESG management work is regularly
reported to the Board.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§



KO ENSHE

AEETHR BBZTIENRBEFNERR B
RERNERE  NWERFHEHRMAXRBEE
RAIFKEZERBBENTRRYE - LB BERT
FNERR/BLNEE  UREEERRMME
DE - MEERMNER - RMEIRNEZEHD
HEARRERKREE BI EF (BBH K
FFREEHRE - 1 MR - HPIEBRRERR
BHEIBHRODERFEHES  KMERMEETH
DABERE BT EE « TREII KM ASBRELRL
BBEMERAERFNHEL2ENERRE -

B6E
Stakeholders

MERBEEIER

Expectations and Concerns

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognizes the importance of open and transparent
communication with stakeholders through diversified channels for
understanding respective needs and expectations in relevance to
our business operations and sustainable development. It facilitates
our management by prioritizing issues that our stakeholders concern
about the most, as well as promoting idea exchange and knowledge
sharing. We identified our key stakeholder groups as shareholders
and investors, employees, customers, business partners, government
and regulators, community, and media. We have maintained regular
engagement with our key stakeholders through various communication
channels, therefore addressing their concerns with timely actions.
The below table sets forth the adopted communication channels for
engaging our stakeholders to ensure building quality communications.

BERE

Communication Channels

BREBREE . REEEE K
- ABBEHEBE

s ARKEE

o NAIM@U
o REKX®
s RAIRE
o FHMETHME
o BHIRE

Shareholders/ e | ong-term investment returns e Company website
Investors e Sustainable business development e General meetings
e QOperational compliance e Corporate announcements

AT . HEREF
- BERENZE
- BEHE
- BETE

o DEEH

e Annual and interim reports
e Onsite inspection

s EBMNERAM

o WEHEKAE T
e BT ®Z

o FEXRFMIE

o BT

Employees

EF

Customers

e Remuneration and benefits

e QOccupational health and safety
e Career development

e Equal opportunities

e Corporate support

s EmTRBES
o HERLRE

e Products and service quality
e Data privacy protection

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§

Emails and suggestion box
Intranet and internal publications
Employee meeting

Annual performance review
Employee training

EFPERRERKF

%P IR AR

E 3

HEER

Customer feedback and complaints
Customer service hotline

Customer visit

Day-to-day communication

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B0 E
Stakeholders

HERBIEE
Expectations and Concerns

BERE

Communication Channels

BB

Business partners

o BEBIE
o HEARERRE
o REAMATFEHAE

e Business integrity
e Mutual cooperating relationship
e Open and fair procurement

s BETHNER

s HBEHEESZN

o RERKRIZ

s BBRESERER

o EHIIRE

e | awful actions and communications
* On-going direct engagement

e Procurement and tendering

e Strategic cooperation and negotiation
e Onsite inspection

BNEEEHES o BRKE o EHIRR XM
s BITWMER o HEEWMTHER
s BlEBEKRE o BRMELFE
o Wi M ER
Government e Operational compliance e Regular document submission
and regulatory e Fulflment of tax obligations e Regular communication with regulatory
authorities e Job opportunity creation authorities

e Compliance inspections and assessments
e Forum, seminar and conference

#HE o ZEEMMEMAGREE o NEAHUL
o WEEMAMEIRE o HEFH
s XFRIHERKE
Community e Participation in local community and public ¢ Company website

welfare e Community interaction
e Improve local community environment
e Support community investment

% o BRERE o NEHETL
o HEEN
Media ¢ |nformation transparency e Company website

e Media enquiry
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AR

Identification of relevant
ESG topics

ECEEREEREER
B HEeaRERRE R
Review of materiality
matrix and material ESG

BRE #HEehERERS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group conducted a materiality assessment to identify the ESG
topics that are material to the Group and our stakeholders, therefore
directing ESG initiative formulation and reporting disclosure. As
facilitated by an external consultant, we continuously enhance
our process of identifying material ESG topics and strengthen
corresponding management on the recognised focusing area. We are
committed to responding to concerns as highlighted by stakeholders
regarding our management and performance in strengthening our
management of material ESG issues and fulfilling social responsibility in
daily operations.

Process of materiality assessment

CEEZRE HERER

Response to material
ESG topics

topics

e REBAEEMNBEAFX
®RE HERER J
HE S W E A RIT
XRE HERERE
BWEEER  BAIE
EWRE g kEn
AR ©
Based on the Group’s

BIERE  HERER
KEREGEE  11% RENEZEARES
BRBE  RE - e BOHEHNETE@E IS
5 & aMH 2B &8 H - BMAEERSE -
5l BIAEERI 42 HtEREREENER
BEEHAEEME B EHARBEREN T
BEENRE LB RE M e
SRR B E B o According to the

existing businesses, the
requirements of ESG
reporting guidelines,
and industry ESG
management priorities,
potential ESG topics
were identified.
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Considering the
business operations,
industry development
trends, ESG related
standards and
guidelines, we internally
reviewed and plotted
the materiality matrix
with ESG topics that are
material to the Group.

materiality of ESG
issues and key concern
of our key stakeholders,
we determined the
focus area of ESG
management as well
as the direction of the
reporting disclosure.

HOE B E A ER

n
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EEMEE

EEMEME
Materiality Matrix

BEEM

High Materiality

hEEM
Moderate Materiality

BEEHY
Low Materiality

MBI (HBOENEE)
External assessment (impact to stakeholders)

R - HEBRERRE
AENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Materiality Matrix

REEMY hEEM SEEH
Low Materiality Moderate Materiality High Materiality

AEFHE (HREBNRE)

Internal assessment (impact to business)

[E ™ Aspects EE MR E Materiality Issue

RIE 1) PEE 2 Emission Management
Environmental 2) K BEKE T2 Water & Wastewater Management
3) A BE 22 Ecological Impacts
4) BEEEY M AZEYWHEIE Waste & Hazardous Materials Management
5) F &1L Climate Change
HE 6) ¥ FEEZ % Occupational Health & Safety
Social 7) A 118 7R3 B Human Capital Development
8) E SR E & Product Design and Quality
9) P8 ¥ 8 1% Business Ethics
10)  ESFAR KRB Compliance with Laws and Regulations
11) LB R E8UE Z 2 Privacy and Data Security
12) HFEHEEIE Supply Chain Management
13) &% %E Community Investment
=) 14)  RIR - HgKEIRAE ESG Governance
Governance 15) ¥ 1{p#% & Stakeholder Communication
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The materiality of each ESG topic is illustrated in the materiality matrix
after an internal evaluation. The ESG topics that are categorized as
high materiality are fell on the top right quadrant of the matrix. The
result of the materiality matrix and the identified material ESG topics are
reviewed and finalized by the senior management and the Board.

Based on the result of the materiality assessment and the reporting
principle, the disclosure of the Report is mainly focused on the ESG
topics categorised as being of high materiality. The Group considers
providing also the overall management approaches on ESG topics
categorised as being of moderate materiality and low materiality of
the Group, so as to provide the overall picture to stakeholders in
ESG management. The Group would continue to review the existing
ESG strategies, policies, and objectives therefore optimizing the
ESG performance and reporting disclosure in pursuit of continuous
improvement.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group integrates sustainability into corporate development and
daily business operations, thereby minimizing potential environmental
impacts. The Group has adopted various control measures to ensure
the optimal use of resources and reduce emissions and waste
generation across our business segments. We strictly comply with all
applicable laws and regulations in the regions where we operate. For
example, the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law
of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise, the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact
Assessment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any breaches
of the environmental laws and regulations.
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Emissions

The Group is committed to identifying and managing any
significant environmental impacts responsibly. We have obtained
the required licenses in relevance to our business segments, It is
also the Group’s responsibility to monitor our operation thereby
reducing waste emissions and improving resource utilization
efficiency. We believe that our efforts to limit waste emissions
and optimize resource efficiency can benefit both the industry
and the community.

As emission management is not considered as the Group’s
material ESG issues following with the coal mining business
being suspended. We will continue to assess its influences on
our stakeholders and our business respectively, before setting
any emission targets in the future.

1.1. Air Emissions

The Group’s major source of air emission is associated
with the fuel combustion of machinery equipment and
vehicles in coal mine sites, and the daily transportation
of company vehicles in property management services.
With no resumption of production coal mining during
the Reporting Period, no significant air emission was
produced and recorded.

1.2. Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The GHG emissions of the Group are derived from fuel
combustion from machinery and vehicles owned by
the Group (“Scope 1 emission”), the consumption of
purchased electricity (“Scope 2 emission”) in offices and
premises. The GHG emissions are closely linked with the
Group’s energy consumption.

Apart from the inevitable use of fossil fuels and electricity
in business operations, the Group strives to minimize
the environmental impact of its daily operations by using
cleaner fuels and adopting advanced technology to filter
emitted gases. We are making every effort to monitor,
reduce, and mitigate environmental risks.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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Waste Management

Domestic waste is our major non-hazardous waste
generated from daily operations across our business
segments. The Group has been actively promoting
sustainable practices in waste management by
encouraging waste sorting and recycling. To further
reduce unnecessary waste, we have adopted green
office management across business segments. Various
measures and initiatives are applied with reference to the
Useful Tips for Green Office Management as introduced
by the Government, including but not limited to:

Avoid overstocking of office materials;

° Install recycling bins to collect recyclables, such as
waste paper, metal, plastic and glass bottles;

o Make sure that the recyclables collected are
collected by the property management personnel
and recyclers for proper recycling; and

° Donate Waste from Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (“WEEE”, such as computer, printer,
photocopier, kettle or microwave, etc.) to
charitable organisations or send them to recyclers
for processing.

As waste management is not considered as one of the
Group’s material issues following with the coal mining
business being suspended. We will continue to assess
its influences on our stakeholders and our business
respectively, before setting any targets in the future.
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Use of Resources

The Group seeks to perform effective resource management
to foster sustainable development. Resource conservation has
been strongly promoted across the Group’s business segments.
We have been encouraging responsible procurement and
reasonable consumption of energy and resources, not only to
promote efficient resource usage and to reduce environmental
impact, but also to significantly reduce unnecessary
operational costs. The Group encourages our employees to
act environmentally in their day-to-day activities and cultivate
greener corporate culture by enhancing their environmental
awareness.

The Group’s major energy consumption is associated with diesel
and purchased electricity usage. Referencing the Useful Tips for
Green Office Management as introduced by the Government, the
Group has adopted certain measures in our offices and facilities
for energy saving, including but not limited to:

° Raise environmental awareness among our customers
and business partners as our top priority;

° Switch off electrical appliances when they are not in use
(such as air-conditioning, computer, printer, photocopier,
lighting, etc.);

° Reduce energy use by purchasing energy-efficient office

equipment, electrical appliances, and machinery (such as
those with a Grade 1 energy designation);

o Replace the old-aged office equipment with more
energy-efficient models to enhance energy efficiency;

° Replace with energy-efficient lights, such as LED
luminaires in our offices and facilities;

° Install thermometers in the office to monitor the
temperature;
° During summertime, maintain an average indoor

temperature between 24 — 26°C to save energy; and

° Place energy-saving reminder signs nearby office
equipment and light switches to further enhance
employees’ environmental awareness.
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In order to utilize resource usage, the Group also strives to
promote a paperless office environment. Therefore, the Group
has been utilising electronic means, such as email, e-newsletter
and intranet, for daily communication and disseminating
information to avoid paper printing. Electronic greeting cards are
used by staff during festive occasions, such as Christmas and
Lunar New Year. Moreover, we set double-sided printing as the
default printing mode and encourage our employees to re-use
single-sided paper for drafting and printing.

We have also been actively implementing water conservation
measures throughout our business operation. Therefore,
energy-efficient facilities and amenities are installed. For
example, the Group has installed water-saving taps in our offices
and facilities. We also encourage our employees to develop
sustainable lifestyles, preserving water and electricity in their
daily lives. Furthermore, we have placed signages regarding
water conservation in the pantry and restrooms to raise
employees’ awareness of water conservation. The Group did not
have any issue in sourcing water during the Reporting Period.

As resource management is not one of the Group’s material
issues following with the coal mining business being suspended.
We will continue to assess its influences on our stakeholders
and our business respectively, before setting any targets in the
future.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group acknowledges ecological protection is one of the
Group’s material issues. However, with the suspension of our
coal mining business, our major business during the Reporting
Period was mainly office work and did not involve a high level
of pollution. Despite that, we keep track of our environmental
performances and assess the potential impacts that the Group’s
operation and development may pose to the environment. We
will continue to assess influences associated with our various
business segments on the environment, our stakeholders and
our business respectively, before setting any targets in the
future. The Group did not cause any substantial impact on the
environment or natural resources during the Reporting Period.
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Climate Change

With the release of the 14th Five-Year Plan together with
the Paris Agreement to prevent further increases in global
temperature, the Group understands the importance of
recognizing and managing climate change risks. In light of the
rising concerns of climate change, we have been taking steps to
analyse and mitigate such risks proactively by considering the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosure (“TCFD”) framework. Several physical and transition
risks are identified and managed to address the concerns and
the impacts on our business operations.

Physical risks

° Acute risk: The growing severity of extreme weather
events (e.g. frost, snowstorm and hail) may cause
damage to our office buildings and/or other premises,
such as coal mines, and further interrupt our business
operation and increase the maintenance cost.

o Chronic risk: The increased severity and frequency
of extreme weather events (e.g. flooding caused by
rising seawater levels and heatwave) may cause the
office building and/or other premises, to submerge and
further interrupt our business operation. The increase in
energy consumption at our offices to maintain the room
temperature at comfort level, together with the rising
demand for inspection and maintenance to ensure coal
mine safety, would increase the operating cost.

Transition risks

° Market risk: Higher demand for more clean fuels may
result in a shift of customer preferences and cause a
negative financial impact on the coal mining business,
while the trading of mineral concentrates business may
flourish globally due to the rising demand for nickel on the
batteries used in electric vehicles.

Taking the recommendations of the TCFD framework into
consideration, the Group strives to enhance the governance
processes and integrate the climate-related risks and
opportunities into our future risk assessment. Moving forward,
the Group will keep monitoring the impact of climate change on
our business and formulate preventive countermeasures to avoid
such impact in the future. Although climate change is not one
of the Group’s material issues currently, relevant target-setting
would be considered as we continue to assess its influences on
our stakeholders and our business respectively.
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

5.

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group regards our employees’ efforts as the key factor in
maintaining our competitiveness. We recognize and respect the
workplace’s diversity. The Labour Policy is set with reference
to the law and regulations of the operational regions, including
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest days, compensation and employee welfare and
benefits. The policy assures a safe, fair and inclusive workplace
as the ultimate goal.

The Group offers a wide range of benefits and cares to its
employees. Our competitive remuneration package includes
but is not limited to social security, medical insurance, and a
retirement scheme, in compliance with the relevant local labour
laws and regulations. We pay close attention to employees’
physical and mental health as well. Therefore, we provide
sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, and parental leave
apart from statutory leaves and annual leaves. We believe
that promoting work-life balance and cultivating a harmonious
working culture in the Group could motivate our employees
to deliver satisfactory performance and attain business
sustainability.

Diversified and Inclusive Working Environment

In addition to legal and regulatory requirements, we also attach
great emphasis on the protection of the fundamental human
rights and freedoms of our employees by constantly enhancing
our internal policy. Adhering to the principle of fairness and
transparency, we are committed to providing equal opportunities
for all our potential candidates and employees in the entire
employment procedures, including recruitment, remuneration,
promotion, and training. The Group aims to create a diversified
and inclusive workplace, bringing together talents from different
geographic locations, backgrounds, and ethnicities. We strictly
prohibit discrimination against any employee based on gender,
age, family status, sexual orientation, disability, race, and
religion, ensuring objectivity in our decision-making process.
We only review the candidates’ individual performance, ethics,
qualifications, working experience and attitudes, which meet our
employment requirements.
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Zero-tolerance Policy for Unethical Employment
Practices

In order to respect and safeguard human rights, all operations
are aligned with high standards of ethical behaviour and labour
rights protection. We rigorously prohibit any type of child and
forced labour in the workplace. Identification and qualification
checks are required for all job candidates and workers, to
confirm the candidates are met the legal age to work under the
laws and regulations. Meanwhile, all the employment contract is
voluntarily signed by the employees, and they reserve the right
to resign from existing position.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant labour laws and
regulations' in Hong Kong, PRC and Peru. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any breaches of the labour
laws and regulations, no use of child and forced labour were
noticed.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 26 employees, all of
which are full-time employees. Our voluntary turnover rate was
17.5%.

Health and Safety
6.1. Occupational Health and Safety

As the Group’s operations of trading mineral products
and providing property management services are mainly
housed in offices, there are no significant anticipated
occupational health and safety hazards. Despite this, the
Group attaches great importance to employee health and
safety. All business and employment practices strictly
comply with the Labour Law of the PRC, the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases Law of the PRC,
the Fire Control Law of the PRC, and other relevant local
laws and regulations.

The laws and regulations that are significant to the Group, including the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“HKSAR”), the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282) of HKSAR, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) of HKSAR, and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) of HKSAR, the Labour Law of the PRC ({(/
#= AR HMELE %)), the Labour Contract Law of the PRC ({2 A R A MBI 2

4 [AJ%)) and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using of Child Labour ({2 11 A=
THMRED), the Law of Productivity and Labour Competitiveness of Peru, the TUO
del D. Leg. 728 — Ley de Productividad y Competitividad Laboral (Work Ministry
law of productivity and competitiveness).
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6.2.

HEREBHRSE

In addition to adhering legal compliance, the Group
strives to minimize occupational risks in order to provide
a safe and healthy workplace for its employees. Some
key OHS measures implemented in our office during the
Reporting Period are as follows:

° Maintain good housekeeping in the working and
office area;

° Provide sufficient storage space on the working
table;

° Arrange regular office inspection and maintenance;

o Equipped with first aid kits for instance minor injury

treatment; and

° Raise the safety awareness of our employees
on the use of display screen equipment, manual
handling and the fire safety.

To raise our employees’ safety awareness and
capabilities in handling emergencies, fire drills are
also regularly conducted by the building management
company.

Safety Measures in response to COVID-19
Pandemic

Since the widespread outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, we have been closely monitoring the pandemic
situation in the regions where we operate. To protect
the health and well-being of our employees, we have
strictly adhered to the pandemic prevention policies and
regulations implemented by the local governments.

To reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission, we
have been strictly following the health advice issued
by the Centre of Health Protection in Hong Kong and
implemented the following key preventive measures:

o Keep the environment clean and regularly disinfect
frequently touched surfaces;

o Increase the stockpile amount of pandemic
prevention equipment, such as masks and
sanitizers;

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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° Require employees to undergo a daily body
temperature check to ensure they are fit to work;

o Require our employees to stay home when they
feel unwell and/or are showing symptoms of
COVID-19, seek medical attention and report to
relevant personnel for the record;

o Require employees to perform hand hygiene
frequently and maintain good personal hygiene;

o Require our employees and visitors to wear
surgical masks all the time;

o Circulate health advice and updated news to
raise employee awareness on COVID-19 infection
prevention practices; and

° Reduce face-to-face meetings and site visits with
online meetings, to avoid physical contact and
keep adequate social distancing.

For the Group’s property management business in the
PRC, the COVID-19 pandemic situation in the PRC is
relatively stable, as supported by the high countrywide
vaccination rate. Despite the lockdowns in multiple cities
in China during 2022, the Group had been regularly
reviewing the operation practices in a timely manner in
accordance with the most updated COVID-19-related
advice and regulations in the regions where we operate.
For example, the mass community testing arrangements,
travel restrictions, and lockdowns. Also, subject to
lockdown or quarantine orders, we strive to provide
sufficient support to our employees.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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Development and Training

The Group is dedicated to enhancing our employee’s latest
knowledge and skillsets by providing training and development
opportunities, in order to keep abreast with changing market
trends and development. The Group focuses on the cultivation
and growth of talent and provides different types of training
and development opportunities with the latest knowledge and
skillsets.

On-the-job training to the employees is provided to our
employees to equip them with practical skills and technical
knowledge for performing their duties effectively. For instance,
the Group provides our employees to attend external training
courses organised by our suppliers with the topic of the
prospect and price trend of Nickel. All employees in different
position levels are encouraged to have continuous education
and self-learning and improve their work capabilities. We
believe such training and development arrangement could
unleash the potential of employees, assist their long-term career
development, and keep them abreast of changing market trends
and developments.

Supply Chain Management

With collaboration with our business partners, the Group
endeavours to accomplish mutually sustainable corporate
development. Before cooperating and engaging with new
business partners, the Group will conduct comprehensive
background checks by evaluating various criteria. For instance,
qualifications, aptitude, service calibre, and prior business
and compliance track records. These assessments can help
guarantee the ability of potential suppliers to deliver reliable
products and services. On the other hand, we conduct
regular performance evaluations for our existing suppliers and
contractors, assessing the quality of products and services,
delivery, as well as after-sale services. The Group is accountable
for constantly maintaining our suppliers’ performance up to our
standards and expectations.

In addition to the provision of high-quality products and services,
the Group is also aware of environmental protection and
occupational health and safety. All the suppliers and contractors
are expected to sustain adequate environmental awareness,
as well as occupational health and safety management control.
Apart from complying with applicable laws and regulations, they
are also expected to minimise the environmental and social risks
in our business cooperation.

During the Reporting Period, we engaged in a total of 31
suppliers from Mainland China.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Product Responsibility

One of the major pillars of the Group’s business development
and operation is the provision of high-quality products and
services. Management procedures have been implemented
to assure the delivered products and services meet the
expectations and standards of our customers, and assure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and industry
practices.

The Group adopts the official nickel pricing established by
the London Metal Exchange (the “LME”) for trading in mineral
concentrates. The Group could standardize the trading prices
based on the global price. Only LME-approved parties could
exclusively collaborate with the Group and they are strictly
required to adhere to the LME’s specifications for quality,
shape and weight. In order to ensure the products consistently
complied with the requirements and internationally recognized
standards prior to export and delivery, the Group also acquires
independent laboratory tests, inspection reports and quality
certificates from vendors. All pertinent contract agreements are
prepared in compliance with relevant contract specifications,
including but not limited to pricing periods, settlement terms,
and traded and cleared currencies.

The Group maintains a transparent and open dialogue with
our clients on the issues of property management and agency
services. We offer a sufficient definition of the occupier’s service
standards to prevent communication gaps with the occupier and
dissatisfaction.

Meanwhile, information privacy is another key element to be
taken care of. In view of the raising concern over information
privacy, all our employees from every business segment are
required to take precautions to uphold the strict confidentiality
of all the information of corporate and customers as outlined
in our code of conduct. For instance, trade secrets, business
forecasts, and pricing. Without prior consent from the Group
and customers, employees are prohibited to divulge, copy or
disclose any information to unauthorised persons and third
parties. To prevent data leakage and unauthorized access and
protect data, a series of administrative, physical and technical
measures are implemented. Any employee who violates the
regulations is subject to disciplinary actions and legal liability.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any

breaches of relevant laws and regulations pertaining to product
quality and safety and privacy issues.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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Anti-Corruption

The Group recognizes business integrity and ethics are the
premises of continuous business development. We expected
our employees to perform high standards of professionalism
and business conducts in our business operations and dealings,
which is stipulated in our code of conduct. All employees
are required to comply with the relevant laws and regulations
on anti-corruption (e.g. the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201) of HKSAR, the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615) of HKSAR, and
the Criminal Law of the PRC ( {(AEARLMEFE) ), the
Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC ( {F#E A RFEXME =

B L) ), the Law of the PRC on Anti-money Laundering
((REARKEFMBIRESEE) ), the Inter-American Convention
Against Corruption, the Peruvian Criminal Code (Legislative
Decree No. 635) Articles 393-A and 397-A, and the Corporate
Anti-Corruption Act of Peru) and the obligations as stated in the
Employment Contract.

As introduced in the Group’s anti-corruption policy, an ethical
environment in the workplace contributes to profitability,
secures trust with stakeholders, improves operational efficiency
and enhances the mutual trust among staff at all levels. The
Group takes a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms of
bribery and corruption and is committed to observing and
upholding high standards of business integrity, honesty, fairness,
impartiality and transparency in all its business dealings at
all times. We strictly prohibit any form of fraud or bribery,
and are committed to the prevention, deterrence, detection,
reporting and investigation of all forms of fraud and bribery.
Specific requirements are outlined, regarding the acceptance
of advantage, offer of advantage, entertainment, conflict of
interest, documentation, and the reporting and investigation
procedures. In addition, we provide regular anti-corruption
training and briefing to all employees. Further training will also
be arranged to ensure that employees are aware of the Group’s
anti-corruption practices as well as compliance with laws,
regulations and standards of conduct, which are relevant to
their respective fields of business. To improve the effectiveness
of relevant management, the Group would review regularly the
anti-corruption policy.
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11.

The whistleblowing policy is in place to enable our employees
and other parties to raise concerns about any suspected cases
of misconduct, malpractice, impropriety, unethical or unfair
treatment through our established reporting channel. To ensure
the confidentiality of the whistleblowing mechanism and to
prevent unfair treatment and reprisal, all information received
including the identity of the whistle-blower will be treated where
possible in the strictest confidentiality. In addition, regular
monitoring and assessments are conducted to ensure the
effectiveness of the internal control system. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not organize any anti-corruption training
to employees though, the Group is planning to arrange relevant
training in coming year.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or
its employees.

Community Investment

The Group fulfils its corporate social responsibility and
contributes to the community through our active engagement,
in order to disseminate the spirit of service and care for the
community to create sustainable societal value. Therefore,
through community services and sponsorship programmes, we
strive to leverage our resources to promote a positive social
atmosphere and encouragement to build a closer bonding with
our community, through community services.

With the impact being brought by the COVID-19 pandemic,
social distancing measures and lockdowns pose limitations and
difficulties when organizing community activities. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not organize any community
activities or donations. However, the Group would continue to
assess the pandemic situation, and seek opportunities to invest
in and engage with local communities in the future.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

RIEXRIE Environmental Performance

B —ED =B —-F —EEF

Unit 20221 2021 2020
BRpER
Types of emissions
B E R R
GHG emissions?
HE1-EHEHER WE —EALIRE 2 3@ A 4990 500
Scope 1 - Direct emissions?® tCO,e Not applicable ' '

E2— 4 W —EtixE 2
wE2-MEAR R Rt 668 . .
Scope 2 - Indirect emissions* tCOe
BERBHERES MR tiRE 8
16.68 63.77 3.63
Total GHG emission tCOe
B YRS
Type of waste®
BEREY NI i A A iE A E A
Hazardous waste tonne Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
Non-hazardous waste
e —REEY yNL EAIRE e BRI EUR EmAFEUR
° General Waste tonne No available data No available data No available data
EREEER
Types of resource consumption
gER
Energy
o GEHS TR 3@ A
157,563.59 7,701.65
o Diesel® kWh Not applicable
e E TR
23,588.00 29,091.00 3,056.00

° Electricity kWh
ab \2" 4 = S H\i
RRURE AR ) TR 23,588.00 186,654.59 10,757.65
Total energy consumption kWh
K7 s | 1S EUE \mA S EUR o
Water’ gallon No available data No available data
£ 8 /\HE\
%& i 0.440 0.035 0.09
Paper? tonne
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HEES SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

ETRER Employee Profile
ERBR ETAE B B 10111213

Employment Profile® Number of employees  Turnover rate!%!"1213
(%)

& Bl

By Gender

Es 16 37.8
Male

E26 10 10.0
Female

RE AR

By Age Group

1873% £ 3075% 2 0
Age 18 to 30

315% 2 455% 9 21.1
Age 31 to 45

4615% Z605%, 13 33.3
Age 46 to 60

B0BX LA £ 2 10.0
Age 60 or above

®RitE
By Geographical Region
e 10 9.5
Hong Kong
B K B 9 22.2
Mainland China
MR 7 55.6
Peru
BEREHZE2ER Occupational Health and Safety Profile

—E-= —EBE-—F —EBEC-EF

2022 2021 2020
TEHEBAET 0 0 0
Work-related fatalities
TYEEEEIN 0 0 0
Work-related accidents
THEXBE 0 0 0
Lost days of work-related injury
;g“g?;"g fjr‘“%'mﬁé' ’g"'%'"“ LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & #§
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BHRRIFIER

Development and Training Profile

BT I —E-C
Employee Training 2022
EER=HIFCESS 21 10.0
Total hours of employee training
ZXBIETIADL 3.85
Percentage of employees who received training
8 T I8 TR 8 0.38
Average hours of employee training
EZEIET 15 15 9 R B
B 2 Lt (%) (B BI)
Percentage of Average
employees trained training hours
(%) (hours/employee)
=14 5
By gender
-5 6.25 0.63
— Male
—-X 0 0
- Female
®iERAER
By employment category
—-=SREEBAR 11.1 1.11
— Senior Management
—FREEAE 0 0
— Middle Management
——MRET 0 0
— General Staff
HEBER Supplier Profile
EEYE T —E=-=
Country/City 2022
A BE 31

Mainland China
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Note:

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown of Peru since Q2
2020, the mining activities at our coal mines continued to be suspended in 2022,
in order to follow the pandemic preventive measure of the local government for
preventing virus transmission and hence we only maintain necessary administration
operation in mine office — therefore excluding mining-related environmental
performance data for the disclosure. Due to the business nature, no packaging
materials are utilised in our business segments as we are not engaged in
manufacturing industry. For the disclosure of 2021, environmental performance
data of the operation in Beijing, Shenzhen and Hong Kong is covered. However for
the disclosure of 2022, due to limited data availability and relatively small footprint
as associated with the operation in Beijing, only environmental performance data of
the operation in Shenzhen and Hong Kong is covered.

The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions is made with reference to the latest
update in national baseline emission factors as released by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the PRC, “How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEX and international
standards such as ISO 14064 and GHG Protocol, 2020 sustainability report of HK
Electric and the UNDP Environmental Performance Reporting Tool.

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emission covers the direct emissions from the
combustion of fuels in mobile sources controlled by the Group.

Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission covers the indirect energy emission from the
purchased electricity consumption by the Group.

The waste generated in the operation of mineral concentrates trading and property
management business is collected by the property management company
and hence there is no available data for information disclosure. Due to the
suspension of work for coal mining during the Reporting Period, no hazardous and
non-hazardous waste generation at coal mines was recorded in 2022.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of fuels consumption to energy units
are with reference to CDP Technical note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh in
2020. Due to limited data availability and relatively small environmental footprint
associated with mobile fuel consumption, mobile fuel consumption is not covered
for the disclosure of 2022.

The water billing of mineral concentrates trading and property management
business is included in the office rental fee and hence there is no available data for
information disclosure. Due to the suspension of work for coal mining during the
Reporting Period, no water consumption at coal mines was recorded in 2022.

The figure covered the consumption in mineral concentrates trading and property

management business in 2022 but covered only that in mineral concentrates
trading service in 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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9. RIZZZZF  BTIASKEIBEBXNETERED 9. The figure of employee number and employee turnover in 2022 covers only the
BIAKE BERWENEL -BBRREETHAHEE - operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Peru. The data is calculated based

on the number of headcounts.

10. BREAEE T EMER MR- 10. The turnover rate covers employee voluntary resignations and retirements.

11. ERETHBREXENEIHBAEKRIABITRENTEY 11. The overall employee turnover rate equals the total number of employee turnover
(=R divided by the average of total number of employees.

12. ETHBMEENAREERARMNE THBESKRIAEH 12. The employee turnover rate equals the total number of employee turnover in
HRIZE R E TR FHE - corresponding gender group divided by the average total number of employees in

the gender group.

13. ETHBMERENAREEHRARME THBREHBRIAEH 13. The employee turnover rate equals the total number of employee turnover in
FRAFNBE THENFHE - corresponding age group divided by the average total number of employees in the
age group.
o MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG Reporting Guide

ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

BE @

Section/Explanation

BHRERE

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

EREE
Governance
Structure

B =R = Al
Reporting
Principles

HESEHHMER EFRHETINAD

() BREEFGURE HEREAFENEE:

(i) EFEMNIRE  LSRERTEFI LR - 2IETE - @R
FIREREEZNRE HeREAEBERE (BEHEITAED
R BB - &k

(iy EFSWAKRRE LSLERHBEERIES  UHREE
Il R EE1T AE TS B R o

A statement from the board containing the following elements:

() adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(i)  the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including
the process used to evaluate, prioritize and manage material
ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses);
and

(i) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to the
issuer’s businesses.

Wl RBERERE L8 MREAMERMAER THIERRA

BEM RS HEREAREEEE  ORAEERE HERE
AEENBIEREEEEAZMNEL  (MNETADETERES
5 BHRNEEHHENRRRETARHELRNBRRER -

Bit: BRERIRE ERER (WER) MANEE - 775 - R&R
R/SEFETANER  URAEROEREZNRRETRE -

— M BITARERSE HgMESRETRES AN BRE
BIEFENEE (M) EMEMFERERLRNEFAER -

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the
following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG report:

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors; (i) if
a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of significant
stakeholders identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s
stakeholder engagement.

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of conversion
factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy consumption
(where applicable) should be disclosed.

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant factors
affecting a meaningful comparison.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EARXAERAA

N

BMOERER g kER/EEFL
Our ESG Management Approach

B ¥R R Al
Reporting Principles
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B-HERERBREES
ESG Reporting Guide

HEREBHRSE

B RE

Section/Explanation

B %R &8
Reporting
Boundary

A1 BERD

A1 Emission

A1

BEEN
EEA11
KPI A1.1

BEEN
IB1EA1.2
KPI A1.2

BEEN
{EZA1.3
KPI A1.3

BRAN
ERA14
KPI A1.4

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§

fRIEIRIR - ?i@&a/uﬁ&iﬁﬁi#&%*l N fi it P 33 B L B B8 ok 2K K
MARE HERERAREHNBIE EERBEGNE  BITAR
BEIRzEREBHREA -

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the
scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for the
change.

—RWE
BRBERMBERBIN  MKEIOEs  AEREEREEYD
EEEH

(a) X &

(o) BFHEBITABERZEMMEEAZRAG
B E R o

General Disclosure

Information:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BEng W E SR S AR B B

The types of emissions and respective emission data.

B (EEN) Rt REZ (BE2) BEREBHERE (AMEFTE) k(1
HA)ZE(WMASESEM - SERXBTE) -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

FFrEEBEEEYEE (IBEETE) &k (iE
i~ BIEREFE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

AR EE (WMABEESE

Pﬁ?iﬁifﬁwﬂi(u WEEtE
1_L ‘-‘IE fl‘/@,n-l—

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

R (ERA) ZE (ML BEES

About the Report

1. By

1. Emissions

1. B —1.1 BEREEIR
B3R B IR IR

1. Emissions -

1.1 Air Emissions

Key Performance Indicators

1HERI —1.2 RERBBHEM
LA B IR

1. Emissions -

1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Key Performance Indicators

1. B —1.3 BEEME IR
B SRE R R

1. Emissions —

1.3 Waste Management
Key Performance Indicators

1. BERY —1.3 EEYEE
BB R R

1. Emissions -

1.8 Waste Management
Key Performance Indicators

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B @

Section/Explanation

BEREN RIRPIEI L EVHE N E B IR R RERE L B R ERERE P58 -
B51EA15 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
KPI A1.5 them.

EREAN MMERAERBEEEEYN L A ET AR E R ERR
1E1EA1.6 EIELEEMEBR TR -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are

handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

A2 ERER

A2 Use of Resources

A2 — PRI EE
BUERER (BIEER KEREMERMR) KK -

General Disclosure
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BREN RENESHERER KEEER(WNE - Raoa) LFEE (UTET

EEA2.1 RRFE)REE(WASGESSEMN  BHERETE) -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity
and mobile) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BREN BEKEREE(WMNGESEM  BERKRBTH) -

51EA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

KPI A2.2 volume, per facility).

BREN R PET Y ERE A N B R R AERE LB RAERIA 8

81EA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to

KPI A2.3 achieve them.

BREN HACSKEGERKR ER B EABE - AR ZOAKE B ER

EEA2.4 REINEE BRI EER -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

ERAEAN S mATAREMHNEE (AN E) &k (ER) SEESRES -
81EA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
KPI A2.5 applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

m MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EARXAERAA

N

—

CHER — 11 BERYER
. Emissions
1.1 Air Emissions

—_

—

CBER 1.3 EEEWER
. Emissions
1.3 Waste Management

—_

N

. BIREM

. Use of Resources

N

2. BR{EHA

el g ve= s

2. Use of Resources

Key Performance Indicators

2. BREH

7 4B IR 1S

2. Use of Resources

Key Performance Indicators

2. BIREA

et

2. Use of Resources

Key Performance Indicators

2. BR{EHA

EE et

2. Use of Resources

Key Performance Indicators

EREXBNE  AEENKER

I AE B R #YL -

Due to the business nature, no
packaging materials is used in the

Group’s operations.
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BE @

Section/Explanation

BERRARARER
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 — PRI EE
WERBITAHRERRAAEREKEXNZENILE
General Disclosure
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BERAEAN MR EBEBHEHBRRERRAERNEATERERNEEEBTE
5 1ZA3.1 BITE -
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment

and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

A4 RIRE1L

A4 Climate Change

A4 — AR EE
;%%IJ&JEQE%« ARgHETAELATENEARGEREED
26>
General Disclosure
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

BREN WACE LA EBRTAELENENEARRHEBEE  hEY

EEA4.1 78 -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

B1 Ef&

B1 Employment

B1 — PRI EE
FEFMREE BEREAN IERH RPY TEHe 23

b~ RIBAR A B B At 155 48 B AR A RO

(a) BR: &
(b) BFHBETABEAFENMAREEZLED
B E K} o

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer. Relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§

3. BREBRRAER
3. The Environment and Natural
Resources

3. RIERRAER
3. The Environment and Natural
Resources

N

RIRZIE
4. Climate Change

N

. RIREE
4. Climate Change

5 EERSB TR
5. Employment and Labour
Standards

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Section/Explanation

BREN BIER - EREE - FiRERIBEE DHNIES AR -
EEB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
KPI B1.1 geographical region.
BREN RIS FiRER MRS DNEERKL X -
{51&B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
KPI B1.2 region.
B2 @EREZ 2
B2 Health and Safety
B2 — MR E
FARHLZE2TIHEREIREEERLBEMBEN
(a) BE: R
(o) BTHETABEATENHBEERELBRD
B EHL o
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
BHREX AT T ABREEK -
E#EB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
KPI B2.1
BREN EITEEEXTIERE -
{5#ZB2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
KPI B2.2
BERAN PR B ERERELT 2ERE - ARBBERITRERG X -
{5 &B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
KPI B2.3 how they are implemented and monitored.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EARXAERAA

N

5. BB &RE TR

BB R IR

5. Employment and Labour
Standards

Key Performance Indicators

5. fE 1% K55 T 4R
BB IR IR

5. Employment and Labour
Standards

Key Performance Indicators

6. @FREZ 2
6. Health and Safety

6. ZRMLE 6.1 MERFHELS
BB IR T

6. Health and Safety —

6.1 Occupational Health and Safety
Key Performance Indicators

6. @EHMLE—6.1 BERREALZD
B R R R

6. Health and Safety —

6.1 Occupational Health and Safety
Key Performance Indicators

6. ML —6.1 BERERELD
6. Health and Safety —
6.1 Occupational Health and Safety
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Section/Explanation

B3 # & R iE3
B3 Development and Training
B3 — R E
FRARTEERIT TEBRE N ANE R RREREE - #HAUEIES -
General Disclosure
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BREN RUEMNKEEEMN (WERERE HREBEE) AI>NXIEER
E#EB3.1 D e
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
BREN RUERIREERERMNED -  BHREBTHREINN TR -
$51ZB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
KPI B3.2 employee category.
B4 & T %8|
B4 Labour Standard
B4 — AR EE
BRI IEETSREHETH
(a) BE Rk
(o) BTFEHBITABERZENRBER LA
B &R
General Disclosure
Information relating to preventing child and forced labour:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
BREN R REEMEEABEE T RBHLT -
181EB4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
KPI B4.1 child and forced labour.
BEREN M E IR ERBENEERE BB TR 5
{5¥EB4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
KPI B4.2 discovered.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§

7. BRRIE
7. Development and Training

7. BRERE
BB R R
7. Development and Training
Key Performance Indicators

7. BRRIE
BB BRI
7. Development and Training
Key Performance Indicators

5 EFERSBTAR
5. Employment and Labour
Standards

5. BB K& T 28|
5. Employment and Labour
Standards

5 EERSBITAR
5. Employment and Labour
Standards
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Section/Explanation

B5 ftEHEEE

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5

BEREN
5 ZB5.1
KPI B5.1

BEEN
$5§4ZB5.2
KPI B5.2

BEEN
$54€B5.3
KPI B5.3

BEEN
181ZB5.4
KPI B5.4

B6 EmET

—RBE
ERMHEENRERTSRRBUR -

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

ZitRE SO EREE -
Number of suppliers by geographical region.

A EEERHERNEY  MERTEBEMNNHEREE - UKk
HEATRERITE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

R EEHERHEREGERSNIREREERARNED - ARIEHA
MITRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

ol EREHERIKEEZARRER RRERNIED - LA RMBEHR
TRERFE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B6 Product Responsibility

B6

— MR E
ABFREESNREORERZS  BE  EERLEEELRE
HOTEH -

() BR: &
(b) BSFHBEITABBEAFENMRERLED
B E K} o

General Disclosure

Information relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

WoE B A

X B R L F

o @

@

(0]

(0]

©

CftEEE e
. Supply Chain Management

e
. Supply Chain Management
CHEEERE

. Supply Chain Management

CfrEEE R
. Supply Chain Management

CfrEEE R
. Supply Chain Management

. EmAE
. Product Responsibility
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Section/Explanation

BREN
#5#ZB6.1
KPI B6.1

BREN
#5#ZB6.2
KPI B6.2

BREN
$5/ZB6.3
KPI B6.3

BREN
15/ZB6.4
KPI B6.4

BREN
$51ZB6.5
KPI B6.5

B7 RES

EERCEXERBEEPAR2ERERIEHMEALRQKNA DL -
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

EEENERMREORFBEAREE T E -
Number of products and service-related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

Rl R R RE B EREGAED -
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

Rl E 2R ERIEREMBKIERF
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

WO BEERRERMLEBEE  URBEEBATRERTE -
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored.

B7 Anti-corruption

B7

BREN
5 ZB7.1
KPI B7.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§

— M E

BRI IEFER - 91 - BEFRARER -

() BUR: &

(o) BFHBTABERFZENMBRBEZEED
B E R} o

General Disclosure

Information relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.

RERPAHETAXEEERETEEENETHARGHEE
KRR o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

9. EmBfE
9. Product Responsibility

9. EmBfE
9. Product Responsibility

ERAEBMOEBILE - MBER
TEAREZRE

Due to the Group’s business
nature, intellectual property rights
are not considered to be material
issues

9. EmBE
9. Product Responsibility

9. EmBfE
9. Product Responsibility

10. RE)S
10. Anti-corruption

10. RES
10. Anti-corruption

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Section/Explanation

BEREN HATHEE R ERER  AREBERITRERFE -

51EB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
KPI B7.2 how they are implemented and monitored.

EREAN HAmEEFREIRENRESEI -

$51ZB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
KPI B7.3

B HERE

B8 Community Investment

B8 — R
FENtE2ERTHREEMEHEZTENBRREERIDEER
[ F) R Y BUR o
General Disclosure
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BREN HIER®E (WHE BRFEE SIHER BE- XL 8BF) -
5 1&B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
KPI B8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport).

BERAEAN EEISBMBAER(NEENER) -

$51£B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

KPI B8.2

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EARXAERAA

10. RES
10. Anti-corruption

10. RES
10. Anti-corruption

1. @R E

11. Community Investment

11. HERE

11. Community Investment

11. B E

11. Community Investment
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HEBMEAABRAT([ART)])2EE([£5]) The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Macrolink

o(([EFe])  AxgEFEaE2E s P¥EEREHH o Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to maintaining

BHARARARZFENEERRB AT BH A high standard of corporate governance practices. The primary

SHAR AR ([ #FAH EmHAL ([ EME  corporate governance rules applicable to the Company is the Corporate

Al MsE+mpraEEE AT ([EEIBS  Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the

all) o Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

REBEE-Z-—F+_A=1+—RBILEE([REE For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Year”) and up
BDAREBEAREQSIL  AQXFEEHRNLES  to the date of this Annual Report, the Company has complied with all
SESTRIFTEL 2 Fr A ST RMES - A TN REEE BRI ¢ the code provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the following

deviations:

— BECEEATHSFAENBEA2EME T -  Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
EFEEXRRELHERRAFTAE -EEEER Board should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of
FRRELZESTEREMEBR LTI R4 the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee did not
BARBR_E_—_FA+TZHEMTZ attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 June
EAFAS ([RRAFARE]) - BZELE 2022 (“AGM”) due to other business engagement. The chairman of
GEXFE FTNEZEEgXFERIERZEgsET the Audit Committee, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
ZEHHFERERRAF RS - EIERFEME - and certain members of the Nomination Committee were present at

the AGM to answer the shareholders’ questions.

— BEMCEEATEISFANEIEAL2.7IE #E - Under code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
CEEREVGFEBUIERITESRIT— Board should at least annually hold meetings with the independent
RS EHMWESEEENEE HAREZEHE non-executive directors without the presence of other directors.
WEBZH EEeTFERENHREFEH Due to various other business engagement, the Chairman of
BIYEHTESEBRT R B2 TXFEE the Board did not meet up with the independent non-executive
FHBYIINTESHTEZAH  BRHE Directors during the Reporting Year. The Chairman of the
EAR_BE_=FREFENRTEEHEM Board will come up with a meeting date with the independent
WITESHFENEE - non-executive Directors as earliest as possible to make sure that

they can meet without other executive Directors present in the
reporting year of 2023.

— BECEELTATIKXEALTE B - Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
FHTESELEERERS  HRAREN non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
EREEZE  REMTEH - RBREFEAN B develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
VIR TESERAEMER LM EE I L During the Reporting Year, not all the independent non-executive
ERFRBFAE ARFRABRKERET Directors attended the AGM due to other business engagement.
R AR A4S TRA  UBEREBILIER The Company will finalize and inform the dates of the general
TEFRHEFERERS - meetings as earliest as possible to make sure that the independent

non-executive Directors can attend the general meetings in future.

— BEMCEZSATRISTANECEAIIE  EE -  Under code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
eRTHAS EFeeRETENREFTES meet regularly and board meeting should be held at least four times
HELmK  KOBE—RK RIBEFERN - during the Reporting Year at approximately quarterly intervals. The
EFEGEAA-ZRERE - ARAlZcETEET Board met only three times during the Reporting Year. Instead of
ERITEZLCE MelBEEHEEN holding Board meetings, certain matters of the Company were
R EEERE BEFECRECEZELTE dealt with through written resolutions signed by the Directors. The
N BEBREEET R LEREER B Board members were properly briefed, actively discussed on issues
W TENASEMELR  WMEARQRZKE and were presented with accurate, clear, complete and reliable
Fl 2= VB H AT RE © information for the well-informed decisions in the best interests of

the Company.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EEETHEERS DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

RARIBERMN ETIRAIM s+ FmEETAESE  The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions

BITBEAETSMZESTA ([{2%£F8]]) - fEA% by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix

FHTESFR G 2R - RIEHEREERE 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the

FEREERRARENBE-_SE-__F+=-A=+— Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that they

HIEREFERN—HEBTZESTH - have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022 after specific enquiry.

AANRREEERFARATERAEERE LS FESE The Company believes that the current procedures to remind all

EHIREMAESE AL LRENB AR (5 /A Directors and senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries

MK% B vafkeB A BRKEFEZAESTR] - 5 (collectively the “Group”) to follow strictly with the Model Code prior to

TP I E RBESFRIBEREAE - publication of the Group’s interim and final results remain sufficient to
prevent non-compliance with the Model Code.

BEEEHE BOARD COMPOSITION

RBEEERARBEARERDB AL - BRGFKXE  During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this Annual Report,

EER-ZE-—FA-+—HEBEM : &()8 except (i) Mr. Zhang Bishu passed away on 21 June 2022 due to illness

RELTOEZEAEAATIZHITEE  A-F and (i) Ms. Liu Yaojia was appointed as an executive Director of the

T ZHFNATREHBARYN EFELBWETH  Company with effect from 15 September 2022, there was no change

BE - gEeB AU TARESEMARK  WRAESL  in the structure of the Board, which currently comprises nine Directors

EHERENER  BEHEK: and is of the opinion that it has a balance of skill and experience based
on the following composition:

HITES Executive Directors
BEEE(EE) Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)

SRR O (AEACHE) Mr. Zhang Jian (General Manager)
kR Ms. Liu Jing

PR BB % A Mr. Chan Yeuk

AR AE Mr. Zhou Jianren

Bl S e Ms. Liu Yaojia
BYFEHITESE Independent Non-Executive Directors
MER T AE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert

ilIb= e Mr. Fung Chuen Kin

REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

RBEFBEANRBEAERAB AL - AAFHE= The Company has three independent non-executive Directors
LB IERTES  (HWEBEEWEAB=S2—-° representing one-third of the Board for the Reporting Year and up
LB NIERTEEEAEE 2HES:TE  to the date of this Annual Report. At least one of the independent
Bk S&HBRSAENEEEEENG - E%i non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional qualification

—E__F+ZA=1+—BIEEAFE - $ and/or experience in accounting and/or related financial management
BB FHARBIESA0(1)IEREI.10Q2)F & é expertise. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company

IRTEREEBARAGTLRBEL %ﬁﬁﬁﬁiv has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

BERBEZAOVBPAZIERNIGHERIEAIL - Each independent non-executive Director has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a period of two years until terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions specified therein.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED o
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to
18 of this Annual Report. Save as disclosed therein, there are no
other relationship (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships) among members of the Board. The Board
has received from each independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that they are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board communicates regularly to discuss the overall strategy and
business plans as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, financial, capital,
remuneration and mergers and acquisition matters. During the year
under review, three Board meetings and the AGM were held. The
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the AGM s set
out as follows:

HiE/BTEERE
Meetings Attended/Held*
o= Directors BEE® [
Board BEXE
Meeting AGM
HITES Executive Directors
BEEE Mr. Fu Kwan 0/3 0/1
ok B A Mr. Zhang Jian 3/3 1/1
RNERAE Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022) 2/2 0/0
(RZZEZ=ZFAAZ+—H&HEH)
RF Ms. Liu Jing 3/3 0/1
PR B o A= Mr. Chang Yeuk 2/3 0/1
BN AE Mr. Zhou Jianren 3/3 01
Bz 2+ Ms. Liu Yaojia (appointed on 15 September 2022) 0/0 0/0
(RZZEZZFhLATHBEZRT)
BUKHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
WEIR T £ Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 3/3 1/1
BSINESLE Mr. Fung Chuen Kin 0/3 0/1
REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 3/3 1/1

* EREEHMARTZEREE -
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During the Reporting Year, the Board has dealt with matters covering
mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual and interim results, internal
control, risk assessment and corporate governance. In addition, certain
matters relating to the Company’s announcements of inside information
and other affairs were reviewed and approved by written resolutions
signed by all the Directors.

Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors in advance for regular
Board meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable notice period
is given. Meeting agendas and other relevant information are normally
provided to the Directors at least 3 days in advance of the Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all Board
and committee meetings which are recorded in sufficient detail about
the matters considered. Both draft and final versions of the minutes are
sent to all Directors for their comments and records. Directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board meeting procedures
are followed.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group’s business, including relevant rules and
regulations and are able to make further enquiries when necessary.
Sufficient explanation and information have been provided to the Board
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. They also have unrestricted
access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary. Update
which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details is provided
to all Directors to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Board has also agreed that the Directors
may seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’
duties at the Company’s expenses.

DIRECTORS INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Directors are given an induction after their
appointment so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of their duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, and
the business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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The Company encourages the participation of ongoing professional
trainings by individual Director at the Company’s expenses. The training

participation by individual Director during 2022 is summarised as

below:
HERE
E
e,
Eang
BHEEI
Attending
induction
training/
seminars/
2 B MR briefings/
Reading professional
materials trainings
HITESE Executive Directors
BELLE Mr. Fu Kwan / -
sk B Mr. Zhang Jian v/ -
RME A Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022) - -
(RZZTZZFNA=Z+—HBHEH)
RFF L+ Ms. Liu Jing v/ _
PR BB % A Mr. Chan Yeuk v/ -
BZATAE Mr. Zhou Jianren v/ .
Bl S e Ms. Liu Yaojia (appointed on 15 September 2022) v v
(RZE_—_FhA+ERAEZT)

BIUFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MER £ Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert v/ v/
A Mr. Fung Chuen Kin v/ .
REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai v v
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

On top of the regulatory and statutory responsibilities, the main duties
of the Board include formulating strategy as well as monitoring and
controlling operating and financial performance of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
have been consulted on major and material matters of the Company
and have been encouraged to make active contribution to the affairs
of the Board. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company and are committed
to act in good faith and make decisions in the best interests of both
the Group and the shareholders of the Company. The Board delegates
day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group to the
management of the relevant principal divisions. The Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have
been set up to assist the Board to discharge its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Al Committees have specific
functions and authority to examine issues and report to the Board with
recommendations. The final decisions are rested with the Board, unless
otherwise provided in terms of reference of the relevant Committees.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code and
has adopted the latest corporate governance code manual (including
continuous professional development of directors, the compliance of
the Model Code, etc) since March 2016. In addition, the Company’s
employee whistleblowing guidelines has also been in place since
March 2012 and on 30 March 2023, the Company adopted internal
anti-corruption policies and evaluation mechanism (the “Mechanism”)
on independence of the Board. During the Reporting Year, liability
insurance for the Company’s Directors and senior management was
maintained by the Company with coverage for any legal liabilities which
may arise in the course of performing their duties.

The Mechanism set out below is designed to ensure a strong
independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safeguard shareholders’
interests:

° The Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of
reference to identify suitable candidates, including independent
non-executive Directors, for appointment as Directors.

° Nomination policy is in place with details of the process and

criteria of identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating and
integrating new directorship.
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For independent non-executive Directors:

o) Every independent non-executive Director is required to
confirm in writing to the Company his/her independence
upon his/her appointment as Director with reference to such
criteria as stipulated in the nomination policy as well as the
Listing Rules;

o) Each independent non-executive Director has to declare his/
her past or present financial or other interests in the Group’s
business as soon as practicable, or his/her connection with
any of the Company’s connected persons (as defined in the
Listing Rules), if any;

o) Each independent non-executive Director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any
change in his/her own personal particulars that may affect
his/her independence.

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence
of all independent non-executive Directors and to affirm if each of
them still satisfies the criteria of independence as set out in the
Listing Rules and is free from any relationships and circumstances
which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, their
independent judgement. Every Nomination Committee member
should abstain from assessing his/her own independence.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, it
will set out in the circular to shareholders the reasons it believes
he/she should be elected and the reasons it considers him/her to
be independent.

A mechanism is in place for Directors to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense.

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the
Company’s senior management independently, if necessary.

An annual review on Board independence (the “Board
Independence Evaluation”) will be conducted, with attention to
ensuring that it remains independent in judgement, and continue
to present an objective and constructive challenge to the
assumptions and viewpoints presented by the management.

The Board Independence Evaluation may take in the form
of a questionnaire to all Directors individually and may be
supplemented by individual interview with each Director, if
necessary, and/or in any other manners which the Board
considers fit and necessary.
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° The Board Independence Evaluation report will be presented to
the Board which will collectively discuss the results and the action
plan for improvement, if appropriate.

o The results of the Board Independence Evaluation or a summary
of the findings of the said Evaluation will be disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report and/or on the Company’s website
for accountability and transparency purposes.

o The aforesaid Board Independence Evaluation will be regarded
as an ongoing exercise of the Company while the Company may
seek assistance from external consultant if an external evaluation
on the same subject is needed.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 that give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board is responsible for presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance and prospects. The Directors have made an assessment
on the liquidity position of the Group as to whether the Group is able
to operate as a going concern for fifteen months from the end of the
Reporting Year. The Directors are in the opinion that it is appropriate
for the Group to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. The statement of the auditors of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 85
to 87 of this Annual Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman of the board and the chief executive officer are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual. During the
Reporting Year, Mr. Fu Kwan has been the Chairman of the Company
and responsible for the leadership and the effective operation of the
Board. Mr. Zhang Jian has been the general manager of the Company
and assumes the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He has been responsible for the day-to-day management
of the businesses in all aspects effectively, the implementation of the
strategies approved by the Board, the development and formulation
of business plans, budgets and financial objectives for consideration
by the Board, and the establishment and maintenance of proper
internal controls and risk management systems with the support of the
Company’s Audit Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. Their presence and participation also
enable the Board to maintain good standards of compliance in financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been appointed for a term of two years and subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The independent non-executive
Directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company’s corporate
communications.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which would
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters including the
appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the Company. The
Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to have expertise
in relevant area to make contribution to the Company and to have
sufficient time to participate in the decision making process of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, (i) any director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment or (ii) any director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company. Any
Director appointed shall then be eligible for re-election.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, Mr. Fung Chuen Kin
and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai. Mr. Cheung Ka Wai is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendation to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and reviewing the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board. The remuneration of Directors are based on the skKill
and contribution in the Company’s affairs and are determined by
reference to duties and responsibilities of the executive Directors
after considering the Group’s performance and the prevailing market
situations including salaries paid by comparable companies. No
Director is involved in determining his own remuneration. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available at the
Company’s website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was one meeting
held by the Remuneration Committee to review the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management as well as the
remuneration policies. The matters relating to the review of the
proposed remuneration package of the newly-appointed executive
Director and the recommmendation to the Board in this regard were dealt
with by written resolution signed by the members of the Remuneration
Committee.

Details of the remuneration paid and payable to Directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2022
are disclosed in notes 8, 9 and 39(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Attendance of the Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Year
is set out below:

HESEBRE BTEIERE

No. of meeting attended/

54 Members No. of meeting held
REELRE(EE) Mr. Cheung Ka Wai (Chairman) 1/1
NS Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 1/1
BN LA Mr. Fung Chuen Kin 0/1

RIZB-=F=ZA=+H KEERELTHRAUE
TEEEMIMEFERMENER  HFMES
SORMEERI ZBERE -

REEES
ARBAR-E-_FEKURELEEZES MEES
EHRE REEABEAR - RELZESBAAM
AHTEF (BERLE(RBZEEEIR) RRREE
E)R=Z2BIFRTES (KBERELE H)IIE
TERKRELL)EK - BEZEEHREAR
ZEERELER  FEESARBEI/ESS
ZRBELEEGERMZAE - REZEGZRESR
ERRARBHBER -

* EREEHMARTZEREE -
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On 30 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee adopted the revised
terms of reference taking into account of the review and approval of
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Nomination Committee was set up in 2012 to review
and make recommendations for new candidates to the Board. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive Directors
(Mr. Fu Kwan (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. Zhang
Jian) and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lam Man
Sum, Albert, Mr. Fung Chuen Kin and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai). The
Nomination Committee will assess new candidates based on their
skills, experience and who, in its opinion, are able to make positive
contribution to the performance of the Board. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in 2013 which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible to review the policy and any measurable
objectives as may be adopted from time to time and to review the
progress on achieving the objectives. The Company seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities. The Company will also
take into account of its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does
not intend to fix a diversity quota for Board members appointment or
set a short term objective on gender diversity, for such policies may
compromise on the calibre of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was one meeting held
by the Nomination Committee to mainly review (i) the structure, size,
composition and diversity policy of the Board; (i) the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company and (iii)
the re-appointment of retiring Directors for election by shareholders
of the Company at the AGM. The matters relating to the review of
the biographies of the candidate to be appointed as the new Director
and the recommendation to the Board in this regard were dealt with
by written resolutions signed by the members of the Nomination
Committee.

Attendance of the Nomination Committee during the Reporting Year is
set out below:

HESBERE BTEIENRE

No. of meeting attended/

ME Members No. of meeting held
BEEEE(FE) Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman) 0/1
RIESLAE Mr. Zhang Jian 11
MEREE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 1/1
B & Mr. Fung Chuen Kin 0/1
RERETE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 1/1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Man Sum,
Albert, Mr. Fung Chuen Kin and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, and is chaired
by Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert. The chairman of the Audit Committee
possesses appropriate professional qualifications and/or experience in
accounting and/or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

ERETEERN T _FURIT=AEH P HRE  The Audit Committee held three meetings in 2022. Attendance of the
FERN BEXZEe7HEBLEHIET - Audit Committee during the Reporting Year is set out below:
HEEBAE ETEERY
No. of meeting attended/
KB Members No. of meeting held
WEREE (FE) Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert (Chairman) 3/3
REERE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 3/3
BT AE Mr. Fung Chuen Kin 1/3
NREEER  EREEeHESSREE L During the Reporting Year, the Audit Committee provided accounting
BEFLEESR  WEMINIZHSEN 2B & and financial advices and recommendations to the Board as well as
FHEZEE I BT EeR ,;J$‘$ @2 E reviewed the independence of external auditors and relevant auditing
MERENANERERZE - AEFBHZ2 T - —4F;% matters. Also, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk management and

ﬂerEiJJ:/ﬂﬂZﬂE%%%*Zqﬂﬁﬁiéf&%zi_
T —F+ A=t -"HUEFEZRERFER
BOHmERZZESEH %V%if;% "%TJH
M BEHRRCRBERZ G EI R ERE
EFHFEDE -

ZE RN &
BE-T-_—F+-_A=+—BHLFEHEY
BECHBEFSHMESTERATEZ - R
EFER EHSHMEBHBAMERARMMEHE
R WE 2 B A A870,0008 L (T — — 4 :
900,000/ 7L) - E SN EBH AR QR E
EE - F+ A=+ HILFEUEETT
ISR ERG (S —F + &) -

%
e

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EARXAERAA

internal control system of the Group. The Group’s unaudited interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee which was of the opinion that the preparation
of the relevant financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
has been made.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. During
the Reporting Year, the fee in respect of audit service provided by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was HK$870,000 (2021: HK$900,000).
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited did not perform any non-audit
services during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibilities for the
establishment and maintenance of an adequate and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, and to protect the
interest of shareholders of the Company. Furthermore, the risk
management and internal control system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has a built-in internal audit function and has established a
risk management framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the management. On-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group has been
established. Business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risks associated with their respective units. The results
of evaluation will be reported to management through regular internal
meetings associated with the list of risks identified and management’s
assessment on the impact to the Group. The Board discussed the risk
identified and evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system.

The Group is of the view that an effective risk management and
internal control system is in place which encompasses sound control
environment, appropriate segregation of duties, well-defined policies
and monitoring procedures and is reviewed and enhanced by the
management at regular intervals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practices, risk management and internal control system.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group engaged
external consultants to perform review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group at least once a
year and make recommendations for improvement and strengthening
of its risk management and internal control system. Based on the
reports on the findings from the external consultants, no major issues
but areas of improvement have been identified. All recommendations
will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time and the Board considered the Group’s risk
management and internal control system were effective in all material
aspects during the year.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Company has formulated its guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the
insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement and fulfill the disclosure
obligation of the inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the company secretary
attended relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, special general meetings may be
convened by the Board upon requisition by any shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company and the
securities being held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings
of the Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business at 15/F, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (“Head Office”), specifying the
shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details
and the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at its Head Office, specifying the shareholding information
of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified
transaction/business and its supporting documents.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business at its Head Office. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this Annual Report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Directors are aware of the importance of maintaining good relations
and communications with shareholders of the Company. The Company
continues to promote investor relations and communication with its
investors. The Company uses a range of communication tools, such as
annual general meetings, special general meetings, annual and interim
reports, various notices, announcements and circulars etc, to ensure its
shareholders are kept informed of the Company’s information.

The Company has maintained a website at http://macrolinkcapital.

etnet.com.hk, which serves as a platform for corporate communications
with its shareholders and the general public.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in 2019. Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, provided
that the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration and
distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations of the
Group. The Company intends to pay out on annual dividend payment
for the then financial year after taking into consideration of, inter alia,
the following factors:

()  the Group’s financial results;

(i) the financial condition of the Group;
(i) future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs;

(iv) the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants of our
Group’s bank and other loans; and

(v)  any other factors that our Board may consider appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the Bye-
Laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company
must be approved by an ordinary resolution of its shareholders at an
annual general meeting. The Board may from time to time pay to the

shareholders such interim and/or special dividends as it considers to be
justified by the profits of the Group.

Any declaration and/or payment of future dividends under the Dividend
Policy are/is subject to the Board’s determination that the same
would be in the best interests of the Group and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. The Board endeavors to strike a balance
between the shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management
and the Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B 31/F, Gloucester Tower
IR The Landmark
FITH115 11 Pedder Street
EHES Central

LT T RE31#  Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 210,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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FAREFLER
AREZEHESIBSZIEXRAGMS - HEFE
CAMRZGAMBHREARREENTE - XFF
AREBSFERERGAMBRRLMEE AR
REETREN  BESTe@HREFTRERES
MER -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

BREZER

Key audit matter

BREYFEZ1GE

Valuation of investment properties
DEZE M HMEN TS -

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERENKREMEUNRTEIE -ERERE BEEERE
MER_ZE__F+-_A=+—HZRAFEL /68,961,000
BT MEEMEREBEE-_TS__F+=-A=+—HLHF
B2 AT EEBEL50780008 TRGEERERNAR -2
HREMEREBBEILINBEE - REMENHEKBEM
BEREPHEANETERR MAERXITBETEAERY
2 FREERAERTEEAZE EalEZRFERE
HERERF ZTRIEH 2 HARR -

The Group’s investment properties are carried at fair value.
Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be approximately HK$68,961,000
as at 31 December 2022 with fair value loss on investment
properties for the year ended 31 December 2022
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
of approximately HK$5,078,000. Independent external
valuation was obtained in respect of the investment
properties. The valuation of the investment properties
is dependent on certain assumptions adopted in the
valuation process, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual results.
Reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREREEHREMEZHEMETZREFBE
Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

e HEBNEXSERMEMZBEN EOREEE
Evaluation of the independent professional qualified
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

s ZREMEERHHEFIAEAIENSEENAIERS
RE{z2EML K
Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess
the appropriateness of the methodology used and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions made; and

e EERMAKBOBEBAUENRARA G ENERE -
Considering the relevance of the data used and testing
the accuracy of the calculation of the estimates.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER REGARDING GOING
CONCERN

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Group will continue as a going concern. As discussed in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has
suffered recurring losses from operations, has net current liabilities
of approximately HK$4,936,000, and has stated that these events
or conditions may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Management’s evaluation of the events
and conditions and management’s plans and measures regarding these
matters are also described in note 1. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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\INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P06413

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HOE B EARXAFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
WBE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RILFEGAETIIE)

—E-C —=FE=—
2022 2021
B &t FET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HEREER Continuing operations
= Revenue 5 764,114 486,321
$H 5 K R 75 A AR Cost of sales and services (743,006) (466,310)
EF Gross profit 21,108 20,011
HAa A ~ e & BB &R Other income, gains and losses, net 5 15,140 4,308
1THE A Administrative expenses (29,002) (55,662)
Epags () WA FERE Other operating (expenses)/income, net (4,500) 10,316
REMENFEEBRFH Fair value losses on investment
properties, net 15 (5,078) (2,322)
HihEmR & EREEE Impairment loss on other intangible assets 17 - (6,190)
REGEREEBLDN Operating loss from
REBR continuing operations 6 (2,332) (29,539)
B %5 Bk 7R Finance costs 7 (4,137) (4,141)
REGERKEELDN Loss before tax from continuing
R %1 Al 5 18 operations (6,469) (33,680)
FriSfii & Income tax credit 10 1,943 1,458
AEEREFELEEKL Loss for the year from continuing
K E B operations (4,526) (32,222)
ERIEEEEK Discontinued operation
KEERED RIS ER Loss for the year from a discontinued
B &8 operation 11 = (3,793)
AEEER Loss for the year (4,526) (36,015)
1k Attributable to:
AL AHEEH A Owners of the Company
NEERBIFELEET Loss for the year from continuing
) &5 18 operations (4,526) (32,222)
REEREDRIEEEERG Loss for the year from a discontinued
&5 18 operation = (330)
(4,526) (32,552)
gA;ROﬁ;.H;ﬁK ;:FAPEITAKé. F!D\OLE%INGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & %
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meaBak (E)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

BE_Z-__F+_A=+—HLEFECBTIE)E
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—fF —E-—F
2022 2021
B &t FET FH T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FEPEIR 1 7 Non-controlling interests
REFREBFBLEED Loss for the year from continuing
HY &5 18 operations - _
REEREERIEEEER Loss for the year from a discontinued
B 1R operation - (3,463)
- (3,463)
(4,526) (36,015)
ARABEBANEMETE Loss per share attributable to owners
REEBROCKRIEREER of the Company from continuing and
HEREE discontinued operations 12
BERKESE (FRAEN) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) (0.38) (2.70)
EATREE ABLFE Loss per share attributable to owners
REEKNEBRER of the Company from continuing
operations 12
BEARREE (FRAENM) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) (0.38) (2.67)
ARABEBAEMBELRL Loss per share attributable to owners
KREEBNERER of the Company from a discontinued
operation 12
BERNEE (FRRENM) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) - (0.03)
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & # MACROLINK CQPL;A%.&H;LDALN%S tﬁlmgs%a m
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

"\CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

L

g E -~ - A=+ — RIS S TEIE)

—E=-= —E -
2022 2021
TER FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEEBER Loss for the year (4,526) (36,015)
Hi2m (BA%) Wz Other comprehensive (expenses)/income,
(HBRBIE) net of tax
HERpEEF 7 H 2B iR Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
ZIEH - profit or loss:
REBEHEHE QT IEE K Reclassification of exchange fluctuation reserve to
RENEBEEN D FEERR profit or loss upon deemed disposal of a subsidiary - (5,746)
MEBINEBEECIELER Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (6,476) 14,701
(6,476) 8,955
AEELIEBXARHE Total comprehensive expenses for the year (11,002) (27,060)
FE1E - Attributable to:
RAREA A Owners of the Company (11,002) (23,632)
IEPE R = Non-controlling interests - (3,428)
(11,002) (27,060)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZBEZZF+=-A=+—H GABTHE)EE
At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E=-= T —F
2022 2021
B &t FET FH T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENKERE Property, plant and equipment 14 37,733 38,509
EME Investment properties 15 68,961 76,414
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 369 39,125
HihEmEEE Other intangible assets 17 - -
RAFEFEBEHEZEHFTA Equity investments at fair value through
BERORAIEE profit or loss 18 = 32,922
WEEK B ARME] £ Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary 21 = 50,000
EMBEERE Total non-current assets 107,063 236,970
REBEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 19 30,221 22,028
FEWAR K Accounts receivable 20 = -
BRFIE ek Prepayments, deposits and other
Hoth JE Bk IB receivables 21 21,309 19,235
Al W B i 18 Tax recoverable 8 4
i e b NETE L] Amounts due from related companies 22 997 951
FE U 4 48 & A B FE Amounts due from an investee company 22 = 18,744
NAFESFEBEHEESFHTA Financial instruments at fair value through
BEmEsm T A profit or loss 23 15,539 16,121
& RIRITHE B Cash and bank balances 24 98,348 114,006
mEEEMLE Total current assets 166,422 191,089
=R Current liabilities
J& - BR 3K Accounts payable 25 805 2,749
HiER B LETAE Other payables and accruals 26 44,010 47,433
FERHMEER Interest-bearing other borrowings 27 13,597 28,115
FERT B SR A R FIE Amount due to immediate holding
company 28 100,000 -
FE 1S BRE A R 5R78 Amounts due to related companies 28 12,571 193,024
HEERE Lease liabilities 29 375 7,261
A EEE Total current liabilities 171,358 278,582
REBEEFEE Net current liabilities (4,936) (87,4993)
EEHBERABAE Total assets less current liabilities 102,127 149,477

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R
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P =T = — 4+ = A=+— A (AELAIE)
At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E=-= —E -
2022 2021
B &t FHET FH T
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 29 - 33,503
ELEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 31 30,214 33,059
EnBAERE Total non-current liabilities 30,214 66,562
BEEFE Net assets 71,913 82,915
s Equity
AAREBAELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
[N Share capital 32 120,625 120,625
i Reserves 33 (48,712) (37,710)
R Total equity 71,913 82,915

CABEHEN-_E-_=F=F=+HEEZEe& The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

HERFETAHINTESRREST SR for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023 and are signed on
its behalf by:
BE R
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
= £
Director Director
gA;ﬁROﬁ;.IIiEK ;SAI;%TA%I,: I-!;L%INGS SNLIED ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYH

REEZESF R

“ z

BE-T- -4+ A=+—B1EFE OAs Ty IS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EE H Eik®
e RABER BHRE Efifi% ot ffE i ER Bgs
Share Statutory Property Exchange
Share premium surplus revaluation Other fluctuation ~ Accumulated Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve losses equity
THr Tin TEn Thx THT TER T#r T#n
HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$1000
(fits2) (330 (et 33i)
(Note 32) (Note 33 (i)) (Note 33 (ii))
R=ZZZ%-5-A At 1 January 2022 120,625 163,910 - 1,182 21,259 25,214 (249,225 82,915
BRSER Profit or loss - - - - - - (4,526) (4,526)
Hft2EBL (BHEE)  Other comprehensive expenses,
net of tax
BEENERELZEY  Exchange differences on translation
28 of foreign operations - - - - - (6,476) - (6,476)
EE2EALAE (MBHKE) Total comprehensive expenses
for the year, net of tax - - - - - (6,476) (4,526) (11,002)
WZF-ZFE+ZB=1+-H At31 December 2022 120,625 163,910 - 1,132 21,259 18,738 (253,751) 71,913

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R
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mERER2E R (A)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

VBE_T_—F+_A=+—HILEFE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARAER AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
RE  ROGER ArRRRE NEEREE  EbEE EXRDEE  Z0EA & FBRES L 3
Share Statutory Property Exchange Non-
Share premium surplus revaluation Other  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital account resernve reserve reserve resenve losses Total interests equity
T T Tt T Fin FExL Tk Fitn Fin T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
(H232) (Hi3zp) (Hitasi)
(Note 32) (Note 33 i) (Note 33 (i)
RZB--%-5-8 At 1 January 2021 120,625 163,910 18,380 1,132 21,259 16,294 (235,058) 106,547 12,455 119,002
EHRESR Profit or loss = = - - - - (32652) (32552 (3463 (36,015
Hth2ERE/ (%) Other comprehensive income/(expenses),
(H%5E) net of tax
BEBNERELZEL Exchange differences on translation of foreign
£8 operations - - - - - 14,666 - 14,666 35 14,701
REBMELERBARRREL Reclassfication of exchange fluctuation
REOEEENAE reserve upon deemed disposal of
a subsidlary - - - - - (5,746) - (5,746) - (5,746)
FE2ENE/ (X458 Total comprehensive income/(expenses)
(BRHE) for the year, net of tax - - - - - 8,020 (32,552) (23,632) (3,428) 27,060)
RELERBAR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary - - (18,380) - - - 18,380 = (9,027) ©,007)
RZB--£+-A=t-H At 31 December 2021 120,625 163,910 - 1,182 21,259 25,214 (249,225) 82,915 - 82,915

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBRE AR R DA

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§



RMERETMRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A5

HEZZT-_—F4+-A=1+—RHLFEGCAETIE)E
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—=2- T —F
2022 2021
B at FERT FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KRETHEERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
bR A EE Loss before tax:
KERBRERER From continuing operations (6,469) (33,680)
REBR IS LR From discontinued operation - (3,793)
BT S EEL R Adjustments for:
B 75 AR Finance costs 7 4,137 4,141
BN Interest income (418) (335)
REMENFEEERFE Fair value losses on investment
properties, net 15 5,078 2,322
LAAFEFFEEEE S Fair value losses/(gains) on equity

FFAB A RARE investments at fair value through

NEEZEE (W) FE profit or loss, net

—RRXIMER — held for trading 914 1,954

—Htw — others 6,279 (18,295)
Y- BEMREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 14 2,540 3,379
TREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16 4,143 2,737
HEthEEEEZBERRE Impairment loss on other intangible

assets 17 - 6,190
FEUER SR 2 R EE 18 Reversal of impairment loss on

#[0])F 38 accounts receivable, net (627) (434)
TERFIA -~ 12E K EMEK (Reversal)/provision of impairment

FIEZ REEE loss on prepayments, deposits

(BE) BEFHE and other receivables, net (20) 1,866
i Ui B v O B 20 R A Provision of impairment loss on

EiE B E amount due from a related company = 6,061
Y - BB MEREN Impairment loss on property,

B RSB plant and equipment 14 - 830
7 & #UR Write-down of inventories 993 205
HERMNESFERIA Waiver of amounts due to directors (720) —
PE N (Uhzs) B EE Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net (6,135) 18,933
A AR B BCOVID-19/) Gain on Covid-19-related rent

TH 2 R E B e 5 concession from lessor = (1,207)
HEARRES OIS Gain on waiver of rent from lessor (8,124) -
wIFHEMER Loss on termination of lease 1,231 -
HAEHEW B A R e s Gain on deemed disposal of

a subsidiary 11 - (4,817)
2,802 (13,853)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R
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y RERETRER (F)
ACONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

WE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIME)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—-— —F - —
2022 2021
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
&g R (Increase)/decrease in inventories (9,186) 5,941
WAFEF=BEZETA Increase in equity investments
BRI EE N at fair value through profit or loss (332) (2,369)
& YL BR BOm Decrease in accounts receivable 572 1,498
FERFIE - e kEMmEK Increase in prepayments, deposits
EQER I and other receivables (2,306) (4,887)
JE Uk B8 3 R R FRIB (Increase)/decrease in amounts
(3&m),md due from related companies (46) 111
FE UG 45 3% & N B TR R Decrease in amount due from
an investee company 18,744 =
J& A5 BR FORL Decrease in accounts payable (1,944) (1,198)
HEMENFERESEE (Decrease)/increase in other
CRL ) /45 payables and accruals (4,376) 10,529
B REE R A A (Decrease)/increase in amounts
Rt 2>) /& N due to related companies (80,453) 165,816
B (FrA) B E4S Cash (used in)/generated from operations (76,525) 161,588
2 RITH B Bank interest received 418 335
2 Y SN IE Overseas tax received 4 -
BN IR Overseas tax paid (257) (138)
REEH (FTA) /FiB284%E  Net cash flows (used in)/from
REFHE operating activities (76,360) 161,785
RETBHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
WIRE ARREE R Return of capital from an investee
company 29,098 =
HEWE -  BEMKFEHEE Proceed from disposal of items of
ZFTB3 508 property, plant and equipment - 6
X PR I ER & 1 N Increase of restricted cash - 6)
MEZBEME A A Refund/(payment) of deposit for
RO, (M) aT€ proposed acquisition of a subsidiary 50,000 (50,000)
BIELEWBE R AK Net cash outflow from deemed
WE ML FE disposal of a subsidiary - 9)
RETEBRE (A Z Net cash flows from/(used in)
REREFHE investing activities 79,098 (50,009)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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mERERER(A)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HLEFEGETIEN
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—- —E-—F
2022 2021
it TET FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
METHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BERHME Interest paid (1,341) (1,904)
TRHERLEER Loan arrangement fee paid (440) (460)
BEHEMER Repayment of other loan (14,000) (1,000)
BEHREAE Repayment of lease liabilities (904) (942)
REEEAZ Net cash flows used in financing
ReREFE activities (16,685) (4,306)
Iiﬁwﬁ.ﬁ%{*‘w,z NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
L) R CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (13,947) 107,470
$%ﬂfﬁﬁﬁiﬁ TEEWM Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 113,943 6,830
INETE R BB 2 2 F R Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net (1,711) (357)
FRARERREEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 98,285 113,943
ReRESEEYHEH 2O ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
He RIR1THES Cash and bank balances 24 98,348 114,006
W XRHEE Less: Restricted cash (63) (63)
JIEEREEHRERERNZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated
BHe IR EED in the consolidated statement of
cash flows 98,285 113,943
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 & 3§ MACROLINK CQPI:;ALﬂH%LDmIN%S IB.EIMIL\TED
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SR E—ZE-_—F+-A=+—HILEE (AETHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

AAREEENURGHRESR

MEREABRABD(ARA]) D—HRA
REFAMKZZBRDTF > EERHEEBH
EXZMAERRR ([BRA]) EH - NAA
RBEBZAMMER R T EL XM 2 i
WAFHRE2EEFESANFER —HPHE -

ARRFREKBAR (G NEE]) RAE
EARENEZEXHMT

e MERENERER:

s MEREERS

s RBHERE:

s BEMREH:

e HRRFAK: R

e HERBREBZIHMM -
ARREERR ARAZEEERARAR
RERBERARAMEREEBR AR ([5F
BEE]) MEVEXRREARAR  MED
BIRAERSREBRELES ([FRBE R

51 EMKL - MEKKESTTARARAT]
TERBITEFHEERL -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

#

=3

B & X B R 2 A

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal
activities:

o property investment and development;

° property management services;

o securities investments;

o trading of mineral products;

° coal mining; and

° sale of parts of mining equipment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company are Macrolink Group Limited (“Macrolink Group”)
and Truly Industry Investment Company Limited, which are
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands

(“BVI") respectively, and its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Fu
Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued).

MEARZEH

ARRZEEMBRARZEHET :

REMBHRRME (&)

BE-B-—F+= A=+—ALFE GusyE) IS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. AAREEBERURGHRERE (F) 1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BERITR N
MR BERE EibfEs
AR ERE BRo R AR i B = it & A< Bat FEXEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
HEERS
Directly held
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited HBREUEE IESH(ES ) 100 BB IR
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited BVI United States dollars Investment holding
(“*USD”) 1
Topshine Reward Limited EEBELES 50,0003 7T 100 KEER
Topshine Reward Limited BVI USD50,000 Investment holding
MEBRBRERAERAA BH 5,000,000% 7T 100 B 4
Macrolink International Development Limited Hong Kong USD5,000,000 Investment holding
BiERSE
Indirectly held
Comparnia Minera Caminante S.A.C. Wma 10,0008 & 100 BR P
=R (=@ Bx -
B NS R
VAR B B BR AR X 75
Compaiia Minera Caminante S.A.C. Peru Peruvian Soles Searching,
(“Soles”) 10,000 prospection,
exploration,
development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities
ERERERAR BE 1,000,000/ 7T 100 MERE
Ever Park Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Property investment
ST ERARRAT BB 178 7T 100 MERE
Golden Talent Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R
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“8ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Maz—z——F+-A=+—B1FE(UETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. DR EBERUEGEREARA (48) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BB Bz &R (&)

BETR N
SR BEBRAR LR
TR Bro R i B = & A< Bk FTEEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
EEREE (8)
Indirectly held (continued)
Grade Honor Investments Limited KBRS e 100 AR
Grade Honor Investments Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding
Mk (BM) BRAR (THE (M) BB 28T 100 REEKR
Junefield (Building Material) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
(“Junefield Building Material”)
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. W 28,000% 100 REZE S RHEE
ey B RS
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. Peru Soles 28,000 Trading of mineral
concentrates and
sale of parts of
mining equipment
BEHARA A BE 18T 100 REZER
Link Wide Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. = 7,848,316R & 100 HERER
FEiEER
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. Peru Soles 7,848,316 Promotion and

development of real

estate projects

Minera RC S.A.C. WE 7,286,874 R 100 BR-B®-
Bx - R

El R HE KK
AR B BRIE XS
Searching,
prospection,
exploration,

Minera RC S.A.C. Peru Soles 7,286,874 100

development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities

m MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

N
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1. RAREEERURGEREE (&) 1.

B~ Bz &R (&)

mEMBHRRMEE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)£

BE-B-—fF+-A=+—B1LFE AT E) IS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BETR PN
MR BEBAR PE LR
TR Bro RS i B o i & A< Bk FTEEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
EEREE (8)
Indirectly held (continued)
B AR BHELLARLDR AR EME 100,000% 75 100 mERE
(MR EHELR ] (Hit) (T B )
Junefield (Beijing) Property Agency Co., Ltd* The People’s USD100,000 Property agency
(“Junefield Property Agency”) (note) Republic of China
(“PRC”)
R FEMTERRAR AT i 20,000,000 7T 100 BERES
(DRI ER ) (F77E) VAR )3 B 18 IR 7
Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading PRC USD20,000,000 Trading of

Development Limited* (“Shenzhen
Macrolink”) (note)

ERMBARNRETREAEREMAIBBERSE -

EZRAR/LERFINIZARAIME R R EANE
BeAFEXREREARESARAEEE
EFEZIERD BEFRL REHEMH
BRARZFHBHEHEMBRITE

* EHRES
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Note:

law.

mineral products
and property
management
services

The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

*  For identification purposes only
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ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WBE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RILFEGAETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

REAIREEERUR RREE (&)
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LR MBS RRABTINR - FrBE S EE
ERBAHTET

HRAMBERERBEARARENBEARHE
T —F T A=t HIFEZHER
K- -MBRAANDAAREEXBEERSIZE
B(EEABUEERRE) - EXKBER2HER
BRE BTS2 ] & ) E 3R A R kA E s
ZHERN  WEEHMEIEERAREREE N
LA &R e 5 (AR A < EF ABUA & B3R
Free i IR E AR 2 HEES)) - B E
I £ (B B A o R o

HARREESFAERERIRERRLIRAKA
ZENRERIBLERN - BIAKER G
HERBEAHBRRENRZENSEZE—
DHEBEERER B

(@) EBEREQARHMREREAZANZ
B

b) HEMEOLBEMELZEN &

) AKREZRERNREBENRZE-

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also complied with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and equity investments which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Tyl "ACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued): 3
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BE_Z__F+_A=+—HLEFECUETIIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_—_F+_A=1+—RHLEFECABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The Group has suffered recurring losses from operations,
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$4,526,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2022 and it had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$4,936,000 as at 31 December 2022. These
events or conditions may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures
to mitigate the liquidity pressure:

(@) Continuing implementing comprehensive policies to monitor
cash flows through cutting costs and capital expenditure;

(b) Exploring the possibility and speeding up the process
of disposing assets of the Group to enhance its liquidity
position;

(c) Soliciting for further financing arrangements which include
funding from related companies of the Group; and

(d) Obtaining an amount owing to the immediate holding
company to which the Group was indebted in an amount of
HK$100,000,000 as at 31 December 2022. The immediate
holding company has undertaken not to request for
repayment of the indebted amount for twelve months from
the date of this annual report.

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking into account
of the above measures covering a period of fifteen months from
the end of the reporting period prepared by the management, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group would be able
to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any future liabilities that may arise and to re-classify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first

time for the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and

HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there
were no business combinations during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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WANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WBE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RILFEGAETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories,
in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no
sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and equipment
being available for use, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to
the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour
and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for which
it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no
onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there
was no modification or exchange of the Group’s financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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HE-T-—F+- F=+—BILFE Gt I
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MBEHmRME (&)

28 EMEBNAERMZ2EENAEIHKR 2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
&4 E ||| FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
REBEBWRREEFEE T EHREANER T The Group has not applied the following new and revised
E BB R ARk 2 FE] R &IEETH A % HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
W AR - consolidated financial statements.

BN B HREEDE10% REZHRHEL G5 Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
BB ER FE285 BEPREZELES and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
(Z2——%F) 285 EEEE

BB BREELE16H EH#HER Z8 Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease: Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
ZIEFT HEAE

BRI BREENE1THR REE A HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

BERBREENEITH REE R Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ ¢
A I

E B SRS ER|S17% BEXNEREEYBHE Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 -

ZIERT ERE17HREE Comparative Information®
B HBHEEREIN -
HEEHE
ERQHERNEIR 2B #HE /iE’?///EJ @Ufwfj Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
A —E_FF current (the 2020 Amendments”)?
CHIEN

BERQHENEIR 2B FREENIETHEE Amendments to HKAS 1

([ZE=—#F5FT))?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
2022 Amendments”)?

BB EREIRMN BilBENRE Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
BRI BREEL HKFRS Practice Statement 2
f‘ii‘%“i%’%ﬁﬂ
BB GHER J%BsJEZ{za Bit i e EE Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
& ,%AE RANE1R21BF] HE-XZELH Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and liabilities
EEFE GBS arising from a Single Transaction’
EEFTER

R-ZE_=F—-—A - Rl z&RBZFERRER

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

1 1
2 RZZ-WFE—-—F Az @Bz FERBRER 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 MR TR E A BE - B0 TEH 8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 ER B _FEE T _TEETNARB 4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the
BEREBER T _NFE—F— B2 EHANEE 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1
HAf o bAh ER T _TFEITIR T _FE January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and
HN %5%%%2%5%[?&7}?%?&2&&’]@]% BRAYE 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
EREXEBNEEXHEHERNS A B &E Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
2] LAFERER BRI — B ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬂ'ﬁ a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion
8 HRNE—_Z-_TFE+ AR YUBTEH B REE E\J ® As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
175REMEET - BEM B IRE LR F4RELIEF HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
LA FREATRR-_E_=F—H—H Zﬁﬁffﬁ insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
R FEHMERS B S ERIFE395% M IEE B before 1 January 2023
MR EEMFEIRNERMERETR
© BRINEZEERE JWFEEXEF% D ERRBEE 6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
ARG ER B A B REERFE175HEEE classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
&R application of HKFRS 17
. MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WBE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RILFEGAETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does
not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into
after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January
2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities
at the end of for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect
the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by
an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements
as non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of those
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether existing
loan agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is
permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date
for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency
with the amendments.
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2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
20283 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

HREENELERNGEVBREABERZEE For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
LBEMS A£EEFERNSHEHREHN financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
FES B (EEEAFEFEEEMEBEAN whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
HNREBHAZRXEH) MBEERTELETRER by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
=g o is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end

of each reporting period.

BEHBEREYR  AREEEREE (7 Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
B REHEEE SREERKEMER impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
SN EITIRVBE RIS - FAMTZEEZ A inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
O &% - EEZ WO SEFEINZEEXRIIRS properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
EEBET2EARERRATFERH SN asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
ErREERE  WAREBEEET - HMN cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
ZEEVITEARABRE EBYREMEE of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
FEEMARN R RANE R @ EUBER asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
T HAlWESBEZEEMBE 2 RSES of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
BILETE - recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

REEEBENEEREEBE E 058 An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
R EFGFEREER  MarRkRE asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
B T AR R MLE BT 5 E B B (B E A the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
BEEARRIHGREAITIREFIRER value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
B - BEBEREFHEGAGEEREF assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
ZIERZBRBEEEZRMB 2RI S5 - to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated

statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired

asset.
ZHREBRHBELTGE  UEERTE Y An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
RERERER ZBEBEETNHFES as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
BRI - nBEFEMZETS > BBGETR impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
WOl 858 - 2B E (BmERIN 2 L RTHER If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
HEBEENRETEE WO 85 2t A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
RO & LR EZEEENSBE goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
BREBAFELERZEERRREBIE L estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
BREE 2 858 (MR ERIFTE ) - WE asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
EBREzZOBRELHEGTAGEEBERZER that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
ez EENE GRS AREEIEZE amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
BEBCEHMEEZEBSTBRERE - asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)- 7

BE_Z__F+_A=+—HLEFECUETIIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an
item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 20 to 30 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 6 years

Plant and machinery 4 to 12 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Mining rights are initially measured at cost. The carrying amount
of exploration and evaluation assets is reclassified to mining rights
when the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
mineral resources are demonstrable. Mining rights with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any identified impairment losses. The mining rights with finite
useful lives are amortised on a unit of production basis over the
estimated economic reserve of the mine.

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Exploration and evaluation assets include the
cost of exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the
search for mineral resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
resources. When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting mineral resources become demonstrated, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified
as either mining rights or property, plant and equipment. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification, and
any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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BE_ZT_—_F+_A=t—HILEFEUIETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:
Land and buildings 2 to 11.5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

b) HEE(E (b) Lease liabilities
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Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractural
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group generally considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for accounts receivable and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group calculates ECLs of accounts receivable that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
other borrowings, amount due to immediate holding company,
amounts due to related companies and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contract

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group is the contract
that requires a payment to be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: () the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FEZRKABREIEFEZRIEEIER - K Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
RIS ESL RN EETE WBE Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out or weighted average
EmEEKD IBPEEEME  BEEST basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
PR AN R B E Il 2 B AR o AT ERDFER comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
B 5 & (B R £ SE Ak IS & A 2 Al 5T Ak AN proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
sTE o estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to

completion and disposal.

MEEReRarmM=s RekREEEY For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
PREFHERS  FHERERBEARIHA— cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
BRE=—ERARNZzERAEka AL 2RE B deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
ZIENERER AT NEE RS MA convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
BEITEEEANEY  WHEAREREERR insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
BREFHSERE Y — D 2BITES - generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts

which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

MESTBRRAEmMS  ReLkBRE2ZEEY For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
BIEFHEE e RIBTHER(BERAETZRG position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
MNTHERREEELUBREZEE) - at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to

cash, which are not restricted as to use.

BEITRAAEERNE 2 EHEHRT2E A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
F(TmEFEREE) ELETHEAETGREEER constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
HEELERARHNBITEERER  HE probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
At EEEE 2S5 - settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

WITH 2 EE KRN BRABE 225 A When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
TEHERERITREEZBERAIN®RE M for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
EREFZIRE - B 2RERRREBEmE period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
HE 7 FHiE - TIRGEEIBR R P IEB TSR A o settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value

amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue from sale of mineral products, coal and parts of mining
equipment is recognised at a point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods.

Revenue from the provision of property management services
is recognised over time in the period in which the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the services performed by the Group. These services are
performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified
period of time. Accordingly, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis, and the cost of services is recognised as
incurred in connection with performing such services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Management fee income is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(¢) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in the
PRC and Peru are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal governments. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Valuation of investments classified as level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy

The Group holds financial instruments that are not traded or
quoted in active markets. The Group uses valuation techniques
that include inputs that are not based on observable market data
to estimate the fair value of certain type of financial instruments.
The use of valuation models and assumptions in valuing these
financial instruments is subjective and requires varying degrees
of judgement. Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of these financial instruments.
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BiEGE M IS MR 2.3 AT it M9 € 51 B2
RAEEREDERAFETE - KEY
¥R _ZT-_—_F+-_A=t+—BHBZAFEY
468,961,000/ 7T (=& = —4F : 76,414,000
BIL) c BRE M ERERM 15N ATE IR E Y
ERQNFENKZ2ERBILEES ERT(HAD
BITZHEEBT EBEHEDNREE TRR
MIEL - &% R AHEE M XA BB
HREBEARZE - FEDHER  BEEHAE
BEREGATEAEER  BEERZREZIENRS
HEEREFENT BRI ABER - Z5H
AEHERMBEBERTEANERRZ ZiE
ITEC 8L -
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AL

BE_ZT-__F+_-_A=+t—HILEFEGBTIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due, taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available. For
financial assets at amortised cost other than accounts receivable,
the Group applies the general approach which is also referred to
the “three stage” model. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast of economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts receivable,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and amounts due from related companies/an investee
company are disclosed in note 20, note 21 and note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Investment properties of the Group are stated at fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.3
to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of
investment properties at 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$68,961,000 (2021: HK$76,414,000). The fair value of
investment properties, set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, are determined with reference to valuations
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer. Such
valuations are made based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainties and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based
on market condition existing at the end of the reporting period.
These estimates are compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Bz _Z_—_F+t_-_A=t—HLEFEUETIIE)

B HmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

o EER
REEENME AEBEREBEMZER
LRE D BTN E2HREE D

A
pus

(@) MERERBERIE HELBERHEE

E S

b) MEEEREDBREREYEEZRS

) EHFEEDH HFELMEFERE
(d BEMBZDE - {LEFME SR
RRNMIRTES

() HWRFAZESE  ERBRHIFREZHR
KFREARRBERRARHEE - &

() EoE RERBRETIIHEE -

RBE-F-—F+-A=T—ALFE
Py - A5 B B A B 3T M0 W R R IR
2 -

EREBVERASE I REDIER - U
BIELERERDELRBEFHZIRE - 5
BERBDBEBEERD HaFBEFE M
Eo Sl b wil /Eﬁ%g Bl LA £ 58 2 Br B B &
Fl/BESE  KABRRBAERN, BB
AEAAEREB ZBRBAEEFTET A —
B RS EL A ARITHEWARE
RO BEWA - RS REER - UATFENE
BEEHFABENIELTRARENRAF

Bz BE - BBEREAREMRS B2
BRERMEEER -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o=

B & X B R 2 A

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has six reportable
and operating segments as follows:

(@) the property investment and development segment engages
in leasing and sale of properties;

(b) the property management services segment provides
property management services;

(c) the securities investments segment engages in investing in
listed securities;

(d) the trading of mineral products segment engages in the
trading of mineral concentrates, electrolytic cobalt, nickel
beads and nickel beans;

(e) the coal mining segment engages in the exploration and
development of coal mine concessions and mining for sale
of coal; and

(f)  the others segment engages in the sale of parts of mining
equipment.

The Group has introduced additional segment of the property
management services during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s loss before tax except that bank interest income and
other unallocated income, gains and losses, fair value gain/loss
on unlisted equity investments at FVTPL, finance costs as well
as other unallocated head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.
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mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-__F+_-_A=+t—HILEFEGBTIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DHEETBEALNFEF=EBEEZHTA Segment assets exclude unlisted equity investments at fair value
BRAIERBRAKE  WEHNERRKE through profit or loss, deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary,
& BUREELQRRIE B IEE R R amounts due from related companies, amounts due from
B -BHeRESEEYARE MR DA &5 an investee company, cash and cash equivalents, and other
ERAEEEE AARSEENREERR unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
EERE o managed on a group basis.

AMEBEBTBIESTSEMEE B EEE Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing other borrowings,
AR A RIFRIA - BT EE R R FRIE A R H MR amount due to immediate holding company, amounts due
PEHREREENREBREG AAZZAEGT to related companies, and other unallocated head office and
IREEEEET o corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
AEBRERDBE D 2D HEELTUWT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s segment results by reportable segment
is as follows:
BE-E-_—_F+-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2022
FESEER
Continuing operations
NERE NEER BER
RER it E5RE g% RRBE At @it
Property
investment Property Trading
and management Securities of mineral
development services  investments products  Coal mining Others Total
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Al Segment revenue:

MREFIHE/ 848 Sales to/revenue from external customers 4,464 14,143 - 744,695 - - 763,302

BERA Investment income - - 812 - - - 812

WAREE WA 25 Total revenue and investment income 4,464 14,143 812 744,695 - - 764,114

PHEE Segment results (5,284) 16,651 812 1,208 4121 (739) 16,769

BANEMARE K AR Bank interest income and other unallocated

WA BEREEFE income, gains and losses, net 7,332
SELEHANERR Corporate and other unallocated expenses (26,439)
AP RHHRE Unallocated finance costs (4,137)
REFELEEEM Loss before tax from continuing operations

R AR (6,469)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED JFES
woE B AKX ER A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WBE_ZT-__F+-A=+—RIEFEAETIE)

4. EHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
7o EBELE (') SEGMENT RESULTS (continued)
BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021
RELEER
Continuing operations
nERE NEER BER
RERE i EARE U BRFR -0 B
Property Property Trading
investmentand  management Securities of mineral
development Services  investments products ~ Coal mining Others Total
AL AL L L AL L T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHNE: Segment revenue:
DAREZHE/ BT Sales to/revenue from external customers 4,398 14,317 - 467,078 - 1,147 486,940
REWA Investment income - - (619) - - - (619)
WAREE WA 85 Total revenue and investment income 4,398 14,317 (619) 467,078 - 1,147 486,321
PBRE Segment results (1,012 13,041 (619) 1618 (22,797) (3,648) (13,417)
RITH WA RE A Bank interest income and other
AARMARME unallocated income and gains 21,396
SEREMAAIRRS Corporate and other unallocated expenses (37,518)
RARBBAA Unallocated finance costs (4,141)
RERBEEZHN Loss before tax from continuing perations
RHaEE (33,680)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EMBHRRME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-B-—F+= A=+—ALFE GusyE) IS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
SHEENEGBUREEM S IE R SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OTHER
SEGMENT INFORMATION
rEBRZHRHBE D2 HBEEREBEN An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities and
FEMmDBERDHTLOT : other segment information by reportable segment is as follows:
BE-_ZE-_—_+-_A=+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2022
FESEER
Continuing operations
NERE NEER o BER .
RER b E5RE g% RRRR B st
Property
investment Property Trading
and management Securities of mineral
development services  investments products  Coal mining Others Total
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERRR: Assets and liabilities:
PHEE Segment assets 77,199 5 15,591 32,955 474 287 126,511
EEREMANEREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 146,974
BEE Total assets 273,485
PHEE Segment liabilities 37,947 281 - 2,205 4,783 1,058 46,230
EERENFIRAE Corporate and other unallocated iablties 155,342
BaE Total liabilties 201,572
EAdER . Other segment information:
REENR I NEREH Depreciation and amortisation charged in
profit or loss 1 3,258 - 4 - 4 3,267
SERAMADESE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 3,416
6,683
RENENTEFRTE Fair value losses on investment propertes,
net 5,078 - - - - - 5,078
FEHA Write-down of inventories - - - - - 993 993
NG EERER Reversal of impairment loss on accounts
recelvable - - - - - (627) (627)
BAFIE REREMEN Provision/(reversal) of imparment loss
TAIE/WEE B on prepayments, deposits and other
B/ (8158 receivables, net - - - - 5 (25) (20
HEARSE S8 E Gain on walver of rent from lessor - (8,124) - - - - (8,124)
RIBENER Loss on termination of lease - 1,231 - - - - 1,231

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R
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mEeMBEHRRME (F)
ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
lBz—T-——E+-A=+—AiItEE B TIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
4. ZEBER (&)
THEEREEUR S MEH

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OTHER

(#8) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE_Z-_—FT-HA=1T—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021
RELEER
Continuing operations
MERE hEER o EEm L i
RER s EHRE U BRrRRER -0 )
Property Property Trading
investmentand  management Securities of mineral
development services  investments products  Coal mining Others Total
TATL TAL TAL TATL TATL TATL TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERER: Assets and liabilities:
PEE Segment assets 85,555 37,81 16,126 26,016 476 1,216 167,260
ERREMAIREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 260,799
BEE Total assets 428,059
PREE Segment liabilities QAT 39,504 = 121 6,490 4521 93,113
ERREMAIEAR Corporate and other unallocated liabilties 262,031
BafE Total liabilties 345,144
A2 BER: Other segment information;
RERNR  RERES Depreciation and amortisation charged in
profit or loss 2 1,697 - 6 282 6 1,953
SERAMADELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 3435
5,388
REMFATEFRTE Fair value losses on investment properties,
net 2,322 = = - - - 2,322
E - BERXEREEE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment - - - - 830 - 830
FEHR Write-down of inventories - - - - - 295 295
EtEVAERERR Impairment loss on other intangble assets - - - - 6,190 - 6,190
EUEHAEEERE/ Provision/(reversal) of impairment loss on
(BE) 58 accounts receivable, net - - - - 2% (69) (44)
BAZE  REREMEL Provision of impairment loss on
FEREEERETE prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net - - - - 1,864 2 1,866
ERRY Capital expenditure’ g 38911 5 . 5 5 38911

EAEXBREAERRERE -

142 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Capital expenditure consists of additions to right-of-use assets.
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mEMBHRERME (FH)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)&

|

BE-T-—F+-A=+—BLEEEsEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DITER (&E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
i EE R Geographical information
(a) IREFZHA (a) Revenue from external customers
—EC-CF —E-—F
2022 2021
TET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fh PRC 763,302 485,793
MR Peru - 1,147
BB Hong Kong 812 (619)
764,114 486,321
i EREXBHNIKRABR TIIRRP The revenue information of continuing operations above is
FriEfh o 48 based on the location of the customers.
(b) FREEE (b) Non-current assets
—TE-—fF —E-—F
2022 2021
FTET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
H PRC 69,171 114,517
WE Peru 37,522 38,269
a5 Hong Kong 370 1,262
107,063 154,048
PR E R IR EEER T The non-current assets information of continuing operations
REEMEMNSE  MATTEIESH above is based on the location of assets and excludes
TE- financial instruments.
. MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Mgz—z-—fF+-A=+—B1FE(UETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DTEE (48) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
EBEFTEFFZ2EH Information about major customers
REBFERBREEFCHELEEGNE Revenue from continuing operations from customers of
HHRARNEEBEETFI0NIERBET : corresponding years contributing over 10% of total revenue of the

Group are as follows:

—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
FERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEPA(EBREERE S 9 E0) Customer A (attributable to trading of mineral
products segment) 154,108 121,339
BEFPB(EEREELE S D) Customer B (attributable to trading of mineral
products segment) 100,631 83,561
EFC(EEEERE S H ) Customer C (attributable to trading of mineral
products segment) 151,581 =
EPD(EEBEEME S HEP) Customer D (attributable to trading of mineral
products segment) 107,164 =
I%gA;ZéROHS;.I@ﬁK ;SAPEITA%I.: P!D\OLE%INGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % R
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mEMBHRRMEE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)&

HE—_ZET——

5. WWAREMIUA - B EIEE 5 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND

g

4+ = A=+ — [ 1L E R (AB T ) I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

| LOSSES, NET
AEEBROFELCEEBEZWADITAOT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations is
as follows:
—E-_F —E-—F
2022 2021
FHET FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000
A Revenue
EEEHPA Revenue from contracts with customers
HERE D Sale of mineral products 744,695 467,078
HEFRER BT Sale of parts of mining equipment - 1,147
Y E IR IRF WA Property management services income 14,143 14,317
758,838 482,542
K EE KR P A Revenue from other sources
He W A REE Gross rental income 4,464 4,398
NFEEEE - FEE Fair value losses, net:
NAFEFEEEZSHFA Equity investments at fair value through profit
BRBEARE-KIEFEE or loss - held for trading (914) (1,954)
B% S A Dividend income 1,726 1,335
5,276 3,779
764,114 486,321

=3

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ey
OE B E AR R D F
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND

5, WAREMBA REREBEF 5.

# (&)
EFEHNBAND#

BE_Z2__F+-A=1t-HLFE

LOSSES, NET (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

Year ended 31 December 2022

RERES WEEBERY @t
Trading of Property
mineral management
a8 Segment products services Total
TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERKBREER Types of goods and services
HEREM Sale of mineral products 744,695 - 744,695
MEEBRBE KA Property management services income = 14,143 14,143
EFAHNBAEE Total revenue from contracts with customers 744,695 14,143 758,838
HEmS Geographical markets
H PRC 744,695 14,143 758,838
EFAHMALE Total revenue from contracts with customers 744,695 14,143 758,838
DN LT Timing of revenue recognition
R At a point in time 744,695 - 744,695
E-BERER Over time - 14,143 14,143
EEANRALE Total revenue from contracts with customers 744,695 14,143 758,838

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)

5. kA
%E(?E)

REMEA - - REREBERF

EFEHBAND# (&)

5.

REMBHRRME (&)

BE-B-—fF+-A=+—AIFE U TsIE) NS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND

LOSSES, NET (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

BE-_E-—F+-_A=1t—BHIFE Year ended 31 December 2021
BERES WMEEERY Hit st
Trading of Property
mineral  management
28 Segment products services Others Total
FAL TAET FET FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERRBEESR Types of goods and services
HEREM Sale of mineral products 467,078 = = 467,078
HERBREZ M Sale of parts of mining equipment - - 1,147 1,147
MEEBRBEKA Property management services income = 14,317 = 14,317
EFANRARE Total revenue from contracts with
customers 467,078 14,317 1,147 482,542
HEmS Geographical markets
fh PRC 467,078 14,317 - 481,395
WE Peru - - 1,147 1,147
EEEHNRALE Total revenue from contracts with
customers 467,078 14,317 1,147 482,542
DN LT Timing of revenue recognition
FE-BY At a point in time 467,078 - 1,147 468,225
E—BERRA Over time - 14,317 - 14,317
EEAHNRALE Total revenue from contracts with
customers 467,078 14,317 1,147 482,542
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
g z—T——&t-A=+—AFE CBTHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5, WAREMBA KW@ REEF

# (&)

R-_E-_—F+_-_A=+—8 E@YW*E
BRSO Fer NEAES CRETTHE D

BITMXZERSENT :

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND
LOSSES, NET (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at
31 December 2021 relate to property management services are

as follows:

—E-—F
2021
FHxT
HK$'000

TEHE SN TRERERSRANSEE Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:
—F RN Within one year 14,335
—4F1E After one year 13,885
28,220

R-ZZE-——F+-A=+—8  5EEHT
BHAEENRZERCHEERAGEN —FR

HERR/BA -

RZB-_—F+-A=+—H 2BETHT
BHEBEMBHASER —FRERSIRAN
REHEBEREBNERMEEERY  FHARE
HMEBHEN —FRET PETHTELD
EHBNMEEMXZERERBHGEN —

FRRERSUEA -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

As at 31 December 2022, the amounts of transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations are expected
to be recognised as revenue within one year.

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts of transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations which were
expected to be recognised as revenue after one year related
to property management services, of which the performance
obligations are to be satisfied within one year. All the other
amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations were expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)w«

5 WAREMBA  WERERF
£ (8])
REBMAIEBECLBERE  HbUA - I
REBFESHOT :

REMBHRRME (&)

u

BE-—T-—4+=A=+—ALEE s 7IE) I

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND
LOSSES, NET (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s other income, gains and losses, net
from continuing operations is as follows:

5.

—E=-= —EZ—HF
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HBA WERBSEZEHE Other income, gains and losses, net
H WA R W Other income and gains
IRITH BUA Bank interest income 418 335
YENRIBES WA (B7220) Property agency commission income (note (i) 621 904
EEEWRA Management fee income 796 1,612
H 7 AR B BECOVID-19/ Gain on Covid-19-related rent concession
TR ER from lessor - 1,207
R A B e A S MU s (A e (i) Gain on waiver of rent from lessor (note (i) 8,124 -
b 5 W F 5 Net foreign exchange gain 6,325 -
NeEMESHIE Waiver of amounts due to directors 720 -
RS 7 B (A7 72 (i)) Government grants (note (i) 96 -
E A Others 18 250
17,118 4,308
E 8 Other losses
AR E R BB (AT A7) Loss on termination of lease (note (i) (1,231) -
E A Others (747) _
(1,978) -
15,140 4,308
Biat - Notes:

(i)

(ii)

MERBAERATIREETREZF Z2FNEH -
WHER B BRER o

RBE-ZT-_—_F+-A=+—HBLEFER ' &%
EREBRNRHENEESRHEM MR ET
SRR T A BI96,0008 L (ZE=—F &) - B
BB RS T B E A IR R RER o

HEA#MEHESHOREA LK LEENBRTDAR
BE_T__F+t_A=+— EIJJ:@FWWJH‘E‘*
MZHESE  ARRLEHENTS  WHE2HEE
BT AP FE29 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R

(i

(il

The property agency commission income was arising from contract with
customer in the PRC and recognised at a point in time.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised government
grants of HK$96,000 (2021: Nil) in respect of the Employment Support
Scheme provided under the Anti-epidemic Fund by the Hong Kong
Government. The grants were recognised when the required employment
conditions were fulfilled.

The gain on waiver of rent from lessor and the loss on termination of lease
was arising from arrangement of the termination of a lease during the year
ended 31 December 2022, please refer to note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements for details of the termination of lease.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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WE_ZE-__F+-_A=1T—RHILFE (UETINE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
6. REEERKEXBNEEEIE 6. OPERATING LOSS FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS
AEBEREFELEEBNELEEERD & The Group’s operating loss from continuing operations is arrived
B (A - at after charging/(crediting):
—=E-= —E-—
2022 2021
Bt TET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
EBERAAST (TREEEHE) Employee benefits expense
(excluding directors’ remuneration) (i)
e ITEAREMEWMET Salaries, wages and other benefits
in kind 11,845 12,792
RIRE A B R Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes (iv) 859 941
12,704 13,733
% 2 A B Auditors’ remuneration 870 900
EREEEZTE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,143 2,583
FEXRAER AR Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense (iii) 742,560 465,694
ME BERREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,540 2,805
E 5 B85 Net foreign exchange loss - 22,225
FEURBRE ORI B e e 0 ) E %8 Reversal of impairment loss on accounts
receivable, net (ii) (627) (44)
AR - 2SR HE i E U IR (Reversal)/provision of impairment loss
EEE (EE) g R on prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net (ii) (20) 1,866
AR NETEHAEN Lease payments relating to short-term
FE R = leases in respect of land and buildings 167 79
BrEmE(ER) BE (Reversal)/provision for compensation
claims (i) (2,125) 5,032
UAFEAEBHEEFHT AER Fair value loss/(gain) on unlisted equity
BIE F TR AR AR A FIE investments at FVTPL
BB (ka) (ii) 6,279 (18,295)
M BENXERERIE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment (ii) - 830
HEMERS WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties (4,464) (4,398)
Ve Less:
FRERBEWAZKREYZE Direct operating expenses incurred for
EEZEBEKERY investment properties that generated
rental income during the year - 84
(4,464) (4,314)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

hs'

BE-—E-—& - A=t—RAIEEEOAETEE) S

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. REBEREEXEKNWRKREERE 6.
(&)
0] 1B B 4% 7 5 X #864,0008 T (Z T = — 4 :
455,000/ 7T) % 11,840,000 7T (Z 8B = — 4 :

13,278,000 7T) B 9 Bl FT A 85 & R AR %5 A 248 BA &
THREBR -

iy HEHEEBRARA BEREFATEMES (H)
SWAFEIA

(i) A BRERIETFEMORA993,0008 T (ZF =—
4 : 295,000/ 7T) °

RN ET BB ERORU A KA ABIA A
TRAEAR BRF L RO FE A (3R

7. BIEERA 7.
KEBECLEBNABRADFOT

(iv)

OPERATING LOSS FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Employee benefits expense of approximately HK$864,000 (2021:
HK$455,000) and HK$11,840,000 (2021: HK$13,278,000) were charged to
cost of sales and services and administrative expenses respectively.

(ii) Amounts are included in “Other operating (expenses)/income, net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(iii) The amount included write-down of inventories of approximately HK$993,000
(2021: HK$295,000).

No forfeited contribution under retirement benefits schemes is available to
reduce the contribution payable in future years.

(iv)

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as
follows:

—=E-= T —F
2022 2021
FER FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

ARAFRABBREEZEBENR Interest on borrowings wholly repayable
within five years 1,587 2,493
HERLHER Loan arrangement fee for other loan 440 460
HEBERNE Interest on lease liabilities 2,110 1,188
4,137 4,141
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 RE MR RMEE (F)
SEANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L
R E T - —F+ = A=+ —BILFE GAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. EENFEITHAEMSE 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION
BIEEMRE - FBRQREH5383(1)(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
) e RMEER AR (BEEEMNZER) R disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
HIE2ME B2 FNEETLEEZTHRAEME and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
W Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

—E-CF —EF=-—
2022 2021
FHET FTAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
e Fees 540 540
EME - Other emoluments:
Fo RRNEDNR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,484 1,604
RIRET B Pension scheme contributions 24 40
1,508 1,644
2,048 2,184
(a) BAEHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FRENFBELIIRTTEST 20T W The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
™~ the year were as follows:
—E-_F —_EF=-—
2022 2021
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
we: Fees:
BRI E Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 180 180
il Mr. Cao Kuangyu
(R=—ZE=_—FtHA—HEMD (Resigned on 1 July 2021) = 90
)1 5 A& Mr. Fung Chuen Kin
(RZZE=Z—FtA—HEZF) (Appointed on 1 July 2021) 180 90
REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 180 180
540 540
Br Bt ESN  FARBEEE A EN B IE Apart from the above, there were no other emoluments
HITES e (ZE_—F &) - payable to the independent non-executive directors during

the year (2021: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)/®

8. EERFETHAEME (&) 8.

(b) BITESERETETHAER

BE-T-—F+-A=+—ALFEUETsIE) I
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REMBHRRME (&)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive

e E2BR

we BEYFE BRETEMHEX & &5t
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
FE T FET FE T THExT
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
—®_- 2022
HITEER Executive directors and
FETHRAE the chief executive:
BELAE Mr. Fu Kwan - 120 - 120
R 25T A (HTEE0)) Mr. Zhang Jian (note (i) - 420 - 420
SR WM E A (BT ) Mr. Zhang Bishu (note (i) - 50 - 50
=g Ms. Liu Jing - 172 3 175
2|88 = 2z £ (K7 a2 (i) Ms. Liu Yaojia (note (iii) - 422 12 434
PR B o A= Mr. Chan Yeuk = 120 = 120
B ALE Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
- 1,484 24 1,508
—T-—F 2021
HITEER Executive directors and
FETHRAE the chief executive:
HEELAE Mr. Fu Kwan - 120 - 120
SRR (BT AE) Mr. Zhang Jian (note (i) = 320 = 320
SR W62 5T A (B (i) Mr. Zhang Bishu (note (i) = 120 = 120
28 & Ms. Liu Jing = 744 31 775
PR B2 5T A Mr. Chan Yeuk = 120 = 120
BEANLE Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
- 1,604 40 1,644
Btat - Notes:

0] RIBEETNAERRRITRAHNEE B
PSR B 03 BN 2 48 B AR R T AR B
TR R B -

(ii) RNELEEBEN_T__FA=+—H

Bt o

(ii)

2RELTER_T-_—_FhA+RAEZ

ERRRBAITESE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #
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(il

Mr. Zhang Jian also assumed the responsibility of the chief executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Mr. Zhang Bishu has passed away on 21 June 2022.

Ms. Liu Yaojia was appointed as an executive director of the Company

on 15 September 2022.
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 RE MR RMEE (F)
SEANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Npz—=——#1-B=t+-A1LEE(UETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
8. EENFEITHAEME (8) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) MITEERETETHAE (&) (b) Executive directors and the chief executive
(continued)

XA TG TFTRTEST Z2H Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
©CEMEREMFE—RAREZEALT executive directors shown above are generally emoluments
BEEANTREMBARIEHEMRHED in respect of those persons’ other services in connection
H RIS HIHEN o with the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
RABWEFTAEMLHE - BFEESK There was no arrangement under which a director or the
FETBAERFAREXRENEL chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
e (ZT=—F : &) - during the year (2021: Nil).
9. IfUREHEER 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
AFEE AfUseFHEERESMN(ZT=_— The five highest paid employees during the year include none of
FEBEM)BE AN (ZE-—F: Af) & the (2021: none) director. Details of the remuneration for the year
SHEE GEARRESTH ETETHAE)R of the five (2021: five) highest paid employees who are neither a
REFZMESFHEHN T : director nor a chief executive of the Company are as follows:
—=2-_ —E-—F
2022 2021
FERT TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e RMREYNZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,519 5,415
RRET K Pension scheme contributions 401 330
5,920 5,745
BRTyMEcHEMIEESTNIFEFEITHA The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
ERESHEEHBWLOT : employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:
EE A
Number of employees
=F== —F_—F
2022 2021
0—1,000,000/% 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 2
1,000,0017% 7t —1,500,000/% 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 2 8
1,500,001 7T —2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1
5 ©
gA;ROﬁ;.IIEIéK S’SAPEITAB;: P!D\OLE%INGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % R
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REMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. FRIEHER

BEBFBE %RB$E#$FEA%5%F$21$§+B§
AR AIE16.5% (T =Z—%F :16.5%) 2
KT IRBE - v mERBEF 2 BB
BRAEECEEBMEREEER ZHITH

KRHE o

T Rl F+

BE-_Z-_—_H+-_A=1T—HUEFEGETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

—E-C_F —E-—F
2022 2021
TER FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIVHA — B b 3t [= Current — elsewhere

BEFEREBRZ Over-provision in prior years - (24)
EEB AR R Deferred tax credit (2,191) (1,668)

EHHER : Withholding tax charge:
—Gf - PRC 248 134
FERBRESR Total tax credit for the year (1,943) (1,458)

AEBEBRBAEBRZHBARRERBESH
EHBHEIL16.5% (ZF=—F :16.5%) Mat
BZEWRBIERMT

The tax credit on the Group’s loss before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits
tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) as follows:

—E-— —E - —HF

2022 2021

TET FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

REFERESEBHRBAER Loss before tax from continuing operations (6,469) (33,680)
HBEREHRE165% (—F - —4F Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5%

16.5%) 5T & < Fi 18 (2021: 16.5%) (1,067) (5,557)
AN 2 WA Income not subject to tax (6,291) (6,069)
TR FE 2 B Expenses not deductible for tax 8,547 7,771
BEFEERE LS Over-provision in prior years - (24)
REERTIIEEE Tax losses not recognised 1,822 6,643
BAFEESR 2 MIEEE Tax losses utilised from prior years (4,520) (2,568)
MBATIEEMEEEERKL T  Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

BHEARZHE operating in other jurisdictions (682) (1,788)
REFRBENTENR 2 E Effect of withholding tax arising in the PRC 248 134
HERMERAE 2 FHIEK R Tax credit at effective rate (1,943) (1,458)
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REMBHRRHME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WBE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RILFEGAETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. BERLEREXLEBRBRIELENE

NG

BURERAFBEAEEEETHRARER
(TBETHRAZEEDAELEHA T ——
F-A-+TANBNRFHRE Bt BE
™ R FOEBE HIR - B AR 2 BE60%H)
BRRAMHEREEMAERAR (DHRRE])
FHRbIR AT (RBMEEIR]) - W EK
MEERER T - —F At NHERE

TTREET P AUAB B1TH 58 B AR B -

R-ZFE-_—FMOA+HBE  EEMPEERR
EREHAR UBEHRFARAEE Bt 8
B AR EITRBIBEAEIR - B (HF
BIE) BRILREUNME - REESEMETTNRE

FEMBH B - At ARFEEHN

R AEEER-_ZE-_—FMNATRBXRE
HEHMRENEGE BRBHNE—F
15 MBE2HERA M IBMRMTEESS(0) °

3%

Al WHERBRAAFEFEAHE

BREABARE  -CRIEREXBNEED

R BT

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

N EZZE - —F+-A=+—HIEFE
TR E_—FOA+RABEREEENE
FH®EZ RERERHEEEZENMNBEBLRD
HEREENIAEFAAEENERIELSE
¥ Bt AAREEEELRTH_-Z
—T—FOATREARBKRIEBEPERESERN
AEBMNGEVBREAN(BEIELERNBEA

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DEEMED
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Reference was made to a civil ruling dated 26 January 2021
issued by the Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan
Province, the PRC (“Loudi Intermediate Court”), pursuant to which
Loudi Intermediate Court ruled that the mandatory dissolution
order (the “Mandatory Dissolution Ruling”) was made against
the Company’s indirectly 60% owned subsidiary, #FZ=EEN
BBRAF (Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd.) (“Hunan
Taiji”), and requested Hunan Taiji should proceed to a mandatory
dissolution to be implemented by Loudi Intermediate Court from
26 January 2021.

On 15 April 2021, Loudi Intermediate Court reiterated its ruling
and issued a civil judgement (RZEREZE), pursuant to which
Loudi Intermediate Court implemented the Mandatory Dissolution
Ruling, including, inter alias, the formation of a dissolution team
which was ordered to proceed with the mandatory dissolution
of Hunan Taiji. As a result, the directors of the Company have
concluded that the Group lost its control over Hunan Taiji on 15
April 2021. Further details of the dissolution please refer to note
38(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Hunan Taiji, which was engaged in the manufacture and sale
of construction materials, was reclassified as a discontinued
operation of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 upon the deemed disposal of Hunan Taiji on 15 April 2021.
Accordingly, the management of the Company had determined
that Hunan Taiji was de-consolidated from the consolidated
financial statements of the Group with effect from 15 April
2021 (“deemed disposal of a subsidiary”) and recognised as
equity investments at FVTPL. The results from the discontinued
operation were analysed and presented as follows:
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mEMBHRRMEE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)&

BE-B-—f+-A=+—A1FE s TH)E) BN
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
¥R B/ELEMNE 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DEEMED

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

H-ZT-—fF
_ )E] H=z
T
MmA+HHB
1E HAFA
Period from
1 January
2021
to 15 April
2021
T T
HK$’000
ERIEREER Discontinued operation

WA Revenue -
$HE R AR KA Cost of sales and services =
E7 Gross profit =
H A A R e 2 Other income and gains —
THER Administrative expenses (2,418)
Higes s 58 Other operating expenses, net (6,192)
HIERENmEEN kS Gain on deemed disposal of Hunan Taiji 4,817
BN 2R B B4R IE A& TSR B 18 Loss for the period from discontinued operation (3,7993)

HAEEEBER Loss for the period attributable to:
KRRER A Owners of the Company (330)
FEE IR M Non-controlling interests (3,463)
(3,793)

MEFREAEENFRSREWT

The net cash flows incurred by Hunan Taiji were as follows:

R-—F_—%F
—A—B%
T —F
WA+HH

1EHAA
Period from
1 January
2021

to 15 April
2021
FAT
HK$'000

REE
RE®ZH
BEA

Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

(47)

(47)
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 RE MR RMEE (F)
SEANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Sy~ - A=+ ALEE GUETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
MM1. BRITZEEXBRER/ELENE 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DEEMED
NI (,f,};) DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

EREHERH  MERENTIEENEE The major classes of assets and liabilities of Hunan Taiji as at date
MBEUARSGEHSHB A MHKELT of deemed disposal of a subsidiary and gain on deemed disposal
of a subsidiary were as follows:

RZEZ—%F

WMA+HH

As at

15 April

2021

T

HK$'000

Y3 BB MR Property, plant and equipment 35,798
FREEE Right-of-use assets 17,818
a5 Iﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁgﬂﬁl Prepayments and other receivables 66
FEU BB E A R Amount due from a related company 6,896
R MIRITA ﬁﬁ‘- Cash and bank balances 9
FETERER Accounts payable (854)
& 7R & B 3R IE Amount due to the Group (18,330)
FET R A R IR Amounts due to related companies (747)
HMENZIELETEE Other payables and accruals (16,073)
24,583

FEIERRRE RS Non-controlling interest (9,027)
B R &) % Exchange fluctuation reserve (5,746)
WAE L BB A F 8 W e Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 4,817
14,627

RZEZ—FHATHEERNPEREN Fair value of the 60% equity interests in Hunan Taiji
60% /% AN #E 75 0 A T {E on 15 April 2021 14,627
HRRIEHERWBARIMNIE S LIRS EEY An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
RFRE AT T respect of the deemed disposal of a subsidiary was as follows:

FET

HK$’000

ReRE Cash consideration -
HENRE RRITEE Cash and bank balances disposed of 9)

BRAGGELESTENRERRSEEY
B F 7 H

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the deemed disposal

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued).

12. EREE
(a) FERKREEBRERIEKEEK

FECEXEBRERIEREEBENER
EARAREEBRIIREA TEURE

REMBHRRME (&)

e

BE-—T-—g#+-A=+—B1FEEUETHE)E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
12. LOSS PER SHARE

(@) Continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations are based on the
following data:

—E-= T —F

2022 2021

FET TAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRitESRER B SEIEN Loss for the year attributable to owners of
FAXRRRIHE AEGLEBIE the Company used in the basic and diluted loss

per share calculations (4,526) (32,552)

Number Number

of shares of shares

il 4= gE 2 gE]

AR ESRENREEEHEN
FRE BT EBBINEFIHH

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year used in the basic and
diluted loss per share calculations

1,206,249,251 1,206,249,251

(b) FHEEEXRK
ARRRE ANEEFRELEBNTR
EAREEEEDRE AT BRI H -

(b) Continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
is based on the following data:

—E=-= T
2022 2021
THER T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRNARQREF AEMN Loss for the year attributable to owners of
RERFECEEBNER the Company from continuing operations (4,526) (32,222)

PREERM D B E X EREEB K
ERIEEEXBNERERLETER
et & AR R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations.
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: WNOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—ERECCFFZA=T—RHIEFEAETINE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. #REE (&)
(c) ERLEREXR

ARAHEB ARG R ILE
B B AR #E BRI R B IA T BURRT

12. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

(c) Discontinued operation

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
discontinued operation attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

—EC-CF T4
2022 2021
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FRNARRARIEER AEML Loss for the year attributable to owners of
KEERIEREXRBHNER the Company from discontinued operation - (330)

FRE B D B E X ptis AR & T
BERBOEBRERNREEER
et & AR R o

—HER B —F+__A=+—
SR LK’D\u A1 AR 2 BTBE S AN

5@$¢F§W§Eﬁ§iﬁ‘i*ﬁﬁ5)ﬁ*&ﬂﬂﬁg (:
T —FE) - szﬁ:zé_? —
Ft+-A=1+— EIJJ:iEAEf‘HEﬂH RE (=

Z—FE) o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

13.

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations.

The Company had no potential ordinary shares in issue as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared during the year (2021: Nil).
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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mEMBHRRMEE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued )

BE-TB- &+ A=+—B1EFE Vs I
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. Y% - BERRDRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KAERLH* BF HENEEE HEREE  BAERE RE @t
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total

TiEn TiEx TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E--E+ZA=1-H 31 December 2022
RZE--F+-A=+-HEK At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
ZEIZ5-A-H
AR Cost 2,797 38,818 10,764 7,351 3,783 8,455 71,968
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (8,722) (5,417) (7,351) (3,723) (8,246) (33,459)
REFE Net carrying amount 2,797 30,096 5,347 - 60 209 38,500
WZE-__f#-f-H" At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated
B2 TERAE depreciation and impairment 2,797 30,096 5,347 - 60 209 38,500
KEEMERE Depreciation provided for the year - (1,462) (1,053) - (25) - (2,540)
EHAE Exchange realignment 128 1,394 258 - - (16) 1,764
RZE-Zf+-A=1+-H" At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated
NBZANERAE depreciation and impairment 2,925 30,028 4,552 - 35 193 37,733
R-E_—f+-A=t+-H At 31 December 2022
KR Cost 2,925 40,592 11,255 7,686 3,883 8,372 74,7113
B TERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (10,564) (6,703) (7,686) (3,848) (8,179) (36,980)
EERE Net carrying amount 2,925 30,028 4,552 - 35 193 37,733

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED [epe
HOE B EARXAFRAF
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mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
——Ft_A=t+—RALFECABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
14. Y% - BERRE (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
KARRET BT BENEEE HBREREE  HOAZRE e a5
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAT TATL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“Z-—#+-f=t-H 31 December 2021
WZE-EE+-A=+-HR At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
“2--%-A-H
K& Cost 3,100 136,837 11,927 164,153 4,054 9,008 329,079
ZHHERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (71,070) (4,901) (157,685) (3,844) (8,769) (246,263)
RHFE Net carrying amount 3,100 65,767 7,026 6,468 210 245 82,816
W-5--f-f-H" At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated
R ZAERAE depreciation and impairment 3,100 65,767 7,026 6,468 210 245 82,816
irk Disposals - - - - (6) - 6)
RIELEMBAR (HE11) Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (Note 11) - (30,406) - (5,356) = (36) (35,798)
REEMERE Depreciation provided for the year - 2,006) (1,038) (282) (48) (5) (3,379)
HEEE ) Impairment losses (note (i) - = = (748) (82) = (830)
R A% Exchange realignment (303) (3,259) (641) (82) (14) 5 (4,294)
RZZ--F+-A=1+-H" At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated
MK E7ERAE depreciation and impairment 2,797 30,096 5,347 - 60 209 38,509
R-E--&E+-f=t+-H At 31 December 2021
KR Cost 2,197 38,818 10,764 7,351 3,783 8,455 71,968
ZAMERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (8,722) (6,417) (7,351) (3,723) (8,246) (33,459)
RAFE Net carrying amount 2,197 30,096 5,347 = 60 209 38,509

(i

R EEAINZ 1

HE-_T-_—F+-_A=1+—BILEE FEH
##92,540,0007 7T (==& = —4 : 3,379,000/ 1)
A+ 2,540,000/ 7T (ZF = —4F : 2,859,000/ 7T.)
EEBET(ZF=—F : 520,000 L) 2 BI5T AT
BREAREMEE S -

REZZF=Z—F+=-A=+—H 2EBIEELE
& (& (B AP % 5 5 AL T SREEAEE B A K 80 IR R AT E
PREEABM([(REEELEMN]) 2VE  BER
RBFTETHEE - AEERIERQFER L SKA
AT TRER M c EEARRSELEUR B
KAFRRESRERAE - LA ATFEGFESER
REEEHRNBE=M - RETE - CORIBEER
T 28 LA T2 3t A 2= 55 4 HE SRR (8 JE5 48 4748,00075 7T
82,000/ 7T ©

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

woE B

&

N

~ B R Al
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Located outside Hong Kong.

Amongst the depreciation provided for the year ended 31 December 2022 of
approximately HK$2,540,000 (2021: HK$3,379,000), HK$2,540,000 (2021:
HK$2,859,000) and nil (2021: HK$520,000) were charged to administrative
expenses and other operating expenses respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group performed an impairment assessment
based on fair value less costs of disposal with reference to valuations
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer on its property,
plant and equipment allocated to mining rights activities and exploration
and evaluation activities’ cash generating units (“CGUs”). In assessing the
CGUs, discounted cash flow projection is adopted. The above fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Based
on the assessments, impairment losses of approximately HK$748,000 and
HK$82,000 were recognised for plant and machinery and office equipment,
respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§



V.
mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT_—_F+_A=t—HILEFEUIETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. REY X 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—ZE-— —E-—F
2022 2021
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
N—A—BzEAEE Carrying amount at 1 January 76,414 77,921
AN ERABREENEEFR Net loss from fair value adjustment (5,078) (2,322)
[ 5, 38 & Exchange realignment (2,375) 815
Rt+-—A=+—HB2KEE Carrying amount at 31 December 68,961 76,414

EXRREMEZEEERRE

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above

comprises:
—TE-—fF T
2022 2021
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
KRB AR EAEEE Held under medium-term lease in the PRC 68,961 76,414

RZEZZFR-E-_—F+ZA=+—
H AEBNKENEELEH  EF2E
MBYEEAERGHEMXFITIERRDS
AR BARMBEEEENEELEE
HEITHHE ik%Agﬁm*“u%EE
EMHER S TREDEDNREBELLERE

MYyE=F BRE—THEFBIREE
B ISR R M ESTA ©

NR—ZTE-_—_HF+_A=+—H &K&EH
R T & #936,432,0008 T (Z & = — 4 :
40,366,000/ 70 ) 2/ TR E WD HIFER
SEHEREEREZER  FABERERNGEHY
TEHRER M 527 o

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2022 and 2021 with reference to valuations performed
by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer, on an open market value basis by direct comparison
method with the major input being the market price per unit
of floor area. Certain investment properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details of which
are included in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately HK$36,432,000
(2021: HK$40,366,000) were pledged to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group, details of which are included in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED [fpes
woE B AKX ER A A
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rNOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Pllgz—T——4+-A=+—B1L5E GUETHIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. BEYXE (B) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
NEEDR Fair value hierarchy
TRFAPAREBE 2 REYEZ AN FEFER The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
& o of the Group’s investment properties.
i B BEART ERFA

™% HRE HEWAE BREHAE

(E—#&) (=) (B=#) #at

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
THER TAER TERT THER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=ZB=-=F+=A As at 31 December 2022
=t—H
LEEDNTENRE Recurring fair value measurement for:
mAmE Commercial properties - - 68,961 68,961
R-ZBE-—F+=-A As at 31 December 2021
==E
KEMENTERFE Recurring fair value measurement for:
mAE Commercial properties - - 76,414 76,414
RAFE TEF-—REF_HHEZAFEE During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
FrEEE TEEASENE =R (ZFT=_— measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
Fm) o or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
m%ﬁ £ B & A &5 B 2 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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15.

A
REMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)f®
BE-T -+ A=1t—HIEFEABETIIE)EE

REWE (&)

PERAFESERAE=RANAFEFEN
Ef

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy:

[EE XS
Commercial
properties
FHT
HK$'000
KRB —F—A—HHNEREESR Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 77,921
NEERAEEERNEE SR Net loss from a fair value adjustment recognised in
TE B 7 AR profit or loss (2,322)
PE 5 S Exchange realignment 815
R-_EBE-_—F+-_FA=+—HEK Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and
—E-——F—B—HBWEESH 1 January 2022 76,414
N EFABRELENEETE Net loss from a fair value adjustment recognised in
EERERNER profit or loss (5,078)
B 3 AR Exchange realignment (2,375)
R-E-_—_F+_A=+—BHNEELHE Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 68,961
R-B-—_FR-_B-_-F+=A=+-—H At 31 December 2022 and 2021
AP EDR fh B & 1l ERATAEERAE
Fair value Significant
hierarchy Valuation techniques unobservable input
KRBt Rz EAYE B BEELBE ¥ G RBAMGER
Commercial properties in Beijing, PRC  Level 3 Direct comparison method Market unit price per square meter

ANN

AEBRBEELEE R ENBERER
AGER  HREBEBOUMEERLEMDZ
BENERK RREETER - ASESY
BOUXRN HBE - MHE FEHELENEU
WMEETON  URGEMENHEBERE
A5 EEER A FLER -

FEPAELABFFRKEMTHER R
T —F+-_A=+—H BumBHERL
FOCRE) 5% EHRRENENTFELFA
/(R &) #)3,448,00008 7T (= & — — 4 :
3,821,000/ 7T) °

R_E——FR_T-_—F+=-_A=+—
B FEAKERFBEZRENEDREE
EAEENEEYNE  HDAE ARG ESRK
BEmMEFAE

UAL REPORT 2022 %

Direct comparison method is adopted based on the principle of
substitution, where comparison is made based on prices realised
on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable properties.
Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature, character
and location are analysed and weighed against the respective
factors of each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of
market value.

The key input was the market unit price. A 5% increase/(decrease)
in the market unit price (per square meter) would result in an
increase/(decrease) of approximately HK$3,448,000 (2021:
HK$3,821,000) in the fair value of the investment properties as at
31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC are commercial properties held by the
Group either for capital appreciation or for earning rentals.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
woE B AKX ER A A
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N

lnz—2-—F+-A=+—B1LFEGETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. FHREEE 16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
AEBRELEREANE T L REFE The Group has lease contracts for certain land and buildings used
FTHRESY - THEREFHHREHE KA in its operations. Leases of land and buildings generally have
H2GFE (ZEZ—F : #9252 11.5%F) o lease terms of 2 years (2021: ranging from approximately 2 to
11.5 years).
RAEAFERN AEBFERAEEENERTEN The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
ganr movements during the year are as follows:
HE i T REF &5t
Leasehold Land and
land buildings Total
THET FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-_E-_—4F—HF—H As at 1 January 2021 17,920 1,314 19,234
%40 Additions - 38,911 38,911
MEER Depreciation charge (154) (2,583) (2,737)
RIELEWB AR (HaE11) Deemed disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 11) (17,818) - (17,818)
HEBNH Lease modification - 867 867
PE W 58 B Exchange realignment 52 616 668
R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—HK Asat 31 December 2021 and
—_E-_—_%#—A—H 1 January 2022 - 39,125 39,125
WEER Depreciation charge - (4,143) (4,143)
LIEMRE (K 7#29) Lease termination (Note 29) - (82,579) (32,579)
bE 3 2 Exchange realignment - (2,034) (2,034)
R-E-——F+—-H=+—H As at 31 December 2022 - 369 369

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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BE-T-_—#+-A=+—RALFECUETSIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. Hib\B\EEEE 17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BRR
FHEE RuERE &5t
Exploration
and evaluation Mining
assets rights Total
TER FTERT TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Kt EE (i) (Kt &2 (ii))
(Note (i) (Note (ii)
—E--f#+=-A=+—H 31 December 2022
RZE_—_F—RA—HZKA Cost at 1 January 2022, net of
B 25T 8 ROR(E accumulated amortisation and
impairment - - -
BRI EEE Impairment loss recognised - - -
TE 5, & Exchange realignment - - -
R-ZBE-—_F+=-A=1+—8 At 31 December 2022 - - -
R-—E-—F+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2022
BN Cost 15,431 14,411 29,842
2 EERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (15,431) (14,411) (29,842)
REFE Net carrying amount = - -
T —F+ZR=+—H 31 December 2021
RZBEZ—F—A—HZKK Cost at 1 January 2021, net of
B 2 5H# 88 ROR(E accumulated amortisation and
impairment 2,995 3,854 6,849
ERRBERBE Impairment loss recognised (2,712) (3,478) (6,190)
0E Exchange realignment (283) (376) (659)
R-ZB-—F+=-B=1+—8 At 31 December 2021 - - -
R-ZBE-_—F+=-A=1+—8 At 31 December 2021
DR Cost 14,757 13,781 28,538
2 EEERE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (14,757) (13,781) (28,538)
REFE Net carrying amount - - _

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Jepen
HOE B EARXAFRAF
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Mazs—T-——&+-p=+—A &8 EToE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

17. R B EE (&)

0] DR EEETZEEBZ AR RMEERER

YRS 2 Frar i - 3ol 8 DA R Bh R RaFAd TIERK
—ER-T-_—F+=-_A=1+—RH1
AP R - R EEER A RERAATE

BB
HEITHS

ARAREE2EBUEXE S BRGERN LRI
BHBERAA ((HE]) HEHRRF[EER
—E - —F+ A=+ BNEEETRENE
MERAAFER L ERANSER - BTG
BHREFGEEECKIETHREMGEDRESE
HEEA - AT EHRMTEEER  ERANER
ADE o B AFEFESBERAFESER
ME=R - A RESBIHEEEHFELSS
ER EERKEXNAMETE - AAHDRRTEE
ERMHEREOFHRE (AKX 520.0% + B
RERT) - REFTME  ARERRMRERFHE
ERNEFARESEEALRASE  IXHES
T+ A=t B LFEARBRRFHE

LREHE

ERRREEEL2,712,0008 7T °

(ii) FRERERBR BN ERE TR 2R -
RERBREDRBEIS 2 BT EEREREESN
T REE-_T-_—FER_T——
=S+-BHLFERN FEBBEELE -

AAREEFLEBUEELEEGHERMLLHER
BER T -—F+- =+ HBHEETHE
Ml MERAAFEREEXRNASER - BT
T RBEREEEAETHRRTIEEDESES
BAL o R EEER BEERANRASRERENA
Ee FMAFEAESIERAFESHNE=H -
HualpeEhssghtBELSh E2 - &E
RISERARTEE - A BREEN T REF R
(P AMITIRE 518.6% ' EXRAT) - RIEAT
BB G AR E S ERRE R
- —F+ZA=+—HIEF
[ P Bt 5% 7 42 i R0 (B E5 8 403,4 78,0007 7T ©

i A&
[kt

WREZEZ

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

Notes:

(i)

(i

The exploration and evaluation assets mainly represent the cost of
concessions, permits and exploration and evaluation works related to
various coal and mineral mines in Peru, which are under the exploration and
evaluation stage as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. These assets are not
subject to amortisation until they are placed in use.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited
(“Ravia”), an independent professional qualified valuer, on its exploration and
evaluation assets as at 31 December 2021 based on fair value less costs
of disposal. For the purpose of assessment, the exploration and evaluation
assets have been allocated to exploration and evaluation activities” CGU.
In assessing the exploration and evaluation assets, discounted cash flow
projection method is adopted. The above fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The recoverable amounts
are determined by taking into account the estimated mine life, production
volume, selling price and operating costs. The assessments cover a 9-year
period using discount rate of 20.0% and zero growth rate for the exploration
and evaluation assets. Based on the assessments, the Group determined that
the estimated recoverable amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
was lower than its carrying amount and recognised impairment losses of
approximately HK$2,712,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 on its
exploration and evaluation assets.

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining activities pertaining
to coal mines in Peru. The mining rights were amortised on a unit of
production basis over the estimated economic reserve of the mine. The mines
were suspended for production for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by Ravia, an independent professional
qualified valuer, on its mining rights as at 31 December 2021 based on fair
value less costs of disposal. For the purpose of assessment, the mining
rights have been allocated to mining rights activities’” CGU. In assessing
the mining rights, discounted cash flow projection method is adopted. The
above fair value measurements are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The recoverable amounts are determined by taking into account
the estimated mine life, production volume, selling price and operating costs.
The assessments cover a 9-year period using discount rate of 18.6% and
zero growth rate for the mining rights. Based on the assessments, the Group
determined that the estimated recoverable amount of the mining rights
was lower than its carrying amount and recognised impairment losses of
approximately HK$3,478,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 on its
mining rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)m ¥

.

REMBHRRME (&)

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—AuLFE T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. L AT EtEBHEHE st AEz 18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
WERAEKRE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—=2-__ —E-—F
2022 2021
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
JELEMRAKE A FE: Unlisted equity investments, at fair value:
—HERE — Hunan Taiji - 32,922
Lt 3 E IR E AR 2 E HI60% A% AN fE The above unlisted investments represent 60% equity interest in
B OHEA—FREREKIAAT - /Eﬂﬁ,J\ Hunan Taiji, a company established in the PRC. Hunan Taiji was
ERA-_E-_—FNA+HEBRBEILES de-consolidated from the consolidated financial statements of the
REBMEGEMBHREA - WHKRE B ER Group with effect from 15 April 2021 and recognised as equity
LAATEEBRHEEH T ARBIHR 7TK %x investments at FVTPL on the same date, please refer to note 11
g BEES  WELRHEAU BRI to the consolidated financial statements for the details.
11 o
B LMIELETMIRENED @ WBL2HERE Please refer to note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
B SRR M aE41 - for the movement of the above unlisted investments.
)‘5(\\_ T _F RN F+_A=+— Hunan Taiji is in the process of mandatory dissolution as at 31
N RETREETREGE - BE#@ December 2022 and 2021, please refer to note 38(b) to the
\E B 2B A TR R M EES8(0) consolidated financial statements for the details.
19. & 19. INVENTORIES
—E=-= T
2022 2021
FET FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R A BB FE Raw materials and consumables 5 5
25K i Finished goods 30,216 22,023
30,221 22,028

,-—E

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
OE B E AR R D F
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 RE MR RMEE (F)
SFANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SlBE T —F - A=+ BILEE GUBTAIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. FE W BR X 20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
—E-= —ET=—

2022 2021

TERT FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

JrE U BR X Accounts receivable 624 1,196
A Impairment (624) (1,196)
FEUBE R — AR ZL AR - — %W Accounts receivable are usually due immediately from the date of
SEEXEENFZ - HEEEH —KAE—E billing. Payment in advance is normally required except the credit
A MEEANEEERBEERLIEEREE period is generally 1 month extending up to 2 months for certain
REEB T ER 2 E TEPEZAEREM customers from coal mining business and sale of parts of mining
@B o N5 B3 4458 % 8 W BN >~ fE Uk B equipment business of the Group. The Group seeks to maintain
R B ESREEE  WHE LA EEET strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue
HE EEEEE  MWREEERE - EIER balances which are reviewed regularly by senior management to
AEBTERTITEUAETNEBEE - minimise credit risk. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing

and mainly denominated in USD and Soles.

FEWES R ERE L EFHINT - The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:

—TE-F —E -

2022 2021

THER FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

REL At the beginning of year 1,196 2,317
TR BRI EEE Impairment loss recognised - 489
i o] B R AR EE 18 Reversal of impairment loss recognised (627) (923)
B 48 5 UK [e1 T i 55 Write-off as uncollectible = (555)
PE 5 7 % Exchange realignment 55 (132)
RER At the end of year 624 1,196
MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED .
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V.
mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHE_ZT-__F+_A=+—HILFEGBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. FEURBEFX (88) 20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)
AN pE A S IS RS R F oS (L The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
FRETETEHEEEE  ERpmEaRKER expected credit losses by recognising a lifetime expected loss
T 52 BB ) 4A HiE R R R {8 17 48 HA 7Y 78 HA 5 18 1 allowance for all accounts receivable from initial recognition. To
#H-BAAEEBEEEERE  BRERERE measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
HRAEERBEBROHRBESHE - B been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
BERMERNEER  SEMEEEE U days past due. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
ERHRERHRASEBAALSH - E51dR outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
RARREEAR RTINS LA ST HFNEER - supportable information that is available at the reporting date

about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

LA 871 2 52 [ /e AR SR P E B {5 B R B MY Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
& the Group’s accounts receivable:
mH
Past due
PR—ER —ZFZ=@BA BB=M@A &%
Less than 1t03 Over 3
1 month months months Total
R-B-—fF As at 31 December 2022
+=A=+—H
Em®E(FET) Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) = = 624 624
BHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate - - 100% 100%
EEEE (&) Loss allowance (HK$’000) - - (624) (624)
RZTEZ—F As at 31 December 2021
+—-A=+—H”
EEAE(FET) Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) - - 1,196 1,196
BHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate - = 100% 100%
EBERE(TET) Loss allowance (HK$’000) - - (1,196) (1,196)
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F & K CQPI:;AIH%H;LDKIN%S IB-EIM,Z\\TE; 171

-/



: EMBEHRRHE (EF)
‘_NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
g Em e —E A=t —BIEEE OB THIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21. A ZE - e N EMEWFIE PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
—E2-= —F -
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEI FRIE Prepayments 1,320 968
& (K:t) Deposits (Note) 4,882 53,026
H fth & UL 5K I8 Other receivables 15,114 15,267
21,316 69,261
R Impairment (7) (26)
21,309 69,235
DA Analysed into:
mENER Current portion 21,309 19,235
BN D Non-current portion = 50,000
Bt - Note:

RZFEZ—F+-A=+—H8 FAEENZSBEE—%
50,000,000 7T ) < 58 4 Bt W BB B BB A B 1 S f+F - HAE4R
EUBRRRADERIETBEE - REBHA-ZT=——
FZARAMNEERS  ARREKHEREEE  mirE
BMOENEEREARAR (BN ARHERELERH
(BMsrEm B ERILERR AR ([BEAR]) 22 2PRHE) -
# X {8 4186,000,000% T - BIZARIMEKBERED
XREURMEETEEY - BELEMRAFEI4AT - B2
W EABKBEERS R-_ZE-__F+HA-+XH &
SEBEEHTVRIEGE Bt BESHTRERILEER
BEREERE BT —F+A-TNBRBER &
CERNHE-E-_—F+-A=+—BILEERNREX

£

AR RIA ~ 12 & & H A B MOGRIE 2 R (E
BEmT

As at 31 December 2021, included in the deposits of the Group there was a balance
of HK$50,000,000 paid for acquisition of a subsidiary classified as non-current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. Pursuant to a sale and
purchase agreement dated 5 March 2021, the Company conditionally agreed
to purchase, and Macrolink Asia Industrial Investment Limited (the “Vendor”)
conditionally agreed to sell the shares, which represent the entire equity interest
of FEMHELEBI AT (the “Target Company”), at a total consideration of
HK$186,000,000. The business scope of the Target Company included property
leasing and property management and operations. The proposed acquisition
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Group has entered into a termination agreement with the Vendor on 26 October
2022 pursuant to which the parties agreed to terminate the sale and purchase
agreement and a supplemental agreement effective as of 26 October 2022. The
deposits were refunded to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables are as follows:

—E=-= T

2022 2021

TET FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

REH) At the beginning of year 26 3,999
BRI EEE Impairment loss recognised 35 1,866
BRI EEEE O Reversal of impairment loss recognised (55) -
A 48 57 Wz [B] T 0 88 Write-off as uncollectible - (5,507)
BEE 5, 3 & Exchange realignment 1 (332)
RER At the end of year 7 26

172 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBHRRMEE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)&

RE-F-—F+-A=+—ALFE (A5 S
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. EMIHE - R R EMEWSIE 21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

(88) RECEIVABLES (continued)
ERPREETEHEMERRENSEERNTEE The movements in the ECL allowance related to financial assets
FEEEEEENESNT - included in other receivables are as follows:

EEFEY REFESY
BEHEE BHEE

1218 B A 8 s — s —
FEEE KRERREE = ARE st
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL
12-month credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
TET FHET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-_E-_—F—A—H At 1 January 2021 - - 27 27
bE 5 38 B Exchange realignment = = (1) (1)
R-ZE-_—F+=A At 31 December 2021 and
=F+—AkR=ZZE=Z 1 January 2022
—H—H - - 26 26
ANiEEH %420 Reversal upon settlement = = (27) (27)
HE H, 8 & Exchange realignment = - 1 1
R-ZB-Z-%+=A At 31 December 2022
=+—H - - - -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
OE B E AR R D F
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oz-—2-—#+-f=t—g.remGusTsiE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 EWWBEANTIRE  FEREKRE

NCIE/S
(a) FEWEIELQTRE

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/
AN INVESTEE COMPANY

(@) Amounts due from related companies

TEEANES
REEBEER —E-= T —F
Maximum
outstanding
during the
year 2022 2021
#et THERT THERT FET
AR EE Name of company Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Junefield Group S.A. Junefield Group S.A. (i) 66 66 64
Junefield Premium Metal Junefield Premium Metal
Company S.A.C. Company S.A.C. (i) B 5 4
Junefield Mining S.A.C. Junefield Mining S.A.C. (i) 590 587 590
Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C. Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C. (1) 159 159 159
BIKIEERR A A Mega Choice Investment
Limited (i) 81 81 81
Junefield Geological Junefield Geological
Explorations Institute S.A.C.  Explorations Institute S.A.C. (i) S 5 B
I U B S i EE B Beijing Junefield Real
BRAA Estate Development
Company Limited (i) 94 94 48
997 951
JEWAEERRIFIBEAEEN 2EREETE The amounts due from related companies are unsecured,

B -
Mt

0] RARMTEFARALRENRABRMEE (F
FED RZRERDEAEDES -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

N

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Note:
(i) Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He (“Mr. Zhou”), a close family member of Mr. Zhou

Jianren (an executive director of the Company), has beneficial interests
in these companies.
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mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-T-_—F+-A=1+—BLLFECUETIIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
22 EWBEATRE EWHIRE 22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/
2|

NBFHIE(8F) AN INVESTEE COMPANY (continued)
(a) FEWREEE D IIRE (&) (@) Amounts due from related companies
(continued)
ERAPREERKNBEEARZKIENEME The movements in ECL allowance related to financial assets
ENTEREEBBREENEBNT ! included in amounts due from related companies are as
follows:
ZAFEH
EHEEEE -
= ARE
Lifetime
ECL
credit-
impaired
FHT
HK$’000
R-—ZZE-_—F—HF—H At 1 January 2021 -
HRER B E B Impairment loss recognised 6,061
BIELEKN B R A Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (6,061)
R-ZB-Z-F+=ZA=+—H ZFZZH At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and
—A—-BR=-B-=Z5+ZA=+—H 31 December 2022 -
(b) BW#HIRE QA RIRIE (b) Amounts due from an investee company
R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H EKHKE As at 31 December 2021, the amounts due from an investee
WERRFIEAEIKIE - 124.85%K) F company were unsecured, bore interest at 4.85% per
MEAHEFE  RERBANF15EAZE annum and with original terms of repayment ranging from
ME - BEFRBELRBE_Z = fifteen months to two years. The amounts have been settled
TZA=+—BLEFEANEN - during the year ended 31 December 2022.
REBEEZT-__F+-A=+—HIEF The maximum outstanding balance during the year for
EA - BURHERE QR REBERFTENR amounts due from an investee company was approximately
B AR BB ERA 18,744,000/ 7T HK$18,744,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
OE B E AR R D F

-/
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B E_T_—F+_A=+—HLFECBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
23. UNFEAEBEHEEHT AEER 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

€@ TH THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—E-— —_F_—
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETRAEE  EHmE: Listed equity investments, at market value:
— BB - Hong Kong 15,539 16,121

AR EABRAEEDFEEE Bt E5H The above equity investments were classified as financial
HAUATEAEEEEFH A ABEINSRE instruments at fair value through profit or loss as they were held
TH- for trading.

24. BERB|ITHER 24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

—Eq- —EF=-—
2022 2021
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
& RIRTTAE Cash and bank balances 98,348 114,006

RFEPHEERE AEEUAARE (TAR
BEHECRE RIRITESR L A17,953,000
BT (T~ — 4 : 20,655,000/ 7T) M 17
RAEBEZRT BEARBRAEHLES
Hih &8 R BIE T B A HNEE B AIE
B R 4EE - EERNESERTE  ~AEER
MEREAETIIEEBNRITHARE LR
EE M E -

R-ZEBE-_—_F+_-_A=+—8 " BEL KK
EHRBIET A WBRIT 24 # 431,000
W (HERK63,0008T) (T - —F:
32,000 B (185 1 4963,000/%& 7T) ) 1E A& %%
EERRNRES -

RITRSBEBEE BRITERMRIZFEHH =X
AR RITEBRENEERFAYEINE
HIRCER ZSRTTIA

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$17,953,000 (2021: HK$20,655,000) and
placed with banks in the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the cash and bank
balances, there was a balance of approximately Soles 31,000 or
equivalent to approximately HK$63,000 (2021: Soles 32,000 or
equivalent to approximately HK$63,000), placed in bank in Peru
as guarantee fund for issuing of credit card.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
%ﬁ = 5 KX B B 2 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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mEMBHRRMEE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)£

BE_T__F+-_A=T—HIEFE CABIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

25. ETIR®A

RBERR  RERAHFECASEHEN
FRK BRI D ATAN T

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable as at the end

of the reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

—=2-__ —E-—F

2022 2021

TET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

— & A LAA Within 1 month 409 2

—Z=={@A 1 to 3 months =
HBiE =1 A Over 3 months 396 2,747
805 2,749
ERERAETTEREEUETLRERE © Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are mainly
denominated in USD and Soles.
HitENHERES AR 26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—E=-= —E -

2022 2021

TET FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Bt BaE Accruals 16,607 19,679
FER P T Business tax payable 2,030 2,030
Bz e Deposits received 1,354 1,351
aHaE Contract liabilities 1,252 685
H Ath & A 5/ I8 Other payables 22,767 23,688
44,010 47,433

FEtBETITEQRESNE - FRREXS The accruals mainly comprise of accrued interest, legal
AUEHE - HiWENREBE AT E R E and professional fees and salaries. Other payables are
EUARBEEBE- non-interest-bearing and are mainly denominated in RMB and

BHRERERRINERRE @MUK E

HIBWR -R_F_—F GHAGEEMNE

%TJEEEAEEEEE‘M)%F mE 5B WEEFH
HAFE UL TR P IE AN

R-ZB-_—F+=-A=+—8 HibERK
ENEHRBRENEIEERRFEHARE
2,025,0007T (#E R 492,455,000/ ) (==
——F @) EATEE  WAARBEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R

Soles.

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
products and goods. The increase in contract liabilities in year
2022 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the trading of mineral
products at the end of the year.

Included in the balance of other payables as at 31 December
2022, there is an amount of approximately RMB2,025,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,455,000) (2021: Nil) due to an
investee company and is non-interest-bearing and denominated in
RMB.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HOE B EARXAFRAF
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WANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
——H+ - A=+—BLEFECABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27. it EHEMEE 27. INTEREST-BEARING OTHER BORROWINGS
—E_-_ T —4F
2022 2021
iokza FET TAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BDHA Current
HEm B —HHEF Other loan — secured (i) 8,000 22,000
H &3 — R Other loan — unsecured (if) 5,597 6,115
EEr Total 13,597 28,115
WA Analysed into:
AEREZHMEE Other borrowings repayable:
—— FRRIZERER — Within one year or on demand 13,597 28,115
K&t - Notes:

(i)

(i)

REBEFE—ZRE ARAE 525,000,000/ 7T
B—FEHERFT L R AEEz —REE
EeHK - FEAEMEFABITAE @ RFME
BEFBIAR—ZT-NF-—AEE R=_FT—+
F+=R NEBEBEZREAFT LM HE - HE
BHEE—STEHE_T—NLF-—HA=H -

RZB-NAF-A AEEEZREAR
25,000,000/ L) —F B HIERETSLH 55 - BRI

FRE/B%  ERAHMA-_T_TF—F[=H-
R-Z_ZTF—F EFXAHEE—STERE_Z

——F—A=ZH -RER=-ZT=—F— AEXNH
FRE - BERAPDE—SPEEE_T-__F—A8
=H MEMEEEFT A% - RENR=ZT ==
F—AEROBRERE  BEHIZERLRE
4 B (BRRR) X 1440,000/8 T L HE &
EEEHEE—SEEE T =F—AF=H -
BRZZ-_=F— A4XRNERRE  RikmnR
B ERIES - 821 (BRERR) X 160,000
THNRHE  HERHEE S TCEE_T_NF
—A=8H-

R-TE-_—HF+-_A=+—H ZEZULKE
= Bk T 42 fE 4 536,432,000 T (=T = — & :
40,366,000/ 7T) B TREMEERER - K=
T__FR-ZZEF-—F+ZR=+—H BHEEX
MABBALEER TFTHEABERARBERE ()
BRAFRI(AGXEREFHEAERER) A THR
RAIERIEBIRF -

%Tﬁ#ﬁm%%@x)\iﬁ%ﬁﬁ REFIE9.5E 5
RBREREBR -

(i)

(i

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

The Group entered into an agreement with a money lender in Hong Kong for
one-year term loan with principal amount of HK$25,000,000 for facilitating
the general working capital needs of the Group. The secured other loan is
denominated in HK$, interest-bearing at 8% per annum and was repayable
in January 2018. In December 2017, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement with the money lender and the repayment date was further
extended to 3 January 2019.

In January 2019, the Group entered into a new agreement with the money
lender for one-year term loan of HK$25,000,000 with interest at 8% per
annum and repayment date on 3 January 2020. In January 2020, the
repayment date was further extended to 3 January 2021. Pursuant to a
supplemental deed effective in January 2021, the repayment date is further
extended to 3 January 2022 with interest rate revised to 8.5% per annum.
Pursuant to a supplemental deed effective in January 2022, the repayment
date is further extended to 3 January 2023 based upon conditions precedent
in the supplemental deed including but not limited to the payment of
arrangement fee of HK$440,000. Pursuant to a supplemental deed effective
in January 2023, the repayment date is further extended to 3 January 2024
based upon conditions precedent in the supplemental deed including but not
limited to the payment of arrangement fee of HK$160,000.

As at 31 December 2022, the loan is secured by certain of the Group’s
investment properties with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$36,432,000 (2021: HK$40,366,000). The loan is also secured by personal
guarantee given by Mr. Zhou and corporate guarantee given by Junefield
(Holdings) Limited (in which Mr. Zhou has beneficial interests) as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The unsecured other loan is denominated in RMB, bears interest at a rate of
9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued): 3

ZENFRIAREER - 2B REETERY -

HERE

R-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HH A&EEAH
WABRFRTTHEAR - HARTNEE
HA2F(ZZE-—F : 26F) °

R-ZB-_—F+-_A=+—8 WENHEE
RO B116F HEZSWEEALERN
ERKEHAREAAE BREERKENE
EREIBER N_T_—_F+_-H %
FEHBEF (RRAFNEEEZEWBAR)F]
VRIEHERHE((RIEAE]) it ¥+
DREABRMEIASHUNBESHA - T
S LATHENEERE TREAEE
BEREHZETEMNNAERS RES
BRA-FTHNANER SO ZEHERER
HEEANAANRECDRESE 774
HZEREERENEITRELE N FEEEM
FEZ RIS ETEYH S — A EETM
BHET HRIEMAER FHRESERME
EaEMEESEY F432,579,000% T &
31,348,000 T E KR ILHER  WREZZZ
T+ A+ RAULFERNEEZRNRE
RIE1E 491,231,000/ 70 ° B - RIEL LR
ENGER REBEE_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—
HEFERN MAZNHEEMREBLELY
8,124,000 L MEIBm AR AL ARE
A MU -

%

29.

REMBHRRME (&)

BE_Z__F+_A=+—HLEFECUETIIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
FEAEEERANT BBE/NTFIE 28. AMOUNTS DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING

COMPANY/RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2022, the Group has lease contracts for office
premises. Lease of office premises has lease term of 2 years
(2021: 2 years)

As at 31 December 2021, lease of properties had lease term
of approximately 11.5 years. The leasing of the properties was
intended for use by the Group as short-term or long-term rental
serviced apartments with ancillary business premises such
as catering and convenience stores. In December 2022, the
landlord and the tenant (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into a lease termination arrangement (the
“Lease Termination”) whereas the landlord has agreed to early
terminate the lease term and the lease agreement dated 5 July
2021 and waive all rent and operating expenses which remains
payable by the Group under the lease agreement. The parties also
confirm that all outstanding amounts between the parties arising
from the lease agreement have been fully settled and that there
is no dispute between the parties in relation to the performance
and termination of the lease agreement and each party shall
not bear any liabilities for breach of contract to the other party.
Upon the Lease Termination, the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of approximately HK$32,579,000 and
HK$31,348,000 were derecognised, and a loss of approximately
HK$1,231,000 is recognised in the profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022. There were also outstanding lease
payments with aggregate amount of approximately HK$8,124,000
recognised as gain on waiver of rent from lessor in the profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 pursuant to the terms
of the Lease Termination.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
woE B AKX ER A A
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 RE MR RMEE (F)
ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

PlgE - — 5+ - A=+—BIFE OUBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2. HEBE (&) 29. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
AEBERABA (F) The Group as a lessee (continued)

RAEERN AEBHEEBENEOSER The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
EHEEFHNMT : the year are as follows:
—ZE2-— —E-—F
2022 2021
FTERT FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R—A—BMERE%E Carrying amount at 1 January 40,764 1,304
WHEE New lease = 38,911
M 23 N Accretion of interest 2,110 1,188
B Repayment (904) (942)
AR ERICOVID-190f &5 Covid-19-related rent concession from lessor - (1,207)
HEARREES Waiver of rent from lessor (8,124) -
HEEBNK Lease modification _ 867
RIEHE Lease termination (31,348) -
BEE 5 38 B Exchange realignment (2,123) 643
RTZA=1T—H0EHE<HE Carrying amount at 31 December 375 40,764
WA Analysed into:
mENER Current portion 375 7,261
FERENE D Non-current portion = 33,503

HERENI R AT ESE M B HRERME

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42(e)

N

42(e)N 1 55 o

E‘JETEEETE@WTJE G0N E’Jigﬁﬁlﬂ—

to the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are

as follows:
—=E=- = T -—F
2022 2021
FERT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEBGENFE Interest on lease liabilities 2,110 1,188
FTRHEEENEEHR Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 4,143 2,737
HRHEEREMAY Expense relating to short-term leases 167 79
KRIEFHEREIR Loss on termination of lease 1,231 -
HHAREE S8 WS Gain on waiver of rent from lessor (8,124) -
H AR A RBCOVID-198F 4 /& Covid-19-related rent concession from lessor = (1,207)
R ANERNEE Total amount recognised in profit or loss (473) 2,797

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30. BIEREN

RIRFT B E AL A2 B — K IR1T (1ERERM &
EEEERAR ([SBMEE]) MERA) FIE]
VEHAE-E—NAF+—ANBHNEREHE
(BmaHEmrREE]) (ERER])) - #
BEMWELKL (RAFzHAEZ2ENBAR)
MEIRITEBEE TIREME - UERIBINGE
E(RALERKRE2ERBENASERER
A MERAE A ARKS35000,0007T2 B
K210 B Z A4 A R#8,000,0007T & #HEE 7
EFREEFREECER  BEEFHAZS
—NE+—ANBREFME - HHBEHEL
WLER MBS I L WE RS - B - 88
REREREBEHESL TN X EFE
2 ARM120,0007C © ARG BE M E KL
RIBHERB TN 2 ETREZBEBERE -
BN ENRRAEE R E M E KL IRMH
BR - MESINKEED  EBeRAETRE
B ELLRIBHYBERABRNME R
RAREX -

FEERAONEERRBODEBE K
B - REBEE_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HIEF
ER @ &R 2ZBY ETAERE -

REBEE-_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—"BILtEFEE
N BBERGHEKIE MKREMED
AL B &8 -
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V.
mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—B8ItFE GAETHE)EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

Junefield Property Agency, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pledged certain of its investment properties in
favour of a bank as security for the repayment obligations of %!
B EAR AR (“Jinzhou Rongxin®), a related company of the
Group which is ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou, for partial
loan principal amount of RMB8,000,000 plus related interests in
respect of a loan of principal amount RMB35,000,000 and tenure
is for a period of two years from 8 November 2019, pursuant
to mortgage agreements (as supplemented and amended by a
supplement agreement) dated 8 November 2019 entered between
Junefield Property Agency and a bank (as lender to Jinzhou
Rongxin) (the “Mortgage Agreements”). Junefield Property Agency
and Jinzhou Rongxin also entered into an indemnity agreement,
whereby Jinzhou Rongxin agreed to pay Junefield Property
Agency a one-time handling charge of RMB120,000 and to fully
indemnify Junefield Property Agency’s obligations under the
Mortgage Agreements. Jinzhou Rongxin’s parent company has
also provided guarantees to Junefield Property Agency that it will
assume all fees and losses incurred to Junefield Property Agency
in respect of the provision of financial guarantee, in case of default
by Jinzhou Rongxin.

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contract was
classified as stage 1. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
there were no transfers between stages.

The financial guarantee contract has expired and the charge over
the investment properties have been released during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERME (F)
ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

WE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIME)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. EEFHRIBERE 31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
AEBBELEHRBEEBERFAZESHAT - The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities during the

year are as follows:

EfYE
Revaluation
of properties

FAT
HK$'000
R-ZE-_—&F—HF—H At 1 January 2021 34,403
FFABRAELERIE Deferred tax credited to profit or loss (1,568)
N =% Exchange differences 224
R-_EBE-_—F+-_A=+—HEK At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
—T-—F%—HA—H 33,059
T A RAELERIB Deferred tax credited to profit or loss (2,191)
PE 3 E R Exchange differences (654)
HR-—ZE-_—&#+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2022 30,214
REBAKB ST ZHEEIE%820,00078 7T The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
—E = —4 1,062,000/ 7T) Al R EA A R HK$820,000 (2021: HK$1,062,000) and that are available
I HIEEEZ A Z KRR ERBREF o 4 indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
£ [F IR A A B EE AR B TR B 18 427,842,000 companies in which the losses arose. The Group has tax losses
ZZT = — 4 46,028,000/ L) WK —= arising in the PRC of approximately HK$27,842,000 (2021:
AFEAE M - K ERRERT & o HK$46,028,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.
REBTIARXREBMEBZHREBEY The Group also has tax losses arising in Peru of approximately
96,894,000/ 7t (= Z = — 4 : 123,150,000 HK$96,894,000 (2021: HK$123,150,000) which the Group has
BIT) MAEEAEELERF 2 TAK the option to carry forward all net operating losses for five years
BEEFENERHAEER ERZE or carry the losses forward indefinitely, but only up to 50% of
AEMBRANSHEFEZERFKBAZ the taxpayer’'s taxable income of each subsequent year. Loss
50% * ISR EH AT 2 B8 o carryback is not permitted.
HABREEERAEEDE BRERZHE Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax
ANT|l FARAIEEE R BB IEEEEREZ losses arising in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
FERREHA - MW ER T BEERRELER time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
TEEE - available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

'PYRl ' ACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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V.
mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FHZ A=+ HLEFE(ETIE)EE

HE—_ZET——

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. B IBE G (E) 31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
BERBEPEMEVEANRE - KNP BT Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
ZINECEMBIKEEST K ZRE B withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
WI0%FEMH - EBEETE T /\F— A from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC.
—HEEHR TEBRR-_ZEZE+F+_-A The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
—t+t—BURBRELEZAEA - P HEGREE earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
INEEEBREEER 2B A MBED may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
T Bk Al IR s FE IR A R 2 o gt & jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
mE - EAMEAR%HKI0% - It A rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
EBERRPBRKIZHEARIEZ_ZEZE N taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
F-—A—BREEZEAATD K2 EEMH the PRC in respect of earnings generated since 1 January 2008.
BHHR R E_—_FhN_FTE-_—F+_H There were no unremitted earnings for the PRC subsidiaries as at
=+—H8 - B EREERE L AF o 31 December 2022 and 2021.

32. R 32. SHARE CAPITAL

REAHE (L&
Number of shares Share capital
—E-_C—& —E-—F —E-_C—F —E-—&
2022 2021 2022 2021
TERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000

ETE Authorised:

BREE010E T 2 T Hk Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 25,000,000,000  25,000,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

BETRAR: Issued and fully paid:

R—A—BRE+=-A=+—H  At1January and 31 December 1,206,249,251 1,206,249,251 120,625 120,625

33. #F15 33. RESERVES
NREBAREFEN F—FEZ2FHESHELEE The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
BN ANERFOREETFUBE GO TR for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
27 o statement of changes in equity on pages 93 to 94 of this annual

report.

(i) BEAARTEMEARZAGMEA - ()  According to the Articles of Association of the PRC
B AREBEBMBHEMZ10%2] subsidiary of the Company which require the appropriation
BELERNRHE BEEREASRED of 10% of its profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserve
HEFMEARZ50% A 1E - HEEAERA until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of its registered
EEEA ANRER S FIER c AT RHB capital. The transfer of the reserve must be made before
HER AN BMEIE  WriRIEE%EA distributions of dividends to owners of the Group. Statutory
ANBRZBDLLZHhES AIEA - tEF surplus reserve can be used for making up losses and may
ARTRZESRTIEVOREFRERZ be converted into capital in proportion to existing owners’
25% ° equity percentage, provided that the balance after such

issuance is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

(i) HMREEAAXRABRRITES EER (i)  Other reserve represents the capital contribution from a
IR H| T B E S AT IEFI AR E A A related company controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan, an executive
FTERHE - director, the chairman and the ultimate controlling party of

the Company.

ANAL REREGRT Angs o o MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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gz —2-—F+-A=+—RILFE AETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
4. EEXRFEEREZ 2O EEHK 34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL

=N NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TRIWRAER 7 A EAFFIEREZ 2 IE The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
2EMBARZFE of the Group that had material non-controlling interests:
R 2R FERERFEZ AEEFER
MELRERE TEEENY FEEERLA Bz E#R Rt FERES
Proportion of
ownership
Place of interests
establishment held by the Loss allocated to Accumulated
and principal non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
T —E-—%F —E-—F
2021 2021 2021
THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R 22 Hunan Taiji B PRC TiER (3,463) =
N/A
AREBHEEAFIERES ZHB AR 2B Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
BERBESHINNT - LTI BERBEEA subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
EERNEHEINTE - HEEEELH-Z below. The summarised financial information below represents
“—FNA+HEBRBRKILFEERAEBNL amounts before intragroup eliminations. Hunan Taiji was
EUBHRERAN BEFES  WHEL2HGEEH de-consolidated from the consolidated financial statements
R - of the Group on 15 April 2021, please refer to note 11 to the

consolidated financial statements for the details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) :

REMBHRRME (&)

BE-Z-—f+-A=+—ALFEUELHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEAFERER G EASH 34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL

BT (&) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)
HMERE Hunan Taiji

H-ZT=-—%F
—HA—B=E
—EF-—F
MmA+HHB
L HA A
Period from
1 January
2021 to
15 April 2021
T T
HK$’000
N Revenue =
H AU A R & Other income and gains -
Sz Expense (8,659)
FEEE Loss for the year (8,659)
FEEMPE R Other comprehensive income for the year 88
FETEMRAZBH Total comprehensive expense for the year (8,571)
RENE g 3 N Dividend paid to the non-controlling interests =
KEXBRERER D FE Net cash outflow from operating activities (47)
RekBReEBYRIF Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (47)

35. ZEHEREBRME

(a) FEFBRERS
RBE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIF
B ANEEEMNBEQRZIER S
100,000,000/% Jt #) 7 18 - Eﬁﬂﬁ&L
BEEMNAEBEEERA
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was
an amount of HK$100,000,000 included in amounts
due to related companies by the Group, being assigned
and transferred to amount due to the immediate holding
company of the Group.
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e BHRKRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35. REBRERERMT (8) 35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

TRAMAEEREZDELECBEE
B ERRSNMEREEY - MEED
EEXZEBBEABHEREERRKE SR
EFNAEERERERERDBRR

BASRSMNE -

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

N

EAEEER
NAEFHE HESE FFEHMEE et
Amount
due to Interest-
immediate bearing
holding Lease other
company liabilities borrowings Total
TAER THER THER THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
N-E-—%—F—f At 1 January 2021 - 1,304 28,980 30,284
MERCREELENEE : Changes from financing
cash flows:
EBEHEMER Repayment of other loan - - (1,000) (1,000)
BEHEaE Repayment of lease liabilities - (942) = (942)
H fih # B Other changes:
AR New lease - 38,911 - 38,911
HEB®R Lease modification = 867 = 867
H 8 A SR H BCOVID-198) Covid-19-related rent concession
HERE from lessor - (1,207) - (1,207)
MEMRX Interest expense - 1,188 - 1,188
ME 7 2 Exchange realignment - 643 135 778
WZE-_—F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 and
MZEZ—_F—F—H 1 January 2022 - 40,764 28,115 68,879
RERSCREELENEE Changes from financing
cash flows:
EEEMER Repayment of other loan - - (14,000) (14,000)
EBEHEERE Repayment of lease liabilities = (904) - (904)
Hitn 25 : Other changes:
RIEHEE Lease termination - (31,348) - (31,348)
HHEAREHEE Waiver of rent from lessor - (8,124) - (8,124)
AMEFRX Interest expense - 2,110 - 2,110
[ H % Exchange realignment - (2,123) (518) (2,641)
B 8 1+ 38 A A R TE 4 Transfer from amounts due to
related companies 100,000 - - 100,000
R=-B--%+-A=+-H At 31 December 2022 100,000 375 13,597 113,972
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)

BE-T-—F+=A=+—RBLFEUETHIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35. REREREBRME (B 35.

(c) HEMNRESREAE
HERREFEEESRERANNIR SR

REMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

H AN consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:
—EC-CF T —F
2022 2021
FH& T FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEEEENR Within operating activities 167 79
EREEEA Within financing activities 904 942
1,071 1,021
36. EEIKIF 36. CHARGE OF ASSETS

UAEEETCEREERERZAKE®S
B 2B D BN ERE M RRME16K%27

37. REPLYZHE 37.

ERHEA
AEBERBEERNRHEEEETREY
X BERAZEMANT —EMFE (ZFT=_—
F:WEF) °

R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 A&EERE
B0 P AT S 2 AN A HH AR & TR A0 R R B
Rl RITRBENHBELT :

Details of the Group’s borrowings, which are secured by certain
pledged assets of the Group, are included in notes 15 and 27
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As lessor

The Group leases certain of its investment properties under
operating lease arrangements, which leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to two years (2021: two years).

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

—E-_F - —F

2022 2021

FET TAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year 2,963 3,863
—FREMFEAN After one year but within two years 335 2,656
3,298 6,519
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SANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIME)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
38. KRFARMHER 38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

EAEBRR-_ZTTENFRA-F+ZHIK
BHE EM) (KARBEREZWE
AR REMBRARHERERL  B2E
K& EBAEE (M) BERIEESE
EERAR ([ERIEE ) S HER
EmsIYzBHAE_SEENF A=
AHzEEERRNBEHEAR - HmE
EERMEARAR ([EZERME])
R—REPBIM 2 B MBS &
B E N EE R RN P e TR E
o MEE R E R ERE 2
AR BB FA30% A L - RIE E
MEEAR RIS A EREHEEN
FAREMEZEMEIKE  W{RFEEE
RSN e EREFAREERSR
T AFHEARE E BB A S A
FEKE o

RRKERERRR - 5 GEM) D BIR
T2 =FTARZE—RFT=AM
FEHERCEESHPEEZES ([HRE
B ) RIMAMEEBD  PERE
2 LHRRERME (AP eE) K10
—E——F—A—H=_ZFE—=F/)\H
=t HHEER-_ZE—=%hA—8
E-T-—AFNA=+BHEEEHEA
REZEEMER MEERERANRLEE
KB ([FKEHE]) REEEE - F2H
HiERF (DR AIE - AEEMHBRHE]
RIEZRFEMEEREE]) -

R_ZT—RE—F 5B GEN) ZEM
HEZEEBSEHBEBRE AT EMKBR
ZEOR B (BM) BN =T —tF
NA-—BESERNEFELASHAR
#:13,850,0007T °

R_ZT—tERA - HBEMN RS
ZARREMBRRFBELE—PRERSR
FOBRESEALEA=ZTE—RAFA
AZ+BEEEZEEER -_ZE—X~EN\A
=+—H8 REFIREESEHARE
71,485,0007T * WKW EFRKEZE S
I o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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There was a supplier contract embedded in the joint
venture agreement dated 30 June 2006 regarding the
establishment of Hunan Taiji entered into between the joint
venturers, namely Junefield Building Material, an indirectly
held subsidiary of the Company, and ¥R & B 5 R A 7]
(“Lianyuan Steel”), upon the acquisition of Junefield Building
Material and its subsidiary, Hunan Taiji, by the Group on
22 May 2009. #HmEZEERMEBR AR (“Hualing Steel”),
a company established in the PRC, is a steel products
manufacturer, Lianyuan Steel has beneficial interests in
Hualing Steel and Hualing Steel is also effectively owned
as to more than 30% by the holding company of Lianyuan
Steel. Pursuant to the joint venture agreement mentioned
above, Lianyuan Steel is responsible to guarantee the supply
of raw materials of granulated steel slag required by Hunan
Taiji and to procure Hualing Steel to supply granulated steel
slag to Hunan Taiji at the prescribed unit price for a period
of 15 years from the date of commencement of operation of
Hunan Taiji.

Due to shortage of supply of granulated steel slag, Junefield
Building Material filed two applications for arbitration
proceedings at the China International Economics and
Trade Arbitration Commission (“Arbitration Commission”)
against the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji, Lianyuan
Steel in October 2013 and December 2015 respectively for
compensations on, inter alia, failing to procure the requested
amount of supply of the granulated steel slag for production
(“Steel Slag Supply”) for the periods from 1 January
2011 to 31 August 2013 and from 1 September 2013
to 30 September 2015 under Hunan Taiji’s joint venture
agreement (the “First Taiji Arbitration Application” and the
“Second Taiji Arbitration Application” respectively).

In January 2015, Junefield Building Material was awarded
the First Taiji Arbitration Application by the Arbitration
Commission. Junefield Building Material ultimately
received the compensation in the amount of approximately
RMB13,850,000 from Lianyuan Steel on 2 August 2017.

In May 2017, Junefield Building Material further filed an
application to extend the claiming period ended from 30
September 2015 to 31 August 2016 with a revised claim
amount of approximately RMB71,485,000 in respect of the
Second Taiji Arbitration Application and it was successfully
accepted by the Arbitration Commission.
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38. KRIRFFR R MHE (&)

(@)

(&)

R-ZZF—NERA #EBGEM K3
F_RFEFRBFZIRRE (TER
1) Bt - (ERERE) BRI EER
HEGEM) XN -_F-0NF—H—
BE-Z-R"FNAA=T—BHHERAEH
JET & 2 BE 1B #) AR ¥30,097,0007T °
A BRI ERER —F—NEFEXRA
NAMXZEE-- 2B GEM) RE
B AER IR BT - % H
FERE-NFLA-TALBEZEKR
2% Big - ERWMEANR —T—NAFN
AR AR B RS M A RER
(TR FOEB]) 18 h B R EE &
REZHGE - RBERENR-_F—NF+
AZTNBMEE @ ERTHRFERED
B ERERE - B GEM) RER-F
—NFET—A-tTNABESRENRERH
S e

AEBELER-_Z-__F+ARREZ
BeRXMEBE ([F=RFEMEH
Fl) - SR RE D BARRE IR 6
(HREH) RER-_E—R"FNLA—A
EFE_=FNA=T A HARARE AR
FEZAEMAE MeEHRERARLE
ZKBEREBERDIEE  REMPERE
F-RZB_=F—F HHZEEX
BRI o

BEGAVBHRRIUEBHBIL - FE
REDAGEETEF ARAEER
B HEZRFEMEBFNERZE
BIREE -
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mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE-ZT-__f+-_A=-+—BLEFEETIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS
(continued)

(@)

(continued)

In May 2019, Junefield Building Material received the
arbitral award for the Second Taiji Arbitration Application
(the “Arbitral Award”), pursuant to which, among others,
Lianyuan Steel is liable to pay Junefield Building Material
the compensation for the supply shortfall for the period
from 1 January 2014 to 31 August 2016 amounting
to approximately RMB30,097,000. However, Lianyuan
Steel failed to pay the compensation before 9 June
2019. Junefield Building Material filed an application for
mandatory execution with Loudi Intermediate Court which
was accepted on 29 July 2019. Subsequently, Lianyuan
Steel lodged an application for requesting withdrawal of
the Arbitral Award with the Fourth Intermediate People’s
Court of Beijing, the PRC (“Beijing Intermediate Court”) on
5 August 2019, which was rejected by Beijing Intermediate
Court pursuant to court’s ruling dated 29 October
2019. Junefield Building Material ultimately received the
compensation plus related interest on 29 November 2019.

The Group has submitted an arbitration application (the
“Third Taiji Arbitration Application”) in October 2022 for
arbitration proceedings at the Arbitration Commission
against the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji, Lianyuan
Steel for compensations on, inter alia, failing to procure
the requested amount of supply of the granulated steel
slag for production commenced from 1 September 2016
to 30 September 2023 under Hunan Taiji’s joint venture
agreement. The application of the arbitration proceedings
was accepted to proceed by the Arbitration Commission in
January 2023.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the arbitration proceeding is still in progress.
The directors of the Company were of the opinion that the
ruling on the Third Taiji Arbitration Application was cautiously
optimistic.
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EUBWKRMTE (&)
| -..NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NEE—ZT_—F+-A=+—HLFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. KRFARMHER (&) 38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS
(continued)

RZFB-NAF-_A-+=-8 #BGE
M) EEESNREERT TR
RBELAMAS -_ZT-NAF_HA+=-H
ZEFBAE B BREE (ER
REANR_ZB-NFNARERERE
R ARBRRZRBUS  RAERE
BEmER LA RAUARRE -

ARHER-ZE-NFAA-THAR
ERM - #ARER-_Z_ZF—A+NH
BEL @ it  BRUABRREOR BN ER
ZERBMG  RAERESEHHERL
AR RO FE R E N ZRERKE - BIR
MECKRAREERRARER (IR
MERDRRXBPR—_T_FTF—A
“t=BMLH BERIBIBEEBAESR
Ho

HEs (M) W ae AR E A A
T TFETATHBZREHRE
Bt SAEBEL FIRRERTH &
ERBEHBSHA-—ZT-_TE—A+NA
ZREBHRWEGE - RWERER AR
A A BB AR AR ([ R AR ) - BRAREL
R B HR EEF*§*§¢+H
== Eti& HEER T -_TF+
A=+—8" %@ﬁﬂ%ﬂkﬁmﬁ
;z/\iﬁF74\§§ﬁ£f?ft””;Z1m BK o

REASEPBEZZBERZZZER
MEREAEATERS ARZERRER
B8 SR AR AR EOR + 3B [ IR S
HERNAERE S LMK LATF
AUR A REARDFR 2 BERF ([BFE
Akl MRZZB-TE+_H AEH
ERXBEFAL - FEEEARERD
HEBRKIBRMAENR_ZE_—F=A
TZRAKR  -RZE-_—FARA=1—
HIREIREFHTE Bt PERSAR
FRB B EBEFK -

On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was
informed by Hunan Taiji that a notice of response to
action (JEFF@AIE) dated 12 February 2019 from the
Loudi Intermediate Court, was received, pursuant to
which Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff, had in September 2018
requested a court judgement to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to
the termination of Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement due
to the prolonged shareholders’ disputes.

The court hearing of this case has been held on 25
September 2019 and the ruling was given on 19 January
2020, pursuant to which the request for a court judgement
to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of Hunan
Taiji’s joint venture agreement due to the prolonged
shareholders’ disputes was rebutted. Lianyuan Steel has
filed an appeal dated 23 January 2020 to the Higher
People’s Court of Hunan Province (“Higher Court”) to
request immediate dissolution of Hunan Taiji.

Junefield Building Material received a civil ruling dated 14
October 2020 issued by the Higher Court, pursuant to which
the Higher Court ruled that the civil ruling dated 19 January
2020 issued by the Loudi Intermediate Court was withdrawn
and Hunan Taiji should be dissolved from the effective date
of the ruling (the “Dissolution Ruling”). The Dissolution Ruling
is final and took effect on 21 October 2020. Subsequently
on 31 October 2020, Junefield Building Material received a
letter from Lianyuan Steel requesting for proceed with the
dissolution of Hunan Taiji.

Based on the legal opinion of the Group’s PRC legal
advisors, Hunan Taiji is entitled to lodge an application with
the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC for requesting
a retrial to withdraw the Dissolution Ruling and rebut the
request made by Lianyuan Steel for court judgement to
dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of Hunan Taiji’s
joint venture agreement (the “Retrial Request”). In December
2020, the Group lodged the Retrial Request. On 12 March
2021, notice of acceptance of the Retrial Request was
received from the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC. On
31 May 2021, a civil ruling was received, pursuant to which
the Retrial Request was rejected by the Supreme People’s
Court of the PRC.
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38. KRIRFFR R MHE (&)

(b)

(&)

R-ZF-—F_A—B  #BGEMK
NRBEMPLERBZLAEHRA-F
TF-A-TRBZREHESE B
o EEMHR RS EABRELR
BRBEEAZOREME T B AETTE
B RREEREEESOLR B R AR
EETRVBERE  HAUPBERERE
B ZREE A H HIE AR 1T o8 B
B -REAKETBEEREMRERE
R atEEHERREEE AR
T —F A+ ABER -

R-ZE-_—FWA+HEB  EETHRK
FEREBREHAR  WEHARERES
IR BT R RUOAET B 1708 B AR AE
R BE(EPERE) KB/ - &
MRS E M EIT R TR B R I BR AL -
Ait - ARREFENERLS > AKEE
R-ZB-_—FWUA+TARRESHES
E AR IR (EE11) -

REASETFEZZBENER A2
AESEAS BYWBFERTL ISR E
FEZRFEPHAE -

RZEZZFWA AEERBEE N
48 U B A R #24,000,0007T (F 5 R4
29,098,000/ 7T) Z #im Z A o8 #l )5 &
ZERFEDR - BELEYBREI
EBEARILE  HEREZARHFIBEEDNA
E#ETH o
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V.
mEMBRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-__F+_-_A=+t—HILEFEGBTIE)EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS
(continued)

(continued)

On 1 February 2021, Junefield Building Material received
a civil ruling dated 26 January 2021 issued by the
Loudi Intermediate Court, pursuant to which the Loudi
Intermediate Court ruled that Hunan Taiji failed to
proceed with the dissolution within 15 days pursuant to
the Dissolution Ruling and it accepted the request from
Lianyuan Steel for implementing the Mandatory Dissolution
Ruling by the court, hence Hunan Taiji should proceed to a
mandatory dissolution implemented by the court from the
effective date of this ruling. Based on the legal opinion of
the Group’s PRC legal advisors, the Mandatory Dissolution
Ruling is final and took effect on 26 January 2021.

On 15 April 2021, Loudi Intermediate Court reiterated its
ruling and issued a civil judgement (RZERE =), pursuant to
which Loudi Intermediate Court implemented the Mandatory
Dissolution Ruling, including, inter alias, the formation of
a dissolution team which was ordered to proceed with
the mandatory dissolution of Hunan Taiji. As a result, the
directors of the Company have concluded that the Group
lost control over Hunan Taiji on 15 April 2021 (Note 11).

Based on the opinions of the Group’s PRC legal advisors,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Mandatory Dissolution Ruling will not affect the Third Taiji
Arbitration Application.

In April 2022, the Group received RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$29,098,000) from the
dissolution team for the first distribution of proceeds from
the mandatory dissolution of Hunan Taiji. Up to the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
mandatory dissolution of Hunan Taiji is still in progress.
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mEMBRERME (F)
ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

WE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIME)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. KRFARMHER (&) 38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS
(continued)

() BEMERNRAEBEWELENESZ (c) There were two ongoing claims against Minera RC S.A.C.,
ERBGBEIISTHARR 2 EAELE an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Mt /& A ElMinera RC S.A.C.12H 89# 1T totaling approximately Soles 2,614,000 regarding the
FEHZE: P REH42,614,000K @ ° fatal accidents occurred in a mining site operated by the
ZMTHESR R T = —F Group in Peru. Settlement hearings were scheduled to be
MAREABRTHMERA - R held in April and July 2021 for the two cases respectively.
F—H » Minera RC S.A.C.H 5| W& & In January 2022, Minera RC S.A.C. received a ruling
ITHbRmEHBEBHEA-_ZS-_—_F—AH dated 21 January 2022 issued by a labour court in Peru.
ZH+—B2ZE R BRBEHAE  Minera According to the ruling, Minera RC S.A.C. was liable to
RC SACEARR -_ZTE—NLFRAE pay a compensation of approximately Soles 1,275,000
BAEMNMBLEENESELENMETE D (equivalent to approximately HK$2,483,000) to the family of
BEMARERZ— WA—HBFTIA a deceased worker regarding one of the two fatal accident
<2 KB X B (E #91,275,000% @ (4 cases occurred in a mining site operated by the Group in
F R #)2,483,0008 L) ([BBRF]) - Peru during year 2019 (“Claim A”). The management of
Minera RC SAC.Z2EEEHRZE &R Minera RC S.A.C. has subsequently filed an appeal to rebut
HEF URKZER BERAEER the ruling as the compensation should not be fully borne by
ATIABERE AULTEHREE2H it since it has insured for the workers. A hearing scheduled
AEEBAEE BN _Z2E__F1A was held in April 2022 for claiming a compensation of
hEREE(E 491,309,000 (FHERL approximately Soles 1,309,000 (equivalent to approximately
2,549,000/ 70) 2 B —REm B IMEZR HK$2,549,000) regarding the other fatal accident case
BETRAN(TERL]) - REBEWE LA (“Claim B”). Based on the legal opinion from the legal
BEREEzE—_E-_—F+-_A=+—HI1t advisors in Peru for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
FEZZERER  KRAEERAE B directors of the Company have taken the view that since
RE T AR SR ER —FREARELR a ruling has been given by the labour court for one case
R B BMELFRAEER B and even though there was no result on the appeal, a total
REBE-ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HBI&F provision of approximately Soles 2,584,000 (equivalent to
EANRZMRER A RBEREEAE approximately HK$5,032,000) for the claims for the two
#92,584,000% [ (48 & m 495,032,000 cases was recognised during the year ended 31 December
BIT) o 2021.
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38. KRIRFFR R MHE (&)

(©

(%)
R—ZZFT=-_—_F+ A ' Minera RC
S.A.CU B s fN & & T AP Fr s i B 28
AT -__F—HA-_+—BEBEEXRH
ZEREREFZHR  EETE - BE
FH 491,275,000% R 4> £894,000% R
(HZER#1,821,00087T) - £ - »
—Z - —4)\ A Minera RC S.A.C.Z
EEEBREE R EF ARBZER
e

RZEBE-—F XA WMBELITAERKR
MEERZMBET H R FH EMinera RC
S.A.C.7ZA ¥ i B 18 49463,000R & (47
£ MR #9944,000% 7t) ° Minera RC
SACHEREEURBREBFAMEE
BNMERXEF R-_T-_=F=7 "
B2l #E7T © Minera RC S.A.C.U¢ B &
BT AR ERBTHE R HETE
% (B 3% 10 = #9660,000Z B (HER K
1,344,000 7T) - Hig - RZZE==4F
=A="+H ' Minera RC SACIEXS
—IREFF -

HREXRFLERINEHER ER
BE—_ZEZ-_—_F#+-_A=+—RBIEE
NELRE BRI NEREERREHFE
[B] 42 %8 492,125,000/ T ©

HERSMBHRRLERH /L AR
FRBERIHEFDAEETES -
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BE_Z__F+_A=+—HLEFECUETIIE)EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS
(continued)

(continued)

In July 2022, Minera RC S.A.C. received a judgement on
the first appeal on the ruling dated 21 January 2022 for
Claim A issued by labour court in Peru and it ruled that
the compensation was reduced from approximately Soles
1,275,000 to Soles 894,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,821,000). Subsequently in August 2022, the
management of Minera RC S.A.C. has filed a second appeal
to rebut the ruling.

In June 2022, a judgement was issued by labour court in
Peru regarding on Claim B ruling that Minera RC S.A.C.
was liable to pay a compensation of approximately Soles
463,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$944,000). Both
the management of Minera RC S.A.C. and the applicant of
the claim have subsequently filed an appeal. A hearing has
taken place in March 2023 and Minera RC S.A.C. received a
ruling on the appeal issued by the labour court in Peru and
ruled that the compensation was increased to approximately
Soles 660,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,344,000).
Minera RC S.A.C. has then filed another appeal on 30 March
2028.

As a result of the latest rulings from Claim A and Claim B,
an aggregate reversal for provision of compensation claims
of approximately HK$2,125,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the appeals for Claim A and Claim B are still in
progress.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. BEAFXS 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRIt E ARG S mMR M 30 R3IBHH IR S In addition to the transactions detailed in notes 30 and 38 to the
Gy REBRERNEBETETUTEAR consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
R material transactions with related parties during the year:
(a) EBEELFETZCEARS (a) Significant transactions with related parties
—EC-CF T —F
2022 2021
Bt TET FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000

s (£E) AR A YEE Management fees charged by Junefield
ERB (Holdings) Limited (i) 1,060 1,080

3T 44 B8 SR A PR 2 B YR B A Management fees charged by New Silkroad
EEE Culturaltainment Limited (i) 256 248

M EBBREERRA A Management fees income from Macrolink
U B IR B UL A International Investment Co. Ltd. (if) 796 1,612

FEME SRR EAR AT Short-term lease expense charged by

WE R EHEERS MEBECHBEREERRA A (i) 61 =
REFBMMHERZEREH Agency commission fee income from

ERZEERAFN BN EREERNEREAR AT

REBEEBRA (ii) 621 904
REAFHERERIREGME AT Property management services income from

K E R RA WA FEBMERIGESR AR (iv) 13,139 13,659
REFEBITRAR D AN Property management services income from

)2 B R IR A HEB IR AR A A (iv) 1,004 658
LERERESHT Sale of parts of mining equipment to

Total Genius Iron Mining Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C.

SAC. (i) - 183

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED p
WREl 5% S s R h e ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % &

N




REMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. BELXZ (&)
(a) HEAERETZEARS (&)

Bzt

(i) ARBRTEFARZALRENRARLLE -
Witk (RE) BRAREA Bz - §A
ERBETRATNTKRHE °

(i) ARFEFRATEEBELENZEME
ARTHEAEGELD - BAREBRTIIAH
7 HRBE °

(i) ARRAMITEFARALTENRABLE -
M Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C.# A & &
W o

vy ARREFERATEEBELEEINZERE
AEHEAEEDELD - BRMDREBEHEFINS
PATRT SZHY 165 2% {6k K 4R ©

bt 5B (iv) IR BRE T3 32 5 IR K T AR A
FUAZEEZFEBERS -

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HBIEFEGABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Significant transactions with related parties
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(il

(iv)

Mr. Zhou, a close family member of Mr. Zhou Jianren (an executive
director of the Company), has beneficial interests in Junefield
(Holdings) Limited. The monthly management fees were mutually
agreed between the contracting parties.

Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company,
has beneficial interests in these related companies. The fees and
prices were mutually agreed between the contracting parties.

Mr. Zhou, a close family member of Mr. Zhou Jianren (an executive
director of the Company), has beneficial interests in Total Genius Iron
Mining S.A.C..

Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company,
has beneficial interests in these related companies. The fees were
charged pursuant to the terms in the agreements signed between the
contracting parties.

The related party transactions in respect of item (iv) above
also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) BFAEB2ETEEBAEZH (b) Compensation of key management personnel
& of the Group
—=2-_ T —F
2022 2021
FET FHAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HHEERF Short term employee benefits 2,024 2,144
B B A2 A Post-employment benefits 24 40
BENEEERBASZHERLR Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 2,048 2,184

PRI EERASETNEEIRS
WEBK EMRAFI4AZT TR 2B
ROBFHEHERS °

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R

The above related party transactions with key management
personnel do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

WE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIME)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. REHE s z2E€/R T A 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
R EHEERE - SERSMTACZER The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
(ERONNE instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
DAEE
FTERHE

BEITA UBEKE
BENER SRR

BE SREE et
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at amortised
FVTPL cost Total

FTERT FTERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

—EZCF 2022
FEWLAR R Accounts receivable - - -
BREEBEMNRE - EZ2 K Financial assets included in prepayments,

BEMEWHIEZ © R EE deposits and other receivables - 8,647 8,647
FEUN R A a2 I8 Amounts due from related companies - 997 997
WAFEEFEBEZETA Financial instruments at fair value

ExemI A through profit or loss

— EARAIKRE (FH) — Listed equity investments (Hong Kong) 15,539 - 15,539

—FELEMRAEE (FE) — Unlisted equity investments (PRC) = - -
0 e RIRITRER Cash and bank balances - 98,348 98,348

15,539 107,992 123,531
LAAFE(E
ERE
FEET A AR
B=H o FTEH
BE TREE e
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at amortised
FVTPL cost Total
FHET FATT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—_F - 2021
Us BB B A RG] & Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary = 50,000 50,000
FE W AR R Accounts receivable = - -
BIEEBNZRIE - EE X Financial assets included in prepayments,

HEERFIBEZcmEE deposits and other receivables = 7,524 7,524
FE W8 3 A R FIE Amounts due from related companies = 951 951
ARG NI Amounts due from an investee company = 18,744 18,744
WAFEF=AEZETA Financial instruments at fair value through

ExrMemIT A profit or loss

— ETRAERE (BS) — Listed equity investments (Hong Kong) 16,121 = 16,121

—JE ETRRARE (FE) — Unlisted equity investments (PRC) 32,922 = 32,922
B e MIRTTE % Cash and bank balances = 114,006 114,006

49,043 191,225 240,268
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued): 3

40. #EFIE D z2EM T A (&)

REMBHRRME (&)

BE_Z__F+_A=+—HLEFECUETIIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

DEBERATENESRERE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

—E-_F T —4F
2022 2021
FH& T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B BR R Accounts payable 805 2,749
BIEE H b e RIE K& Financial liabilities included in

EtEaEz2eRmEE other payables and accruals 32,106 34,905
STEEMEE Interest-bearing other borrowings 13,597 28,115
FES E BT A A8 Amount due to immediate holding company 100,000 -
ISR A FUA Amounts due to related companies 12,571 193,024
HEAaE Lease liabilities 375 40,764
159,454 299,557

M. T EZNFEENLDFEEDE 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEENG ReLReEEY WENE
RAWE & - BURR - BIREBEMNFOR
R RHEMBEBRKENSBEE  BIKE
BB BRRERERARIEA  BHK
R BREEMENFEREFABEZSR
BE FEEMEER BNERERARR
B ENBAEARREAREEEEZAT
EREEKEERS -

CREERABZATERENRSTER
BRETXBAEBTAZESEAR  ®Hl%
BERHERI - AR AFEZTERR
R

EARAREZRFETIATERESE
o ARBCEETRRGBETEMT 25
RVHEGRAZRABBERRER) REE R FE
28 (AR FEAEAREHFTABREN L
MRAKREME @ stAREERR)BA

TRREREBESRRESPRREEZ(EE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary, accounts
receivable, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, amounts due from related companies,
amounts due from an investee company, accounts payable,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing other borrowings, amount due to immediate
holding company, amounts due to related companies and lease
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for listed equity investments at FVTPL,
are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at
the end of the reporting period.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WBE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RILFEGAETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4L%§IQZQ$E&Q$Eﬁm
=
AEERERELFTRAKRE  HARTH
RN R A ERS o NEE D U
BE A EEA G IE FTTREM A TE -

UWTEHINR—_FE_—_FR_FE-_—F+=A
=+ BEHBESRMITAGRENEATAIER
BABEMEUREEFREDI

41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group invests in unlisted equity investments, which represent
equity interests in Hunan Taiji in the PRC. The Group has
estimated the fair value of the unlisted investments by adjusted
net asset value valuation model.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

EXRAH FAEE@EAE

i {8+ i BEmnAE BEAFENBEE

Significant Relationship of

Valuation unobservable unobservable

technique input inputs to fair value

BE=QRNFELTRERE LEERE MHBEEFENATE HEEEREN
REBRNBE HESS -

DNFEBES

Unlisted equity investments under Quoted price based The fair value of The higher the
Level 3 on net asset value underlying underlying

TRIFAEBEHITAZ A TEAEDR -

net asset value
valuation, the higher
the fair value

net asset value

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments.

E—R E-R E=# et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T FHT FH&T FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=ZB=-—fF As at 31 December 2022:
+=—A=+—8:
LAAFE(EE 8 B E# 8 A Financial instruments at FVTPL
BEmemT A
— EIRAREKRE — Listed equity investments 15,539 - - 15,539
—3E FIRAKE — Unlisted equity investments = - - -
15,539 - - 15,539
R_ZE-——& As at 31 December 2021:
+=—A=+—8:
LAAE(EE 2 B B8 85t A Financial instruments at FVTPL
BExremIT A
— FTRAKE — Listed equity investments 16,121 - - 16,121
—JEEMRAZRE — Unlisted equity investments = = 32,922 32,922
16,121 - 32,922 49,043

m MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)m ¥

s

BE—T——f+—A=+—B1FEE GuEsE) IR

M B TEZAFERAFEDTH

(%)
ATED R ()
RAFEE  WEE-REE—

F:E) -

REAFEER  RE=ZRA

FEZ A
AEEE TEEARBHE-F(ZF_—_—

AFE

FEAENESD

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year,

or out of Level 3 (2021: Ni).

there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during

m the year are as follows:
FHT
HK$’000
DAFEFEEEEHFAERZN Unlisted equity investments at fair value through
FETRARE profit or loss
R—F-_—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 =
BRGIEHENBARER(AF11) Recognised through deemed disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 11) 14,627
FEEXRNERN K E BT Total gain recognised in the statement of profit or loss 18,295
RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
NZ_ZT__F—H—H 32,922
Wik E R RIREIE R Return of capital from an investee company (29,098)
AR NG ] Amount due to an investee company 2,455
THERRANERNEBRRE Total loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss (6,279)

R=B=-=F+=-A=1+—H

At 31 December 2022

,tg

(=
=]

o

.

/
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R _FRZFF+ZA=1—
A AEBEVEREAALFEFENSREA

value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE=

T _F+A=1T—HIEFEAETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MBEREREENRBXK

AEBEKEEHEYZEMBERER - T5E
Fﬂﬁﬁﬂ$ﬂ CHNEE R B I AR AN (B AR R
) 1:% /}luébéiﬂ Z’K%@Z%
B8 = b E.@J%Jﬁ/iﬁ’\\\uﬂl‘h%T—ﬁ‘E/E\UZ
*& R EEE R EEPFRIRE R ZE
FEETE -

RZEZ—F+=—A=+—0" ' EEE
REREXR ARAEEYETMZ
FFREE Bt XEBEMEEGERNT
BREREHERIWRATK - XEEH
miﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂwﬂﬁoﬁﬁ’%ﬁ@
PERFERER  TEAREZREE
ﬂm%iZﬂiﬂ&o

AEBHEHRZFERAR - ZFREMRK
BEEEMERAEMNEERIUNINEH
EITZHERRE - $%.Z$KEL
REBALNPEERWE  MREXER
Z%K%““%ﬁMAE% ENPSES
TETT - REXRB LB EERAREY
AARYE - REBRETTHIE -

A B B A ESMEEP R
ERERDERNEAR  LEARE
5 0 B A 2 5 SRR -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates was considered
insignificant in management’s opinion as the Group had
no borrowings with floating interest rates as at the year
end. The Group currently does not hedge its exposure to
interest rate risks. However, the management monitors the
interest rate risk exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk exposure should the need arise.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
The Group’s major operations and businesses are located
in the PRC and Peru and substantially all transactions are
conducted in RMB, Soles and USD. All the assets and
liabilities of these businesses are denominated in RMB,
Soles and USD.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 #F 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)&
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BE_ZT__F+_-A=1—HLFE B TIIE) S
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BREGEEENREE (8) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) e Bz (&) (b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
BRBTEETES - A BINERR Since HK$ is pegged to USD, relevant foreign currency risk
MFEM - Bt EEEIHEHRES is minimal. Accordingly, their fluctuation is excluded from
MR GIE - NRERNENA EMtEEHE the sensitivity analysis. The following table demonstrates the
BAE BT NEBKRF A ER sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
(REBEERBEATEEIME) & possible change in the RMB exchange rates, with all other
REFBZRERENBEHBERFAR variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due
MIER SBR[ B o BXE to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities)

and the Group’s equity.

B =i, BR B AT &5 18 g m

CR2)  (gm) ®mP (R ) *
(Increase)/
Increase/ decrease Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
% FAET FHET
% HK$’000 HK$’'000
—E-_F 2022
BT ARERE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (1,129) -
B ITE AREHE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 1,129 =
—E-—F 2021
WETHARERE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 81) -
B THARBHE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 81 =
TEEREE * Excluding accumulated losses
BERERE  ARERHNERI KR In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
FRRER - HBRES ML TREKE unrepresentative of the inherent exchange risk as the year
BRINE R B - end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
. MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
WE_ZT_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BREGEEENREE (8) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

BB (B RS E R 18 A RE 75 2 A FE R

SR BUKFE K AE R & #Ffﬁﬁiﬁ“%ﬂﬁﬁ
MOZEBR - R_T__FR-TZ
FT-A=1+—8 A&EEEH 2 B#E

BREBREINRUAFEAEERE
it A BRI AZ @RRAIR
B o AREMNBE AT L2 EMARAE
FRBERHEREMRMEMGE -

AEBYETBHEEIF ETRAR
B -AKEERTEEHARMOMNE
HKEK - ARAIEEERR LM
AEEEENRERMAOBR - Bt I
B L HRAREREBEESMN

TRETEMBEEMESEFTEEKR

aﬁRIE%%ZI AT EMBEAREZ
RNHEBEBES % BREE - HIREARA

BRERBEMRGRE ZREENE

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial instruments at
FVTPL as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The Group’s
listed equity securities are listed on the Stock Exchange and
these equity securities are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.

The Group does not actively trade unlisted equity
investments. The Group currently does not have a hedging
policy in respect of the risk exposure. The management
of the Company considers that the risk exposure arising
from unlisted equity investments is limited and no sensitivity
analysis for unlisted equity investments is therefore
prepared.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact
on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the end of the

reporting period.

RR %A A E5 18 M
BREE RS () (R ) *
Decrease/
(increase) Increase/
Carrying in loss (decrease)
amounts before tax in equity*
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-CF 2022
wEETR - Investments listed in:
BEE-UAFEFEAE Hong Kong - financial
SEHABENEHMIA instruments at FVTPL 15,539 777/(777) -
—E-—F 2021
wEETR - Investments listed in:
BEE-UAFEFEAE Hong Kong - financial
B ABENSRITA instruments at FVTPL 16,121 806/(806) =

* TEEREE * Excluding accumulated losses

PYy 3l ACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_ZT-__F+_-_A=+t—HILEFEGBTIE)EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

42. B EBEEBENREE (&)

AEBERRIESREE A KBS
B UERLREHRZUTHNEEEE
R\ fE B - X EIBEE RRIER R B
1 o AN - AN E B (B R AR
R AW B S BB IE L B AR
AU B R IRAE R SR E R 1R -

AEEEbeREE(BRES RS
EEY BRERMNRE - RERHEM
EUFENSBEE  BREERFR
HIA R B IRE A B HIE) WEER
LR HEAOMES - Bk LR\E
RZETAMKEE -

HRAEERERANAEEEZE=F
ETEE  MEFEAR RZZT==
FER-FE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&
ERAEFAAEBERARFPWEESL
EREERRSESETRHNBER -

FANPH 20 I EE - AR B LUK
REAB T ELFERREERSRE -

ERBUREFUINEREE  AKE
EEEVIRERREREZNNA L
YREEHRERAFEEREERRES
ERBERN - RABEERRESE
REEEN AEESHREREESLA
3 5 SR B A 40 O L B B2 )4 B SR B A
BHORBRETHER -AEEEERAIE
KA X FEHRTEEE R - AERE BRI
BRRAIN & BB E SR A D AR
BR H A5 B fa Ko anf] ot & 18 20 JE e OE S
B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % 3R

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the
counterparty is managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual accounts receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from related companies and amounts due
from an investee company, arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. At 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk arising from the
Group’s accounts receivable that were due from the Group’s
largest customer or the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group applies simplified approach to measure expected
credit losses for accounts receivable as disclosed in note
20.

For financial assets other than accounts receivable, the
Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of the asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the asset or underlying loan
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. The Group uses
four categories for financial assets other than accounts
receivable which reflect their credit risk and how the loss
provision is determined for each of those categories.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SEANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ol

gz —2 -+ - A=+—ALFE AETHIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. BEEBREEENREE (&) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) EERE (&) (d) Credit risk (continued)
ok AEEERIENESR BRAHGFEFENER
Category Group definition of category Basis for recognition of ECL
BHIH REEFHENORBRTKN - B3 &8 8 IE 12 A FEHEEEE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  12-month ECL

not have any past due amounts

7 &¢ BnEREEERREEREEZM EEAFERRACEEBE - RMERARE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

since initial recognition

EHN FRBBERNEECERRE EEFEHREAEEEE - ERRE
Default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
impaired
3 FREBRETEBAZRERENMBRE  MAEE S EMH
Y [ SR IR ) 7 B S
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

BEEREURRFEAERERS Maximum exposure and year-end staging
#
TREINR - E-_—_FR T — The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
T A=+ —ARBEARSEMNEEER exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
BHEHNERHEELRESEZERE H which is mainly based on past due information unless other
SR EIER AER  BRIEEMERE information is available without undue cost or effort, as at
BARNETERK AR HENA S - B 31 December 2022 and 2021. The amounts presented are
Bz o ISR S A EENER carrying amounts for financial assets.
TH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)&

BE-B-—fF+-A=+—AIFE U TsIE) NS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

42. BRI EE B KR BUR ()

(d) EE=RE (&)
B 5 B B LA R R OF A B Y B R 7

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

2 (4F) (continued)
128 AEH
BEF#E EEGENRNEERR
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
E-KE Efud 1 E=RH R[S @zt
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
TEL TAR TAT TET TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZB-ZF+-A=1-H Asat31 December 2022
MR Accounts receivable* o - - - -
BREBFTE &ER Financial assets included in prepayments,
HtEWFIE eRAE deposits and other receivables
—FE" - Normal™ 8,647 - - - 8,647
ERBERRFE Amounts due from related companies
—-E&E - Normal** 997 - - - 997
ReRFTES Cash and bank balances
—ABH - Not yet past due 98,348 - - - 98,348
107,992 - - - 107,992
RZE-—F+=-A=1—H Asat31 December 2021
WEKRBARMT 2™ Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary™ 50,000 = - - 50,000
G Accounts recelvable* - - - - -
BEERNFA B R Financial assets included in prepayments,
HtENFE eRAE deposits and other receivables
—EE - Normal™ 7,524 - - = 7,524
EWEENFFE Amounts due from related companies
—EE - Normal*™ 951 = = = 951
iR E A RIE Amounts due from an investee company
=R ~ Normal™* 18,744 = - - 18,744
Be kBT Cash and bank balances
—KaH — Not yet past due 114,006 = = = 114,006
191,005 - - - 191,205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

WEE—Z

T F T A=t—RHIEFEUAETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
42. R REKREEB N RBK (&)

(d)

(e)

EEER (E)
BEABRURRERLBHEES
P i

* BRAAREEERRER S ENERERR -

ERRBEREBRIENENES S MBER
R0 B FE -

- BREEBEMNFEA REREGRKRAZE
BMEE  BREEQFZANKLEEHIRE
RAFBEENABH AT EEHXPASRE
ENEERR A MRBERRELEE LT
HEREBGRARIER] - TR @A
ENEREESREAIFR] -

REE &
AEBCBRDENERERDESS
Ko RREARTERREFHEENRNE
B mHEEHZRBESHER - R]IT
R—REBEDERERERS -

REEBRDECEARE  AEBERK
HRRX KPR RREEEY M
ZKRETDERBRRRAREHRAKEZE

BrESRERRLBEESRERDZY
@,

TRETASEZ SRBA BN RS HE
BRERBAORFTRENRZEIHA -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

*

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information on the ECL calculation is
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

- The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from related companies
and amounts due from an investee company is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short,
medium and longer term. Banking and general facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below shows the maturity profile of the Group’s

financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)&

u

BE-B-—F+= A=+—ALFE GusyE) IS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

BHEREEBENREX (&)

(e) RBEZ R (&)

BRER®R =E2t1+=
=@AUR @A UR —Z5fF BERF #st
On
demand
or less 3 to
than less than 1to5 Over
3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
FAT FAT T T FH T FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-= 2022
FE SRR R Accounts payable 805 - - — 805
BEEHEMEMINIE  Financial liabilities included in
FEAEEZS R other payables and accruals
afE 32,106 - - - 32,106
HEEE Lease liabilities 226 151 - - 377
STREHMEE Interest-bearing other
borrowings 13,597 - - - 13,597
BN EEERA A Amount due to immediate
WRIE holding company 100,000 - - - 100,000
FET A b/ Q] Amounts due to related
companies 12,5671 - - - 12,571
159,305 151 - - 159,456
T —4F 2021
FE S BRFX Accounts payable 2,749 = = = 2,749
BEEHEMERNINIE  Financial liabilities included in
LEGFEEZER other payables and accruals
BfE 34,905 - - - 34,905
HEBE Lease liabilities 3,906 5,584 20,002 24,531 54,023
AFEHMEE Interest-bearing other
borrowings 28,115 = = = 28,115
FE A5 B3 A R U Amounts due to related
companies 193,024 - - - 193,024
262,699 5,584 20,002 24,531 312,816
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_,.,NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
MEREBEEE N R (E)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

) EXEE (f) Capital management
AEBEAEE TEBEZRREALE The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
B ECE A ERERE e R are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
BEEEIZEARLR  UXEFREEBLE concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
EREREEE- support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.
BHEESNABRENERE  KNEFEKeH In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
BRRFEKMNKRE 2 SBHEITHR Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
eoBE_E-_—FR_FT-—F+— shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
A=1+—RLEE WEREBELRL in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
B2 RSB REIEL & during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
NEB SIS @RS R (AEBRF The Group monitors capital using the debt-to-total equity
FARRAGAREZS ) BEERH B K o 1$i‘%/%§ ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
ZReEE (BREEMNEERIZERRA AR is calculated as total borrowings (including amount due
I8 RN REE R R RIE R + \\\\\ /rmﬁ to immediate holding company, amounts due to related
BE)RReRREEBWTE companies and interest-bearing other borrowings) less cash
and cash equivalents.
R—_EBE_—_FER_FT-_—F+=A4 The debt-to-total equity ratios at 31 December 2022 and
== EIZfEﬁ%%THM LR 2021 were as follows:
—E=E=-= T —%F
2022 2021
FTET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEE Total borrowings 126,168 221,139
BB ERBRESEED Less: Cash and cash equivalents (98,285) (113,943)
B H 5 Net debt 27,883 107,196
B Total equity 71,913 82,915
B BRI =X Debt-to-total equity ratio 39% 129%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=1T—BHUEFEMBETIESE

y
MBEHmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
BRAARNARTNBRERBELE R 2 H B RR Information about the statement of financial position of the
ZERIOT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—ZE2-— —E-—F
2022 2021
FHET TFAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERBEE Non-current assets
ME - BENERE Property, plant and equipment = 4
FREEE Right-of-use assets 369 1,254
KRB AR ZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 390 390
WEEKT B ARG £ Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary = 50,000
IERBEELE Total non-current assets 759 51,648
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23,255 21,052
AT A Eﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘éﬂ&%ﬁ,ﬁ Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,154 2,967
FEWHT B A Amounts due from subsidiaries 11,926 80,492
AR FE(E ﬁ;ﬁﬁi\ ABpET A B Financial instruments at fair value through
NemT A profit or loss 15,539 16,121
/e MIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 79,407 91,851
MBEERLEA Total current assets 131,281 212,483
REAE Current liabilities
HAibfEM AR ES B G Other payables and accruals 14,230 15,442
FrEH ﬁﬂ{jig Interest-bearing other borrowing 5,597 6,115
HEBE Lease liabilities 375 885
NN RE Y @/NCIE @] Amount due to immediate holding company 100,000 =
FE 5 B3 R Bl 3R IE Amount due to a related company = 150,000
FEAST BT /B A R ZRIB Amounts due to subsidiaries 7,753 10,240
mEBEEE Total current liabilities 127,955 182,682
REBEEFE Net current assets 3,326 29,801
EELERARDARS Total assets less current liabilities 4,085 81,449
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBR Lease liabilities = 375
EERE Net assets 4,085 81,074
s Equity
ARATEBANEMLES Equity attributable to owners of the Company
[N Share capital 120,625 120,625
fE 1 Reserves (116,540) (39,551)
48 3 Total equity 4,085 81,074
BE R
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
= =
Director Director
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IANOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Ngz=—2-—F+-A=+—ALFEUETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NN TR 2B AR RE (88) 43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
Wit - Note:
KATIBERENT : A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
BHRER RAitE#E #5t
Share
premium  Accumulated
account losses Total
FHET FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE-——F—FA—H At 1 January 2021 163,910 (189,270) (25,360)
FE2EMAXEE Total comprehensive expense for the year = (14,191) (14,191)
R-IE-_—F+-_A=+—HBHEK At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
—ZE=-—F—H—H 163,910 (203,461) (39,551)
FEEPHMAZARE Total comprehensive expense for the year - (76,989) (76,989)
R-B-=—#+=-A=+-H At 31 December 2022 163,910 (280,450) (116,540)
44. HEHIEE1E 44, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
BRAMENFANBRERRENZTHER - Please refer to note 38(a) and 38(c) for updates on arbitration
BURE 2 Bl 2 B M 5E38(a) &2.38(c) ° and litigation respectively subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.
45. It EEZ S B EHRE 45. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
HAMBHREAN_-_ZE_=F=ZA=1tHES The consolidated financial statements were approved and
F e it I R RE T E o authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023.
;g“g%;"'ii" fjr‘“;ﬁ'”;é' *g"'%'NGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % #
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RENMEZFHT
PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/

REBR-_ZE-_—_F+-_HA=+—H2&EWZE Details of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2022

BT : are as follows:
BREEEE
i B (F75K) AR AR
Approximate
gross floor area Category of
Location (square meter) the lease term Use
Office units 708, 728, 731, 732, B b R T 7 R 851 *+ 3 s R 4 [HES
734, 735, 1132, 5 R PIINRE 7R FHR T MEF Commercial
1510 and 1516 of Tower 1 B ESE — R =AZ+—HE®
Junefield Plaza 708 ~ 728 ~ 731 » Land use rights
No. 6 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie 732 734 735 for a term expired on
Xi Cheng District, Beijing 1132 - 1510 % 21 March 2044
the PRC 1516 E N By
Office units 725-729 on Level 7 B R T A S 744 + b (s AR [EES
and 917 on Level 9 of Tower 2 FRMAINKE R FEARN ZZ P PO 5 Commercial
Junefield Plaza HBESFE_E =A=+—HE®
No. 10 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie CBT725ET729FE K Land use rights
Xi Cheng District, Beijing NBNTERRNEN for a term expired on
the PRC 21 March 2044
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B F M BHRE
IFIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Al
E4 RESULTS
BE+-—A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-- R —F ZE2ZFF ZE-NEF ZT—N\F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
FTHET FHIT FE T FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FIBICE TS Continuing operations
A Revenue 764,114 486,321 262,463 337,839 184,704
BELEEK 2 Loss before tax from
& %4 Al B 18 continuing operations (6,469) (83,680) (51,743) (77,979) (80,563)
FrisfisEe (Bx) Income tax credit/(expense) 1,943 1,458 (904) 3,524 (1,121)
FEICE XL 2 Loss for the year from
FEERE continuing operations (4,526) (32,222) (52,647) (74,455) (81,684)
ERIEEEER Loss for the year from
FEERE discontinued operations - (3,793) (20,799) (24,164) (50,216)
FEEE Loss for the year (4,526) (36,015) (73,446) (98,619)  (131,900)
FE(L Attributable to:
NATEA A Owners of the Company (4,526) (32,652) (64,848) (88,810)  (111,784)
FEVE R FE = Non-controlling interests - (3,463) (8,598) (9,809) (20,116)
(4,526) (36,015) (73,446) (98,619)  (131,900)
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BR+=-—HA=+-—H
At 31 December
—B-Cf T —T-FTHF —_F-NE —FT-N\F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
FET FAT T T T T FH T
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEHE Total assets 273,485 428,059 268,582 329,261 393,394
BELRE Total liabilities (201,572)  (345,144)  (149,580)  (150,294)  (133,527)
71,913 82,915 119,002 178,967 259,867
FElGRER ¢ Equity attributable to:
ViN/NEIE P =N Owners of the Company 71,913 82,915 106,547 159,101 229,684
FE 1 AR A 2 Non-controlling interests - = 12,455 19,866 30,183
71,913 82,915 119,002 178,967 259,867
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